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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 March 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
Mr. JING Dacheng

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairperson)
Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (Chairperson)
Mr. BAl Tao
Mr. JING Dacheng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. SHA Zhenquan (Chairperson)
Mr. BAIl Tao
Mr. JING Dacheng

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned with effect from
1 March 2023)
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. BAI Tao
Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS OF THE GROUP’S
SUBSIDIARIES IN CHINA

Unit Nos. 2201 to 2208

Level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District
Guangzhou City, The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 5706, 57th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor, 24 Shedden Road
P.O. Box 1586, Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEFR

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants and Registered Public Interest
Entity Auditor

801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISOR

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd
China Great Wall Asset Management Co., Ltd
Jinshang Bank Co., Ltd

Jincheng Bank Co., Ltd

STOCK CODE

00866

WEBSITE

http://www.ginfagroup.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity AEERBERETBFEEMNELSL  BE AE
for the last five financial years is set out below: NERHBENT

RESULTS ES |

For the year ended 31 December
BZE+-—A=+—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B —T-—fF —T-FHE —FT-NF —FT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR®BTT

Turnover EETE 3,794,039 4,559,180 2,247,363 2,799,520 3,652,869
Gross profit EF 1,273,283 1,941,119 355,315 406,558 390,674
Operating profit/(loss) — #&&£& %5,/ (E518) 1,020,470 4,330,857 (3,946,158) 287,071 2,024,200
Profit/(loss) before BRE RIS F(B518)

taxation 766,781 3,970,096  (4,312,998) (4,506) 1,759,082
Income tax (expense)/ FriSH (FIsz), %

credit (276,745)  (782,186) 876,128 85,229 (75,614)
Profit/(loss) for the year & R FI,/ (E518) 490,036 3,187,910 (3,436,870) 80,723 1,683,468

Profit/(loss) attributable FEAE3EF,/ (E518)
to:
Equity shareholders RARESFEAA

of the Company 456,543 2,793,546  (2,901,499) 81,421 1,504,509
Non-controlling FEEIR
interests 33,493 394,364 (535,371) (698) 178,959
490,036 3,187,970  (3,436,870) 80,723 1,683,468
Coal handling and KR ERESE
trading volume (Fmg)
('000 tonnes) 4,528 6,115 5,964 7,602 10,167
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE  AERER

As at 31 December
BR+=A=+-—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
B —T-—fF —T-FHE —FT-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREBTT

Total assets BERE 7,850,531 7,896,513 5297925 9,354,633 9,874,769
Total liabilities BERE 7,037,320 (7,579,998) (8,194,009) (8,789,369) (9,391,923)
Total equity/(deficit) B (B4l 858 813,211 316,515  (2,896,084) 565,264 482,846

ZEZZFF ANNUAL REPORT 2022 5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the
“Board”) of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual result of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Last year, when | was writing the Chairman’s Statement for the
Company’s annual report, the global tensions were escalating
since the Russia-Ukraine war. Although the macro environment
was then full of uncertainties and challenges, | was convinced
that the management of the Group would use their extensive
experience gained over the years to lead our employees to
cope with the difficult situation with poise, stabilize the current
business and create opportunities for development.

The key to a company’s long-term success is its resilience,
which it must display on all occasions. In the past year, facing
such a complex and ever-changing economic environment,
the Group kept adjusting and enhancing its response to the
COVID-19 pandemic, because we knew that to maintain
excellent operations, we had to be accurate when making
decisions and flexible when dealing with emergencies. In 2022,
the Group made the annual “China Energy (Group) Top 500”
list, jointly released by China Energy News and China Energy
Economic Research Institute and based on energy companies’
annual operating income. This indicates that industry
authorities recognize the Group’s potential for development as
well as its ability to guide the sustainable development of the
energy industry.

Although the Group has been making good progress, we
have never settled for the status quo. “Seeking progress in
stability” has always been our development pace, as well as
our core strategy. This core strategy, which we have always
adhered to, has led the Group to get through every economic
cycle and become a leading energy conglomerate in China
with a highly integrated supply chain comprising production,
transportation and sales. Meanwhile, China’s “One Belt, One
Road” initiative has brought endless development opportunities
to many industries. Since our successful acquisition of the
SDE project in 2021, the Group has been actively promoting
the construction of the SDE coal mine in Indonesia and has
already achieved many milestones, such as the renewal of
SDE’s mining business license, which will expire on 14 May
2034. The supporting facilities around the SDE mine, such as
roads and wharves for coal transportation, have also been

6 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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completed successively. With the SDE coal mine soon to be
officially put into operation, the Indonesian project will become
a new growth engine for the Group.

“Success is built upon talents and achievement is expanded
through talents,” as the ancient saying goes. The Group is fully
aware that recruiting and fostering top talents is essential for
the long-term development of the country as well as that of
the Group. “Integrity and diligence” have been our corporate
values since the very beginning, and we have adhered to
them unwaveringly. With these values in mind, the Group will
continue to build a top employer brand, and put effort into
talent management innovation, talent empowerment, as well
as employee growth and development. We strive to build a
community where employees and the Company share the
same vision, inject new momentum into the development of the
Group, and provide inexhaustible power to the development
of the industry. In 2022, the Group won the annual award of
“China’s Preferred Employer of the Year”, co-organized by
Zhaopin.com and Institute of Social Science Survey, Peking
University, for its outstanding performance in employer image,
organizational management, salary and benefits, growth and
development, working environment and employer culture.
This award demonstrates the industry’s recognition of the
Group’s efforts to build an employer brand as well as the
public’s unanimous approval of the Group’s corporate values
of “integrity and diligence”.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to the Board and all our staff. | would like to thank
everyone for their dedication, diligence and professionalism in
the past year, which contributed to the Group’s success and
numerous achievements.

Xu Da
Chairman
29 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWEDTN

The Group is a leading non-state owned thermal coal supplier
in China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain,
including coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage
and blending of coal in the PRC. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group continued to focus on these
business activities and expanded its integrated coal supply
chain to the overseas.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In early 2022, the Russia-Ukraine war resulted in sanctions
imposed on Russian energy imports by many Western
countries. Energy supply in the global market suddenly
tightened, leading to shortages of coal. Countries around the
world actively sought new sources of coal imports. Overall,
global coal prices hovered at high levels in 2022 because of
the aforesaid, as well as various factors.

The policy of “ensuring supply and stabilizing prices”
implemented by the Chinese government became the central
tenet of the Chinese coal industry. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the volume of imported coal
amounted to 290 million tonnes in 2022, down 9.2% year-
on-year, while the production of raw coal amounted to 4,500
million tonnes in 2022, up 9% year-on-year. These figures
suggest that due to the complicated international situation
and fierce competition for imported coal, the domestic market
lessened its dependence on imported energy and instead
accelerated the growth of raw coal production. Meanwhile,
a slew of government measures to stabilize prices were
implemented effectively to stabilize domestic energy prices,
causing coal prices to rise within a reasonable range.

Construction Works for SDE Coal Mine

Among the development projects being pursued by the Group
in recent years, SDE Coal Mine has always been the Group’s
top priority. In the past year, with a view to putting SDE Coal
Mine into operation as soon as possible, the Group made
active preparations, including the construction of main shafts,
auxiliary shafts, ventilation shafts, roads and wharfs.

8 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 2 March 2022, PT Qinfa Mining Industri, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a construction contract
and a technical service contract (collectively, the “Construction
Contracts”) with Jiangsu Mining Engineering Group Co., Ltd.
CI#EBBETIREEARAA) (“Jiangsu Mining”), pursuant
to which Jiangsu Mining shall provide services including
construction of shafts and provision of project implementation
services at contract sum of RMB68 million.

In addition, on 18 November 2022, SDE, an indirect 70%
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a procurement contract with SUMEC Complete Equipment
& Engineering Co., Ltd. (“SUMEC Complete”), under which
SUMEC Complete agreed to sell 10 sets of diesel generator
and power plant ancillary equipment to SDE at a total
consideration of approximately RMB39 million.

Moreover, on 28 December 2022, Qingdao Qinfa Materials
Supply Limited (“Qingdao Qinfa”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a procurement
contract with Zhengzhou Coal Mining Machinery Group
Company Limited (*ZMJ”), under which ZMJ agreed to sell
the equipment to be purchased by Qingdao Qinfa under the
procurement contract, including, amongst others, shearers,
conveyors, and powered roof supports and to provide
technical support to Qingdao Qinfa at a total consideration of
approximately RMB156 million (including VAT).

The Construction Contracts and the procurement of equipment
under the two procurement contracts mentioned above were
part of the Group’s preparation for production and extraction of
underground coal reserve at SDE Coal Mine in Sungai Durian,
Kotabaru, South Kalimantan Province, Indonesia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

As of 31 December 2022, the Group owned five coal mines
in China and one coal mine in Indonesia. The table sets forth

certain information about these coal mines.

HEr—E—-——

F+A=+—RH  AEEEH
BEERERBAEENERA —ERE - TRET

EUREREOETER -

Production
Location Ownership Site area capacity Operation status
b B EEEDL HE EERN EEMRR
(million
(sg. km) tonnes)
(FRRE) (B &m)
Huameiao Energy — Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 4.25 1.5 Under operation
Xingtao Coal
FEXRELR - HEKE LTSN EEH
Huameiao Energy — Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.43 0.9 Under operation
Fengxi Coal
EXRER - BAEKE ILFEHAM EER
Huameiao Energy — Shuozhou Shanxi 80% 2.88 0.9 Under operation
Chongsheng Coal
FEEXRER - SIEE WLBEEM EEH
Shenda Energy — Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 4.01 0.9 Under development
Xinglong Coal (Temporarily suspended)
rpERLR - HELE g AT M FEH (EE)
Shenda Energy — Xinzhou Shanxi 100% 1.32 0.9 Under development
Hongyuan Coal (Temporarily suspended)
WERR - REEE g7 M FEp (EEF)
Sumber Daya Energi — Kalimantan, 70% 185 N/A  Under development
SDE Coal Indonesia
ENJENNE 5% TEA S

10 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWED N

COAL CHARACTERISTICS B E

Characteristics and typical commercial coal quality of the — ZN5EE K IE & FHEFT 4 2= 09 7 35 0 00 B e e s Ay
commercial coal produced by the Group’s operating mines are MBS 0T -

as follows:

Huameiao Shenda Shenda Sumber
Huameiao Huameiao Energy - Energy - Energy - Daya
Energy - Energy-  Chongsheng Xinglong Hongyuan Energi -
Xingtao Coal ~ Fengxi Coal Coal Coal Coal SDE Coal
Sumber
Daya
EXRER- FXRER- EXRER-  WERR-  BERR- Energi -
Coal Quality Characteristic & 45# R BERE RARE 2l 3E 8 RERRE SDE #¥%
Coal Seam KE 4,8,9,10, 11 4,911 49,1 2,5 2,56 B,D
Moisture (%) KA (%) 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 85 8-11
Ash (db, %) A (do * %) 20-28 20-28 20-28 21.45 30-72 22-25
Sulfur (db, %) SHE(db * %) 14-19 12-16 1.6-25 1.52 1.45 0.18-1.2

Calorific Value (average, BERMETY - TR/
kealfkg, net, ar) TR R a) 46505200  4,600-5150  4,600-5,150 4,838 4,187 5,300

“E 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRED T
OPERATING DATA BEEHE
Reserves and Resources HERERE
Huameiao Huameiao ~ Huameiao ~ Shenda ~ Shenda  Sumber
Energy—  Energy - Energy-  Energy-  Energy - Daya
Xingtao Fengxi Chongsheng  Xinglong Hongyuan  Energi-
Coal Coal Coal Coal Coal  SDE Coal Total
Sumber
EXR EXR EXR HE i Daya
R - B - B - R - #F-  Energi-
BRRE BRERE EREE  EBRE  ZERE  SDERX @t
Reserves e
Reserves as of 1 January (E-E-_%F-F—HBf
2022 (Mt) #E(EER)
- Proven reserves -BERRARE 10.23 = = = = - 1023
- Probable reserves - e 4.02 5.07 517 13.50 10.46 29300  331.22
Total reserves as of 1 January BE:-Z--F-f-H
2022 (Mt) MEHE(EER) 14.25 5.07 517 13.50 10.46 29300 34145
Less: Total raw coal production - FRREAES (B EMH)
for the year (Mt) (1.84) (2.26) (2.87) - - - (6.97)
Reserves as of 31 December ~ HEZ-E-__F+-A=1-H
2022 (M) WikE (58 12.4 2.81 2.30 13.50 10.46 293.00  334.48
Resources ERE(RAEHMN)
(measured + indicated)
Resources as of 1 January BE-S-—F-A—Bf
2022 (M) ERB(REM) 46.67 16.14 17.48 35.08 20.87 589.22  725.46
Less: Total raw coal production - FRREMES (B EM)
for the year (Mt) (1.84) (2.26) (2.87) - - - (6.97)
Resources as of 31 December ~HZ_-E__fF+-A=1-H
2022 (i) BRAR(ARE) 483 1388 1461 308 2087 5922 71849

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry AEBZE— BB LEZEER X RIRIEIORCS
consultant to estimate the total coal reserves and resources BlfEstR T ——F+=-A=+—HH/ESDE&
of the SDE Coal Mine in Indonesia as at 31 December 2021 in EHAKKHEERERE -

accordance with the JORC Code.

12 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWED N

The following table sets forth the full-year production figures at ~ ~N&RZ|IR EMlEBRFIRFENEFES RO

the abovementioned mines for the years indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—BHLEFE

2022 2021

—g-= —E-—F

’000 tonnes ‘000 tonnes

Raw coal production volume REEE F mg T g
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coall EXRLR - IR E 1,837 2,843
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal EXEELR - HAKE 2,259 3,790
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXBELR - SARE 2,870 2,889
Total st 6,966 9,522

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2022 2021

—Eg-= —E-—%F

’000 tonnes ‘000 tonnes

Commercial coal production volume (Note) &% = 2 (i &%) F W T8
Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal EXRAER - EEEE 1,188 1,848
Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal ERRER - BAEE 1,468 2,463
Huameiao Energy — Chongsheng Coal EXREER - SAEE 1,866 1,878
Total MBET 4,522 6,189

Note:  According to the competent person’s report issued on 29 March BREE -

2021, the historical operation of the Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and
Chongsheng Coal achieved an average of 65% of mixed marketable
raw coal yield.

RER-_Z_—F=ZA-TABELNAERALR

& EPEE  BERERSETTRENBEEETE

E|65%HRE A SHIREER ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE WD

Exploration, Mining and Development Expenses

The Group’s exploration, mining and development expenses
consist of the following amounts:

B FARKARER

AEENBHE  FRMAZERRRATERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Materials and consumables R KB R 115,022 105,913
Staff cost BTA 455,921 340,642
Utilities UNZEES 59,951 56,850
Overhead and others i YELi) 1,152,120 1,180,525
Evaluation fee HHE 1,054 586
Total BT 1,784,068 1,684,516
FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt % B
Revenue Uy &=
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
Coal business REIRETE 3,794,039 4,498,980
Shipping transportation fiEEs = 60,200
3,794,039 4,559,180
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Coal business

EEEWED

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—%F
’000 tonnes '000 tonnes
F 0 T g

Coal Handling and Trading Volume of HREBOREREERES S
Coal Business 4,528 6,115
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the volume of the HZE-ZTE-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE ~A£H

Group’s coal handling and trading decreased as compared
with 2021. The coal selling prices during the year ended 31
December 2022 were in range between RMB528 per tonne
and RMB1,295 per tonne, as compared to the coal selling
prices between RMB345 per tonne and RMB1,916 per tonne in
2021. Average coal selling price increased during the year.

The average coal selling price and the average monthly coal
handling and trading volume for each of the three years ended
31 December 2022 are set forth in the table below:

E’Jk%ﬁ,%«%&éﬁ%gf T —FHEMRD - &

B F+_A=+—BHIFEEXREEN
?tuﬁ/\ﬁm%zeﬁ?tu@;ﬁ/\Eﬁ%Lz%ﬁZFﬁ :
M- —FHEREENNTEMEAREI45
TEBBARKE19167T 2 c FHHEKEBRE
N_EF o

BE-_ZT-_—_F#+-_A=+—BLE=RAFE
Fo PR REEHETHERARRKEERES S
IR T &

b v

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLEE

2022 2021 2020
—E-= T —F —ZT-THF
Average coal selling price TR RERE
(RMB per tonne) (WA REIT) 838 736 367
Average monthly coal handling and FHEARRKERESE
trading volume ('000 tonnes) (Fmg) 377 510 497
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group sells blended coal which is sourced solely from the
PRC domestic markets to customers, including power plants
and coal traders. Most of the Group’s customers are located in
the coastal regions of China. Power plants purchase coal for
use in the combustion processes to produce steam for power
and heat. The following table sets forth information regarding
the Group’s revenue from coal business by industry segment
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021:

AEEGHES T BB AT SRENRRKEEK
BREETRERIRREZHERF - ARET
FEZEURFELEME - HERRBRTAR
MREERIE - MEAZRTANBEERER - TRH

FIARERBE_F-—FR-_F-—F+_A
=+ —BIEERERITES B85 R E B
AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—HLHEE

2022 2021

—Eg-= —E-—F
Percentage Percentage
Revenue of revenue Revenue of revenue
Vg3 1B B
& BO Uz Bkt
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
AR¥T T (%) ARETIT (%)
Power plants B 850,414 22.4 518,815 11.5
Coal traders HEXREZE 2,943,625 77.6 3,980,165 88.5
Total #ast 3,794,039 100 4,498,980 100.0

Shipping transportation MEZE

The segment revenue for shipping transportation from external #HE T - -+ - A=+—HB ILFE R B I

customers for the year ended 31 December 2022 was nil as
compared with RMB60.2 million in 2021. The Group disposed
all its vessels as at 31 December 2021.

16 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EEREEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWED N

Cost of Sales HER A&

Cost of sales of the Group in 2022 amounted to RMB2,5208 AXEBR T - FWHWHEERAABARE
million, representing a decrease of 4.0% compared with  2,520,800,0007T * & =& ——4% AK#2,618,100,000
RMB2,618.1 million in 2021. The cost remained constant. TORA4.0% © BXAFRT

The table below set forth the cost of sales of the coal business Nz &7k 2755 SPEI S ER ¢
segment:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
g —E-—%F
RMB million RMB million

ARWEEBRT AR¥BEET

Cost of purchase PRI AR - 9
Cost of coal transportation B R BB KA 737 890
Cost of self-produced coal B E R IR B 1,784 1,685
Materials, fuel, power FExE - RE S g 175 163
Staff costs BITRA 456 341
Depreciation and amortisation e B 8 958 724
Others HAh 195 457
Total cost of sales of coal business segment [ 2 75 2 86 # 48 84 & BUAR 2,521 2,584

The Group produced coal mainly from Shanxi province in the AS£EEXZEFRHILFEEERK - TR#AHE
PRC. The following table sets forth information regarding the BAEBENR T -_—FR_T - —FHHE R
Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and revenue in #9882 ERIRER

2022 and 2021:

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= T
Sales volume Revenue  Sales volume Revenue
tHe g tHE e
’000 tonnes RMB’000 '000 tonnes RMB’000
Origins of coal 1R % BB T g AR®ET T F-A ARBTT
China H 4,528 3,794,039 6,115 4,498,980

The Group has stable coal production and has established AEEHEEEEHNERLAELEETEREER
stable cooperative relationships with its key PRC domestic EFPEMN TETEAIEREK -
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit margin was 33.6% during the year
ended 31 December 2022 as compared with gross profit
margin of 42.6% during the same period in 2021. Gross profit
margin decreased mainly due to decrease in production
volume and revenue while cost of sales remained relatively
constant.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s other
income, gains and losses amounted to a net gain of RMB85.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately of RMB292.0
million, as compared with a net gain of RMB377.5 million in
2021. The decrease in other income, gains and losses in 2022
was mainly due to a decrease in net gain on the substantial/
non-substantial modification of borrowing from approximately
RMB238.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB42.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses decreased by 53.6% to RMB2.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, as compared with
RMB4.5 million in 2021. The decrease in distribution expenses
was due to no one-off commission expenses on the disposal of
vessels during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
administrative expenses amounted to RMB305.3 million,
representing an increase of 21.8%, as compared with
RMB250.7 million in 2021. The increase was mainly attributable
to the increase in staff costs. The Group strived to provide
competitive remuneration package to existing staffs.

Other Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
other expenses amounted to RMB27.9 million, representing
a decrease of 37.4%, as compared with RMB44.5 million in
2021. The decrease in other expenses was mainly due to
decrease in capital occupation fee and surcharge on resource
tax payment.

18 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2022 amounted to RMB253.7
million, representing a decrease of 29.7%, as compared with
RMB360.8 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to
repayment in borrowings.

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB456.5 million,
as compared with profit attributable to the equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB2.8 billion in 2021. The decrease in
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
mainly attributable to:

(i) COVID lockdown on transportation infrastructure
causing a decrease in the Group’s sale volume by over
60% in the fourth quarter of 2022 as compared to fourth
quarter of 2021;

(i) the absence of reversal of impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment and coal mining rights of
RMB2.3 billion for the year ended 31 December 2022,
as compared to such reversal being made for the year
ended 31 December 2021;

(iii) an increase in the depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of coal mining rights for
the year ended 31 December 2022 due to significant
reversal of impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment and coal mining rights as at 31 December
2021; and

(iv)  adecrease in net gain on the substantial/non-substantial
modification of borrowings from approximately
RMB238.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB42.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

EEEWED

Bt 9 R A F R

REBR -_E-—_FHNHBRANFEAARE
253,700,0007C * 8= F = —5F AR #360,800,000
TORA29.7% < BT EBHNEERBERTE o

FATFERFTE ARGER

BE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—RI-EEXQTE
= H AR ER A AR 456,500,0007T ¢ =
T —FRAREEFEABRGENEAAR
#:2,800,000,0007T °© AR EIEEFFA AEG R T
BPEBRR

() EFHERBETHEREARIIENTHE - B
AEBE T - —_FENFENHEESL -
T —FENFEHAIG60%A L

(il BEZZEZ—F+-_A=+—HIFEIE
BEME - BE MK ﬁu&ﬁ%hﬁgmm
HE18 A R#2 300,000,0007C © MEZE -F
T+ A=Zt+—BUFEAEL AR

[g] ;

(i) 2T -_—F+-_A=+—HIFE ¥
¥ . BE MR EITE LA S R R R
BATIEM - AR YE - BEREEHEUR

R REEAREBER _E-_—F+=_7
—+—HREER : &

(iv) (EEEXR FEAEIT 2RI FBEHRER
T F+_AZ+BHULEFEHAR
#238,700,000 TR EHE T - —F+
ZA=Z+—HEFEMNH AR 42,500,000
ik
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES AND CURRENT RATIO

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB4,155.8 million, compared with RMB2,709.1 million
as of 31 December 2021. The Group’s current ratio as of
31 December 2022 was 0.33, compared with 0.41 as of 31
December 2021. The current liabilities and current ratio was
worsen because certain borrowing is due in the next twelve
months. In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain
the Group as a going concern, the directors of the Company
have adopted several measures together with other measures
in progress as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred
an aggregate capital expenditure of RMB780.3 million (2021:
RMB157.9 million) mainly related to the purchase of plant
and equipment. Capital commitments contracted for but not
incurred by the Group as of 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB264.4 million (2021: RMB157.0 million), which were mainly
related to the purchase of plant and equipment.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies
and strives to maintain a healthy financial condition. The Group
funds its business operations and general working capital by
internally generated financial resources and bank and other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded net
current liabilities of RMB4,155.8 million (2021: RMB2,709.1
million).

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial
flexibility by diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium
term loans to replace short term loans. The Group is currently
negotiating with financial institutions to renew and extend
bank borrowings and consider ways to improve the Group’s
working capital. As of 31 December 2022, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB856.6 million (2021:
RMB1,030.4 million), and is remained constant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and other borrowings of
the Group amounting to RMB3,447.5 million (31 December
2021: RMB1,475.9 million) were classified as current liabilities.
Due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence of default
events (including the breach of cross default clauses), certain
bank and other borrowings with the aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,330.6 million (31 December
2021: RMB1,428.5 million), in which the aggregate amount of
RMB739.6 million (31 December 2021: RMB790.5 million) was
past due, and aggregate amounts of RMB536.0 million (31
December 2021: RMB577.0 million) were repayable within one
year and after one year respectively from the end of reporting
date based on the agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
respective loan agreements, had become due for immediate
repayment. The bank and other borrowings carried interest at
rates ranging from 4.91% to 7.8% (as at 31 December 2021:
5.66% to 8.8%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total banking
and other borrowing facilities of RMB3,520.8 million (2021:
RMB3,692.6 million), of which RMB3,520.8 million (2021:
RMB3,692.6 million) were utilised.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, mainly except amount of RMB3.4 million in United
States dollars (“USD”), amount of RMB0.6 million in HKD,
amount of RMB8.9 million in Indonesian Rupiah, amount of
RMB1.6 million in Euro, amount of RMB0.8 million in Singapore
Dollar, were held in RMB.

The gearing ratio (calculated as borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted
deposits divided by total assets) of the Group as at 31
December 2022 was 32.1% (2021: 33.7%). The gearing ratio
decreased due to repayment of loan during the year.

For the funding policy, the Group funds its working capital
and other capital requirements from a combination of various
sources, including but not limited to internal resource and
external borrowing at reasonable interest rates.

For the treasury policy, the Group adopts centralized
management on financing activities and prudent financial
management approach on the use of capital.

EEEWED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total banking and
other borrowing of RMB3,520.8 million (2021: RMB3,692.6
million), of which RMB74.7 million (2021: Nil) were made in
Euro and RMB3,446.1 million (2021: RMB3,692.6 million) were
made in RMB.

There has been no material change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year. The capital of the Group
companies are mainly the ordinary shares and perpetual
subordinated convertible securities (“PSCS”).

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in RMB, USD and Indonesian Rupiah. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB while overseas purchases are usually
denominated in USD and Indonesian Rupiah. The Group’s
subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence, the
Directors do not consider that the Group faces significant
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of RMB2,589.0 million (2021: RMB3,316.3 million) in
forms of property, plant and equipment, coal mining rights,
lease prepayments, inventories, trade and bill receivables and
bank deposits were pledged to banks and asset management
companies for credit facilities granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Fortune Pearl International Limited, which is wholly-owned by
Mr. Xu Jihua, the controlling shareholder, pledged 949,000,000
shares of the Company, representing approximately 38.06%
of the issued share capital of the Company, for the purpose of
securing the loans of approximately RMB2,008,380,000 as at
31 December 2022 owed by certain subsidiaries of the Group
to a creditor. In addition, pursuant to the debt restructuring
proposal, if there is any material change in the shareholding
of the Company held by the controlling shareholder of the
Company, the creditor shall have the right to withdraw the debt
reduction and the revised repayment schedule granted to the
Group. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 August 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND LITIGATIONS

Except for certain matters related to litigations disclosed in
Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group did
not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

FINAL DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2022

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As of 31 December 2022, the Group employed 3,067
employees. The Group has adopted a performance-based
reward system to motivate its staff and such system is reviewed
on a regular basis. In addition to the basic salaries, year-end
bonuses may be offered to staff members with outstanding
performance.
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Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are also
subject to central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. In accordance with the relevant national
and local labour and social welfare laws and regulations,
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are
required to pay on behalf of their employees a monthly social
insurance premium covering pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and other relevant
insurance. Subsidiaries of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund scheme,
if applicable, in accordance with Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance.

Moreover, the Company adopted a pre-IPO share option
scheme and a post-IPO share option scheme to incentivise
and retain staff members who have made contribution to
the success of the Group. The Directors believe that the
compensation packages offered by the Group to its staff
are competitive in comparison with market standards and
practices.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward to 2023, coal will still be a main source of
energy supply in China, serving as the “ballast stone” of the
country’s energy supply. The state policy of “ensuring supply”
will remain the central tenet in coal production. Given the
current release speed of high-quality production capacity
of coal mines located in the country’s major coal-producing
regions, as well as the coal mine construction projects being
pursued by various coal companies, it is expected that China’s
coal production will continue to increase in 2023. With its anti-
pandemic restrictions lifted and its economic fundamentals
remaining sound, China’s economic environment is expected
to recover rapidly in 2023. As a result, the coal market will
stabilize gradually, with coal prices fluctuating within a narrow
and reasonable range.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The success of its Indonesian project marked an important
milestone for the Group, as it demonstrated the Group’s
leap towards its long-term development goals as well as
the implementation of the Group’s development strategy.
Expediting the construction works for SDE Coal Mine will
remain the Group’s top priority. The Group will continue to
devote necessary resources to its coal business in Indonesia
and adjust its investments according to market changes in a
dynamic manner. As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 15 February 2023, SDE, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, successfully renewed its mining
business license. The renewed mining business license will
expire on 14 May 2034. The Group will provide shareholders
and potential investors of the Company with the latest business
update on SDE Coal Mine in Indonesia in due course.

Climate change is a serious issue that cannot be ignored.
The whole world needs to work together to cope with it. While
the Group is committed to bringing considerable returns to
its shareholders, it shoulders its social responsibilities as an
energy company and adheres to the state policy “to reach
peak carbon emissions by 2030, and to achieve carbon
neutrality by 2060”. With high-quality transformation and the
construction of intelligent coal mines as its development
goals, the Group will conscientiously implement the principles
and policies of green energy development, set specific
goals and provide action suggestions for environmental
protection and emissions reduction, and review the results
and progress annually. The Group will continue to promote
emissions reduction to meet the needs of the community and
stakeholders, and to become a sustainable energy company
and an important player in promoting the country’s low-carbon
transformation.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during
the financial year ended 31 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN WD

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB4,155,839,000. As at 31
December 2022, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB1,330,634,000 and approximately RMB219,718,000
respectively had been due for immediate payment. In addition,
as at 31 December 2022, there were several unsettled
litigations against the Group mainly requesting the Group to
repay certain payables with interest immediately.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD

An audit committee was established by the Board on 12 June
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The members of the audit committee of the
Board are the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2022.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Consolidated Financial
Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the coal operation
business involving coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering,
storage, blending of coal in the PRC. The principal activities of
the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review and outlook of the Group are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 8 to 26 of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group’s financial condition,
results of operation, businesses and prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as follows:

Risks of macroeconomic fluctuations and national policies

Coal industry is closely linked to the macroeconomy and
industrial regulatory policies. With current complex external
environment, there have been economic downward pressure
and relative measures by government. The Group will continue
to monitor the macroeconomic development and to adjust its
strategies to cope with the risks.

Risk of fluctuation on commodity price

International and domestic coal prices are affected by various
microeconomic factors, industrial factors, national policies,
market demand and supply, characteristics of coal and
volatility in prices of other raw materials for power generation
etc. The Group will flexibly adjust its strategies and implement
measures such as cost control to minimise the impact on profit
margin caused by fluctuation on coal price.
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Risk of safety production

The production process of coal mining involve complex
uncertainties that involve higher safety risks. The Group
continues to strengthen its safety management and control
system by implementing assessment on significant safety risks,
risk prevention measures, regular inspections, regular safety
production training, upgrade on automation of production
process, review of procedure on addressing potential safety
hazards and promotion of safety awareness among employee.

Risks of creditability and liquidity

Due to slowdown of domestic economy, the Group’s
customers may suffer from liquidity and cash flow problems
that will inevitably affect the recoverability of the Group’s trade
receivables and the Group’s liquidity. The Group will closely
monitor its credit exposure, continuously evaluate the collection
history of its customers, adjust the credit line and credit period
given to customers and closely monitor the Group’s liquidity
requirements on ongoing basis in order to maintain sufficient
reserves of cash for operational need.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The following table sets forth certain of our key financial ratios
as of the dates and for the years indicated.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

Notes 2022 2021
{iFsd === —E—
Profitability ratios BRI htb=
Gross profit margin ER= 1 33.6% 42.6%
Net profit/(loss) margin Fm ), (EE) X 2 12.9% 69.9%
Liquidity ratios REBESER
Current ratio BN E 3 0.33 0.41
Gearing ratio EEARLE 4 32.1% 33.7%
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Notes:

@)

The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit divided
by revenue for the year indicated and multiplied by 100%. Gross
profit margin is decreased due to decrease in production volume and
revenue while cost of sales remained relatively constant.

The calculation of net profit margin is based on profit/(loss) for the year
divided by revenue for the year indicated and multiplied by 100%. Net
profit/(loss) margin is decreased due to:

(i) COVID lockdown on transportation infrastructure causing a
decrease in the Group’s sale volume by over 60% in the fourth
quarter of 2022 as compared to fourth quarter of 2021;

(ii) the absence of reversal of impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment and coal mining rights of RMB2.3 billion for the
year ended 31 December 2022, as compared to such reversal
being made for the year ended 31 December 2021;

(iii) an increase in the depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of coal mining rights for the
year ended 31 December 2022 due to significant reversal of
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment and coal
mining rights as at 31 December 2021; and

(iv) a decrease in net gain on the substantial/non-substantial
modification of borrowings from approximately RMB238.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB42.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets divided by
current liabilities as of 31 December 2022. Current ratio was worsen
because certain borrowing is due in the next twelve months.

The calculation of gearing ratio is based on borrowings netted off sum
of cash and cash equivalents and pledged and restricted deposits
divided by total assets. The gearing ratio slightly decreased due to
repayment of loan during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental, social and governance policies of the Company
are listed out below. For details of environmental performance,
please refer to “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.

Environment

To strictly abide by environmental laws and regulations,
including but not limited to Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
Environmental Impact Assessment Law of PRC, Law of
the PRC on Promotion of Cleaner Production, Law of the
PRC on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law
of the PRC on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste, Law of the PRC on Energy
Conservation, and Renewable Energy Law of the PRC;
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To minimise the possible impact of our operations on
the environment by enhancing the efficiency of our
resource consumption, reducing our pollutant emissions
and improving our hazardous and non-hazardous waste
management;

To promote green production to reduce our carbon
footprint, and to build climate resilience into our
operations; and

To identify and assess climate change-related physical
risks and opportunities on a regular basis with a view to
developing appropriate response mechanisms.

Society

30

To strictly abide by society-related laws and regulations,
including but not limited to those related to corruption
and bribery, discrimination, confidentiality, conflicts of
interest, anti-competitive behaviour, money laundering,
health and safety as well as whistleblowing, such
as Testing Specifications for Coal Mine Safety, Coal
Mine Safety Procedures, Law of the PRC on the Coal
Industry, Law of PRC on the Prevention and Treatment
of Occupational Diseases, Provisions on the Prohibition
of Using Child Labour, Special Protection Regulations
for Juvenile Employees, Provisions on Prohibiting
Corruption and Bribery of the Criminal Law of PRC, and
Labour Law of the PRC;

To bring value to the communities in which we operate
and create long-term benefits for our employees,
customers and suppliers;

To build a safe and healthy, diverse and inclusive
working environment and provide fair learning
opportunities to our employees;

To practice responsible procurement, and exert
our influence on the supply chain to ensure that our

suppliers meet sustainability standards;

To provide quality coal products that meet and exceed
industry standards and sustainability requirements; and

To encourage our employees to actively fulfill their
social responsibilities at work and in their community.
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Governance

° To establish an ESG committee (the “ESG Committee”)
which is responsible for:

° Monitoring the implementation of this policy and
reviewing it from time to time,

° Approving changes or updates to this policy,
and
° Ensuring that responsible procurement is

practiced during our course of business and
along the entire supply chain, and that our
operations do not have a negative impact on
people and the environment;

° To collect stakeholders’ views on our sustainability
performance and make improvements to it;

° To maintain dialogues with our employees, suppliers
and customers, and properly handle ESG issues related
to the Group;

o To identify, on a regular basis, issues that have
significant economic, environmental and social impacts
on stakeholders and regions in which we operate, and
manage them properly; and

o To monitor and report on our sustainability performance
on a regular basis.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with customers to meet its immediate and long-
term business goals and development. Therefore, the Group
encourages smooth communication channels and customers
feedback for the Group’s continuous improvement on product
quality and timely transportation.

For details of communication channels with customers, please
refer to “Stakeholder Engagement” in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

For details of relationship with the employees and suppliers,
please refer to “Stakeholder Engagement”, “Responsible
Employment”, “Training and Development” and “Supply Chain
Management” in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The directors believe that the Group has complied in all
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that are
related to the business and operation of the Group. There was
no material breach of or non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which might have a significant impact on its
business.

The Group is subject to various laws and regulations such
as the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Property
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Coal Industry Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Law of PRC,
Provisions in the Prohibition of Using Child Labour. the Listing
Rules and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), etc. The
Group will continuously ensure compliance through closely
monitor on applicable law and regulations that may have a
significant impact on its business and operation.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 141
of this report.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the funds
in share premium account and contributed surplus are
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any
distributable reserves (2021: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years
ended 31 December 2022 and the Group’s assets, liabilities
and equity as at 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and
2022 are set out on page 5 of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2022 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAIl Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 March 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenquan
Mr. JING Dacheng

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall
have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article 83(3)
of the Articles shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are
to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. BAI Tao and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen will retire by rotation in
accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles. Mr. ZHAI Yifeng,
who was appointed by the Board on 1 March 2023, will retire in
accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles. Mr. BAlI Tao and
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-
election at the annual general meeting. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen due
to his work-reallocation, will not offer himself for re-election at
the annual general meeting. Upon the conclusion of the annual
general meeting to be held, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen will cease to be
an independent non-executive director and the chairman of
audit committee of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus),
the details of which are set for the in the paragraphs
under “Connected Transactions” below, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company and any of its
subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in which
a Director is or was materially interested or had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Board considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
as at the date of publication of the annual report are set out on
pages 61 to 67 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)), which were required (a) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company

EERBEITHRAERERS - HERORE
FHRCEERAR

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ' ARRAEFL&
BITHRABRARRREAEEZB(EREREHE
BIEST1EFZH RS RO ([FH KSR E
XVER) 2 B tn - MHEERH REHFTHES ()REE
H R E RO EIHEELHER AR ATFEE
MR S(b)REE ETHRBIMT &R+ ATE E T A R
ESETELFR G 2EETA(ZESTRIDEB

MARBI R R SRR IAT

RADT z#m

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

Number of shares of the Company (%)
EAERTERITREZBN
BRoEE BAOLE(%)

Long Short Long Short

Name of Director Nature of interest positions positions positions positions

EEgE EmME i) KRB He KRB

Mr. XU Da* Beneficial Owner 93,135,251 Nil 3.74 Nil

TRES LS EREEA i i

Mr. BAI Tao Beneficial Owner 50,000,000 Nil 2.01 Nil

HE5EE EnlEA A i i

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Beneficial owner (Note 1) 500,000 Nil 0.02 Nil

2185R 5 E EanEA A1) i "
Notes: fHsE -

1. The beneficial interest represents 500,000 shares that may be issued 1. BERERSEEARRR S —AFMNA=1THRIEE

pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
under the Share Option Scheme on 30 April 2015.

Mr. XU Da, being a Director, is also acting as the Chairman of the
Board.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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RZZEZZF+ZA=+—8 ' TIALTEGER
RBEEAREITBRABIINRARR ZHG KA
BIRGF  BARARBIREESFRBEIENE
33GIFTFE RS MRz S AR

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital of

Number of shares the Company (%)
HEATERITREZ
RO E AT D (%)
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Long Short Long Short
positions positions positions positions

REREE s Hr KRR Ha KA
Mr. XU Jihua (Note 1) Beneficial owner 14,229,610 Nil 0.57 Nil
REERE ) ERERA e i

Interest in a controlled

corporation 1,301,000,000 Nil 52.18

NS NI E e
Fortune Pearl International Beneficial owner

Limited (Note 1) 1,301,000,000 Nil 52.18 Nil
PREREGRAR MR BEREAA i i
Yangyuan Jintong Beneficial owner

Transportation Corp.

Ltd. 215,000,000 Nil 8.62 Nil
BIREBYRAR AR EmEAA i i
Note: FizE -

1. Mr. XU Jihua is the father of Mr. XU Da. Mr. XU Da is the chairman and 1. BREEEERBELENNE - RELERAEEN

an executive Director of the Group. Mr. XU Jihua is interested in 100%
shareholding of Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”),
which in turn is interested in 1,183,000,000 shares and 118,000,000
shares which may be allotted and issued upon full conversion of the
PSCS held directly by Fortune Pearl. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Jihua
is deemed to have interests in the shares so held by Fortune Pearl.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

IFERPTES -BGREELEHREEREBERA
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme detailed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debts securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any
other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

PERPETUAL SUBORDINATED CONVERTIBLE
SECURITIES

The Company had outstanding PSCS in the principal amount
of HKD194,700,000 as at 31 December 2022, which was
convertible into ordinary shares in the Company at the initial
conversion price of HKD1.65 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments). Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion
rights attaching to the PSCS at the initial conversion price,
a total of 118,000,000 conversion shares will be issued. The
PSCS were held by Fortune Pearl. The sole ultimate beneficial
owner of the Fortune Pearl is Mr. Xu Jihua, who is the father of
Mr. Xu Da and the controlling shareholder of the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s
companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant
company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses
and liabilities incurred by him or her in the execution and
discharge of his or her duties or in relation thereto pursuant
to their respective Articles of Associations. Such provisions
were in force during the course of the financial year ended 31
December 2022 and remained in force as of the date of this
report.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has
adopted a performance based rewarding system to motivate
its employees and such system is reviewed on a regular basis.
In addition to the basic salaries, year end bonuses will be
offered to those staff members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group
are decided by the remuneration committee of the Board,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
experience, performance and responsibility, and the
compensation levels adopted by companies of comparable
size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Board, having regard to the
compensation levels adopted by companies of similar size
engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes
12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DONATIONS
During the year, RMB4,248,000 charitable donations were

made by the Group (2021: RMB1,049,000) to enhance social
development in various aspects.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

T BUR

AEENHFHERRARERERR  BE  BF
MFTRBENENADNRELREES - REBIES - &
KSECRA-ENRRASERZ EEHE A TE B
B2 EETRE - REAF2IN  AREHRA
RV RH) B TIREFLIEA -

BN FTAEESREEE2HFMAEETS 25 M
ZESRBAKBEZEERE  BALR KA
RBE - MEERUEBALRBRBRE Z#H
BRFMERE °

ENTEEZHFMAETE 2HMZESREN
FROUXEBALRBRABARBZHFRKFME

;'_Eo

AEFEEFHWMAERSFMHATHFBER
REVBMRMF12R13 °

EEEHN

FR - AR TEREEEBIIMNEEERKZ
EERITHITERINTFEEMEL -

B

TR AEBEHESBRAREA4,248,0007T

(ZZ=—F | AR%1,049,0007T) * AR #ELE
EXTEER -

ZZE-F4%3% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 39



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSE

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers were
as follows:

TEHEBRER

AEBTXEHERAMEFPMERELRHEEZA
DEI

Purchases RIBRE
~ the largest supplier - RAHER 32.8%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate - AREEREE 54.1%
Sales SHER
— the largest customer -mARF 25.6%
—five largest customers in aggregate -RAREFEF 86.1%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company'’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Proposed amendments to the existing non-competition
undertakings

On 30 September 2022, Fortune Pearl International Limited
(“Fortune Pearl”), Mr. Xu Jihua and Mr. Xu Da (collectively,
the “Covenantors”) and the Company entered into a deed
of non-competition (as amended and supplemented by a
supplemental deed of non-competition dated 10 October 2022)
(the “2022 Deed of Non-Competition”) to amend the deed of
non-competition dated 12 June 2009 (the “2009 Deed of Non-
Competition”) entered into by Fortune Pearl, Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms.
Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Mr. Weng Li, Mr. Liu Jingwei, Ms.
Zhou Lusha and Ms. Liu Xiaomei (the “Initial Covenantors”)
and the Company.
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The 2022 Deed of Non-Competition was entered into to
safeguard the interests of the future development of the
Company, re-define each party’s rights and duties and
enhance the procedures of referral of business opportunities
by the Covenantors having considered that over 13 years
have passed since the 2009 Deed of Non-Competition was
executed and certain Initial Covenantors, namely Ms. Wang
Jianfei, Mr. Weng Li, Mr. Liu Jingwei, Ms. Zhou Lusha and Ms.
Liu Xiaomei, have ceased to be the controlling shareholders of
the Company or executive Director and hence their obligations
under the 2009 Deed of Non-Competition have ceased.

Fortune Pearl and Mr. Xu Jihua are the controlling shareholders
of the Company, and Mr. Xu Da is an executive Director of the
Company and thus each of them is a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
entering into of the 2022 Deed of Non-Competition constituted
a connected transaction of the Company, which was subject
to the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. At the extraordinary general meeting held on
31 October 2022, the 2022 Deed of Non-Competition was duly
approved by independent shareholders by way of poll.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 30 September 2022, 10 October 2022 and 31 October
2022.
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The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions
that are exempted under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules)
during the year ended 31 December 2022:

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, each member of the China Qinfa Group (as defined
in the Prospectus), and their respective equity interest holders
(which include Mr. XU Jihua, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and
Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all being the then Controlling Shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Prospectus)) entered into
the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a
term of 10 years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to
pay an annual fee of RMB10,000 to each member of the China
Qinfa Group for the exclusive management and operation
of the coal operation business and the inland shipping
transportation business of the China Qinfa Group, and all
economic benefits and risks arising from the business of the
China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to the Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules to the Company
for all transactions under the Structure Contracts from
strict compliance with the applicable announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed
that the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions
for the Company were entered into: (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of the Group’s business; (ii) in accordance
with the terms of the respective agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and (iii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable to the Group than those available to or from
independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have
conducted an annual review on the Structure Contracts and
have confirmed that (i) the transactions carried out during
2022 have been entered into in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business; (ii) the transactions carried out during
2022 have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Structure Contracts and so that all revenue
generated by China Qinfa Group has been retained by Qinfa
Logistics; (iii) any new contracts or renewed contracts have
been entered into on the same terms as the existing Structure
Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group is
concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole;
and (iv) no dividends or other distributions have been made by
any member of China Qinfa Group to its equity interest holders.
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The Group comprises China Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus) and Hong Kong Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus). Having considered the demand for coal imported
from overseas into China and the expansion of the Group’s
overseas coal operation business, the Directors strategically
planned to centralise the management and operation of the
Group’s coal business in China and overseas markets and
determined that Hong Kong Qinfa Group should manage
and operate the coal operation business in China through
the establishment of Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), a member of Hong Kong Qinfa Group and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in February
2008.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, after verbal consultations
with the relevant PRC governmental authorities at Zhuhai at
which the Group operated its coal business, the Directors
understood that the PRC governmental authorities did not
grant Coal Operation Certificates to foreign equity controlled
companies as a matter of practice. In addition, according
to the relevant provisions of (i) the Catalog of Industries for
Encouraged Foreign Investment (2019 Edition), the domestic
waterway transport industry is not included in the category of
encouraged foreign investment; (ii) the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access
(2019 Edition) (the “Negative List (2019 Edition)”), a domestic
waterway transportation company shall be controlled by
PRC parties; and (iii) the Regulations on the Management of
Domestic Waterway Transportation revised on 24 February
2020, the PRC government implements an administrative
licensing system for relevant companies engaged in domestic
waterway transportation business, while reviewing the foreign
shareholders and their proportion of shareholding in the
company according to the above-mentioned Negative List
(2019 Edition). If the proportion does not meet the requirements
of the Negative List (2019 Edition), such administrative licenses
cannot be obtained. These views had been confirmed by the
PRC legal advisers of the Company.
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In order to allow Hong Kong Qinfa Group to manage and
operate the coal operation business in China, the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements (as defined in the
Prospectus) (collectively the “Structure Contracts”) were
entered into under which all the business activities of China
Qinfa Group are managed and operated by Qinfa Logistics
and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreements dated 25 October
2010, 15 December 2010 and 17 December 2010, equity
interests of Qinhuangdao Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., Yangyuan
Guotong Coal Trading and Transportation Co., Ltd. and
Datong Xiejiazhuang Jinfa Trading and Transportation
Co., Ltd have been transferred to the Group. As of 31
December 2022, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading”) and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., Ltd. (“Zhuhai
Qinfa Shipping”) remained controlled by the Group under the
Structure Contracts. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
of the Company, foreign investment is allowed to operate
coal trading business according to the Guidance of Foreign
Investment (Amended 2017). As such, the Company proposes
to unwind the contractual arrangement of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
in due course. In addition, as the business scope set out in
the Business License for Corporation of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and the general cargo ship transportation it actually engaged
in domestic coastal regions and central and downstream
Yangtze River regions are managed under the Negative
List, the operating entity shall be controlled by PRC parties.
Accordingly, Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping still needs to sign relevant
framework agreements with Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd.
and/or other entities to meet compliance requirements.
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Mr. Xu Jihua, Ms Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping entered into the Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements on 12 June 2009.
Qinfa Logistics is entitled to all the revenue of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping after deducting all relevant
costs and expenses (including taxes) and has the right to
acquire any or all of the equity interests and/or assets of
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest
possible amount and at such time as permitted by the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. All equity holders of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping have granted to Qinfa
Logistics a pledge over the equity interests in equity holders
for the purpose of securing the performance of the contractual
obligations under the Structure Contracts. Any amendment to
the Structure Contracts shall be subject to the approvals of
(i) the directors nominated by Qinfa Logistics to Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, and (ii) for the purpose
of promoting good corporate governance, the shareholders in
general meeting. No amendments to the Structure Contracts
can be made unless required under the Listing Rules or
approved by Qinfa Logistics in writing in advance. For
details of the Structure Contracts, please refer to the section
headed “Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the
Prospectus.

The Structure Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the financial
results of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping
and economic benefits of their business to flow onto Qinfa
Logistics. In addition, all the directors in Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are to be nominated by Qinfa
Logistics. Through its control over the directors of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping, Qinfa Logistics is
able to monitor, supervise and effectively control the business,
operations and financial policies of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping so as to ensure due implementation of
the Structure Contracts. The Structure Contracts also enable
Qinfa Logistics to exercise control over and to acquire the
equity interests and/or assets of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping at the lowest value and at such time
as permitted by the relevant PRC laws and regulations with
an undertaking from the Controlling Shareholders to provide
to Qinfa Logistics all the consideration received pursuant to
any such acquisition. Based on the Structure Contracts, the
Directors consider that, notwithstanding the lack of equity
ownership between members of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and
Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping and Hong Kong Qinfa Group, Qinfa
Logistics is entitled to control the business of Zhuhai Qinfa
Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping in substance. On this
basis, the financial position and operating results of Zhuhai
Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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As a result of the Structure Contracts, Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping are accounted for as the
Company’s subsidiaries, and their financial position and
operating results are consolidated in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The revenue and total asset value subject
to the arrangements under the Structure Contracts amounted
to approximately RMB11,464,000 (2021: RMB916,053,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and approximately
RMB127,382,000 (2021: RMB136,030,000) as of 31 December
2022, respectively.

The Structure Contracts are governed by the PRC laws and
provide for the resolution of disputes through arbitration in
accordance with the arbitration rules of China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in force at that
time (the “CIETAC Arbitration Rules”) in China. Accordingly,
the Structure Contracts would be interpreted in accordance
with the PRC law and any disputes would be finally resolved by
arbitration in accordance with the CIETAC Arbitration Rules.

There are risks involved with the operation of the Group
under the Structure Contracts. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, if the Structure Contracts are considered to be in
breach of any existing or future PRC laws or regulations, the
relevant regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such breach, including:

- imposing economic penalties;

- discontinuing or restricting the operations of Hong Kong
Qinfa Group or Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa

Shipping;

- imposing conditions or requirements in respect of the
Structure Contracts with which Zhuhai Qinfa Trading
and Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping may not be able to comply;

- requiring the Group to restructure the relevant
ownership structure or operations;

- taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that
could adversely affect the business of the Group; and
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- revoking the business licences and/or the licences or
certificates of Zhuhai Qinfa Trading and Zhuhai Qinfa
Shipping and/or voiding the Structure Contracts.

The Group takes the following measures to mitigate the
risk and to ensure proper implementation of the Structure
Contracts:

(a) as part of the internal control measures, major issues
arising from implementation and performance of the
Structure Contracts are reviewed by the board of
directors of Qinfa Logistics on a regular basis which is
no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;

(b) matters relating to compliance and regulatory enquiries
from governmental authorities (if any) are discussed at
such regular meetings which is no less frequent than on
a quarterly basis; and

(c) the relevant business units and operation divisions of
the Hong Kong Qinfa Group report regularly, which is
no less frequent than on a monthly basis, to the senior
management of Qinfa Logistics on the compliance and
performance conditions under the Structure Contracts
and other related matters.

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
contractual arrangements under the Structure Contracts
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted,
and their impact on the Group. The Board also confirmed
that save for the removal of restrictions on foreign equity
controlled companies to operate coal trading business as
disclosed above, there is no removal of restrictions that led
to the adoption of the Structure Contracts. The Engagement
Agreements and the Pledge Agreements were renewed on 12
June 2019.
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The Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) (the "Foreign Investment Law"), the
Regulations on the Implementation of the Foreign Investment
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the "Implementation
Regulations") and the Interpretation of the Supreme People’s
Court on Several Issues Concerning the Application of
the Foreign Investment Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the "Judicial Interpretation"), which came into force
simultaneously on 1 January 2020, have not been updated.
However, the National Development and Reform Commission
and the Ministry of Commerce issued Order No. 47 and
Order No. 48 on 27 December 2021, thereby promulgating
respectively the Special Administrative Measures (Negative
List) for Foreign Investment Access (2021 Edition) and the
Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for Foreign
Investment Access in Pilot Free Trade Zones (2021 Edition),
effective 1 January 2022, while the Special Administrative
Measures (Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access
(2020 Edition) and the Special Administrative Measures
(Negative List) for Foreign Investment Access in Pilot Free
Trade Zones (2020 Edition) will be repealed on the same
date. General cargo shipping in Chinese coastal cities and
the middle and lower reaches of the Yangtze River is still on
the 2021 edition of the negative list for foreign investment
access, as an operating entity in such business is required
to be controlled by a Chinese party. On 17 February 2023,
the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC) issued
the “Trial Administrative Measures for the Overseas Issuance
and Listing of Securities by Domestic Companies” (the “Trial
Administrative Measures”) with five supporting guidelines
(the “Filing System”), with effect from 31 March 2023. The
“Trial Administrative Measures” and the Filing System above
stipulate that these measures and this system apply to both
domestic companies that seek to be listed directly (i.e. H-share
companies) and those that seek to be listed indirectly (i.e.
“red-chip” companies, as they are commonly known in the
industry, including companies operating with a variable interest
entity (“VIE”) structure), and these companies are required
to go through the filing procedure with the CSRC. They are
required to file their overseas listing application with the CSRC
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within 3 working days after submitting their application. The
CSRC will issue a filing notice and publicize it on its website
within 20 working days after receiving all the information.
Regarding the filing management of VIE-structured companies,
the CSRC, when answering reporters’ questions, mentioned
that “for the overseas listing of VIE-structured companies, the
filing management will adhere to the principles of marketization
and the rule of law to enhance regulatory coordination. The
CSRC will solicit opinions from relevant competent authorities,
file for the overseas listing of VIE-structured companies that
meet compliance requirements, and support companies to
use two markets and two kinds of resources to develop and
grow.” Thus, it is clear that a VIE-structure company must
complete the filing procedure before it is eligible to be listed
overseas. In that case, a VIE-structured company may not be
eligible to be listed overseas if the CSRC refuses to accept
its filing. In answering reporters’ questions, the CSRC also
expressly stated that “they will adhere to the principle of non-
retroactivity of laws, prioritize stability, and seek progress in
stability, thereby ensuring the smooth implementation of our
filing management". Thus, it is understood that a company that
has already been listed will not be liable for its past listing.
When answering reporter’s questions, the CSRC made it
clear that “companies that have already been listed overseas
when the ‘Trial Administrative Measures’ come into effect will
be regarded as existing companies, and existing companies
are not required to file with us immediately. These companies
only need to file with us as required for any subsequent filing
matters such as refinancing.” Further interpretations of the
PRC government in future on legal systems governing foreign
investment may also bring uncertainties to the Company’s
corporate structure, subsidiary management, corporate
governance and business operations.

The Company will pay close attention to the implementation
and possible further interpretation of the Foreign Investment
Law by the relevant PRC authorities, and will engage legal
advisors and industry consultants to provide opinions on the
impact and possible solutions to ensure timely compliance
with the Foreign Investment Law by making necessary
responses and adjustments to its implementation and further
interpretation.
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Details of the related party transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. The related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38(b), the transactions with
Qinfa Industry as disclosed in note 38(a) and the remuneration
to the directors of the Company, which formed part of the
“Key management personnel remuneration” described in note
38(d) to the consolidated financial statements constituted
exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and accordingly, are exempted from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed above, the other related party
transactions as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements did not constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The PSCS was approved by the independent shareholders on
31 December 2012. In view of the current financial position of
the Company, the Company elected to distribute payments of
approximately HKD5,841,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 pursuant to the terms of the PSCS.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and a Share Option Scheme (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”)
on 12 June 2009 and a Share Option Scheme on 27 June 2018
(the “2018 Share Option Scheme”). The principal terms of the
schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed
on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme whereby employees and directors of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for shares on the
same day.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

AEEBE_T - _F+-_A=1T—HILFEN
BB R 5 HIBHNRE M IEHRAM LIS - T
38(b)TMEMRET X5 « Mi5E38(a)FTIKFE A
REBEENRXZARBRKEI8(d)Fl R E
BEALME ] —MoMARAEEHEBEX L
MRAUFETHARE TR RFERERS |
SRR ET EHRRNE T NARTIE THORER
e BREXFBEEEIN  SRAaMBHHRRIES
PIRBEE M X5 AMEXK EmRAE L+
MAER THEEXZAFEBERS - KAF
RERELMRUNETOAZTETHBRER
T o

KARBAIBRBLER - E——F+_A=+—
AER T REE - ER AR IR IR
NBHEZZ_F+A=1+—RHLEE K
A ENRIBR IR K AR R ]I ARE FHF A IER D IR A
5,841,000 T °

EERR - ARAEETRELTRAE A
BIZWBRTE -

B REST &

ARFRBERZBEZNFNAT-HEMHRNAFH
BERNBERETEREREFE(ZESNEE
BETEDER-_ZE—N\FAAAZ-+EHRNE
R EI (T — N FREREE]) - 25518
BEZEFAT -

BERDMREABRETS
REE—RRR -_FZENAF AT _ABBNE
EORBER - ARARMERAFEERBRE

g Bt AREREREFNAREETRE
B O RER o

ZEZZFF ANNUAL REPORT 2022 51



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERSE

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognise the contribution by certain employees towards the
growth of the Group and/or the listing of the shares on the
Stock Exchange. The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are substantially the same as the terms of the
Share Option Scheme, except that:

(i) the exercise price per share; and

(i) the total number of shares which may be issued
pursuant to options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right
to do so has been terminated upon the listing of the shares on
the Stock Exchange.

Share Option Schemes

On 12 June 2009, the Company adopted the 2009 Share
Option Scheme which shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 12 June 2009. The Company
has terminated the 2009 Share Option Scheme and adopted
the 2018 Share Option Scheme pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the general meeting on 27
June 2018. The 2018 Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years commencing from 27
June 2018. No further options can be granted pursuant to the
2009 Share Option Scheme. Nonetheless, options granted
prior to the termination of the 2009 Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
rules of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. No share options had
been granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme since its
adoption. The major terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme
and the 2018 Share Option Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”), which are substantially the same, are set
out below.
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The purpose of the Share Option Schemes is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons (including full time
or part time employees, executive, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors of our Group) for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of, the Company and to enable the Company and its
subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber employees.

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the shares
on the date of the offer; and (iii) the average closing price of
the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer.

The total number of shares issued and which may be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme to an employee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of this limit shall be subject to the approval of
shareholders in a general meeting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to be
determined by the Board, which shall not in any event exceed
ten years from the date of grant. The Share Option Schemes
do not specify any minimum holding period. The acceptance
of an offer must be made within 30 days from the date of offer
with a non-refundable payment of HKD1.00.

On 17 January 2012, the Company has granted share options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196 new
ordinary shares of the Company under the 2009 Share Option
Scheme to 15 eligible participants of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme at the exercise price HKD1.50 per share (which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HKD1.50 per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HKD1.392
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of HKDO0.10 per share).
The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 17 January
2012 to 16 January 2022. None of the Grantees is a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of any of them.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16
January 2013, 40% of the total number of Options
granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16
January 2014, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16
January 2015, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him.

On 30 April 2015, the Company has further granted Options
to subscribe for a total of 157,500,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company under the 2009 Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants of the 2009 Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price HKDO0.485 per share (which represents the highest of (i)
the closing price of HKDO0.485 per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of HKD0.484 per share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of HKDO.10 per share). The Options are valid
for a period of 10 years from 30 April 2015 to 29 April 2025.
Among the total of 157,500,000 Options granted at the date of
grant, 1,500,000 Options were granted to the Directors, and
156,000,000 Options were granted to eligible participants who
were not directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company, nor an associate (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of any of them. Among the eligible participants of
156,000,000 Options granted, two eligible participants with
22,000,000 Options granted to them were subsequently
appointed as Director on 12 April 2017. Among the 23,500,000
Options granted to Directors, 23,000,000 Options were lapsed
upon resignation of Directors on 4 May 2018, 21 September
2018, 3 April 2019 and 5 March 2021.
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The Options may be exercisable at any time during the option
period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(a) in respect of the period from 30 April 2015 to 29 April
2016, 40% of the total number of Options granted to
him;

(b) in respect of the period from 30 April 2016 to 29 April
2017, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 30 April 2017 to 29 April
2018, 30% of the total number of Options granted to
him.

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BRERNBREA WA ERITE - AR
ABRRATHETENBRERSEE

(a) BZZE-—OHFOA=+THRBRE-_ZT—RF
MA-Zt+HhALL FEEBRERHNE
PR M 40%

(b) BE-ZEZ—RNFNA=+HREE-_ZT—+F
WMAZ+NBIE TEBERERHNE
MEAEEHHI30% : N

() BZZE—tFWA=+THEREZZ—N\F
MAZ+ARLE  TSBBRAEELMNE
IR 4R B H30% ©

B-TTNFBRE SR DR RITEBRE
R — SR BHEIIIT ¢

ZEZZFF ANNUAL REPORT 2022

95



96

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHRE
Number of share options outstanding
HRTERREHR
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2022 the year 2022  price HKD  Exercise period (%)
7 fERRRE
R it S BITRA
b 2 +=8 BB
SHEER /KA REEH -B-B REARX¥ =t-B EEET TEH (%)
Independent non-
executive Director
BUFBTES
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 500,000 - 500,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 0.02
BRI “Z-HA¥NA=TA 29/04/2025
—T-1%
MA=+RHZE
“Z-R%F
mA=+hH
Sub-total 500,000 - 500,000 0.02
it
Employees 17 January 2012 1,482,228 (1,482,228) - 150  17/01/2012t0 Nil
= “E2-—%—-A+tA 16/01/2022 &
“T-CF
—At++RE
—E--F
—A+7H
30 April 2015 44,000,000 - 44,000,000 0.485  30/04/2015 to 1.76
“Z-H¥NA=TA 29/04/2025
1%
mMA=+RHZE
“Z-R%E
mA=-t+hH
Sub-total 45,482,228  (1,482,228) 44,000,000 1.76
et

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Number of share options outstanding

HRTERREHE
Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
At Lapsed At 31 of the
Category/Name of 1 January during  December Exercise Company
participant Date of grant 2022 the year 2022  price HKD  Exercise period (%)
7 fERRRE
R it St 3 BITRA
kSt 3 +=A BOEI
SHEER /KA REHEH -B-B REARX¥ =t-B OEEExT TEH (%)
Total 45982,228  (1,482,228) 44,500,000 1.78
&t
Notes: B 5E

The fair value of options granted on 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 under
2009 Share Option Scheme respectively was determined using the “Binomial
Option Pricing Model”. The significant inputs into the model were:

. risk-free rate of return — 1.51% and 1.64% per annum respectively;

. forecast fluctuations in share price — 55.31% and 53.89% respectively;
and

. forecast dividend yield = 2.11% and 0% per annum respectively.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing
Model”, the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the
grant date (i.e. 17 January 2012 and 30 April 2015 respectively)
was approximately HKD11,642,000 and HKD28,667,000. The
“Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the
fair value of options and is a common choice among various
option pricing models for assessing the fair value of options.
The value of the options depends on the valuation arrived at
based on certain subjective assumptions on variables. Any
changes in the variables used may cause a substantial effect
on the assessment of the fair value of the options.

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of share options
outstanding under the 2009 Share Option Scheme was
44,500,000. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
share options had been granted or cancelled under the 2009
Share Option Scheme. No further options can be granted
pursuant to the 2009 Share Option Scheme.
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As at 31 December 2022, there was no outstanding share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No share
options had been granted under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption and there was no outstanding share
option under the 2018 Share Option Scheme as at 1 January
2022 and 31 December 2022, respectively. The number of
share options available for grant under the scheme mandate
of the 2018 Share Option Scheme was 249,341,398 as at 1
January 2022 and 31 December 2022, respectively. As at
the date of this annual report, the number of securities of the
Company available for issue under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 249,341,398, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB3,520.8
million. Particulars of the bank and other borrowings are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float with at least
25% of the shares held by the public as required by the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business
apart from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to
compete (either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Fortune Pearl, Mr. Xu Jihua,
Ms. Wang Jianfei, Mr. Xu Da, Mr. Weng Li, Mr. Liu Jingwei, Ms.
Zhou Lusha and Ms. Liu Xiaomei (the “Initial Covenantors”)
entered into the deed of non-competition dated 12 June
2009 (the “2009 Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the
Company.
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On 30 September 2022, the Company and Fortune Pearl,
Mr. Xu Jihua and Mr. Xu Da (collectively, the “Covenantors”)
entered into a deed of non-competition (as amended
and supplemented by a supplemental deed of non-
competition dated 10 October 2022) (the “2022 Deed of
Non-Competition”) to amend the existing non-competition
undertakings and supersede the 2009 Deed of Non-
Competition. The Covenantors have provided the Group with
written confirmations that they and their associates (other than
members of the Group) have fully complied with the 2009 Deed
of Non-Competition and the 2022 Deed of Non-Competition
(collectively, the “Deeds of Non-Competition”) throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the Deeds
of Non-Competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first
rights of refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders on
their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Covenantors
and their respective close associates did not direct any
Business Opportunity (as defined in the Deeds of Non-
Competition) to the Group. Therefore, the independent non-
executive Directors did not conduct any review on the decision
made in relation to Business Opportunity.

TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES

Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be
subject to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on
each of the purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor)
is 0.13% of the consideration or, if greater, the fair value of
the shares being bought/sold or transferred (rounded up to
the nearest HKD’000). In addition, a fixed duty of HKD5.00 is
currently payable on an instrument of transfer of shares.
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Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from
Cayman Islands stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they
are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax
relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasised that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding,
disposal of or dealing in such shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,

XU Da

Chairman

Guangzhou, 29 March 2023
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management as at the
date of publication of this report are set out below:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. XU Da (f&3), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. XU is also the Chairman of
the Group and the Chairman of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Committee of the Board. Mr. XU achieved
a bachelor degree in 2008. Mr. XU has more than 10 years
of working experience in the Group. He joined the Group as
import and export manager in 2009. Mr. XU did not hold other
directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years.

Mr. BAlI Tao (A&), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director on 9 October 2014. Mr. BAI is also the
Chief Executive Officer and a member of the remuneration
committee, nomination committee and the Environmental,
Social and Governance Committee of the Board. Mr. BAI is
principally responsible for the Group’s overall management
and operation. Mr. BAI graduated from Cardiff University with a
bachelor and master degree in civil engineering. In 2022, Mr.
BAI obtained a master degree in business administration from
Tsinghua University. Mr. BAl has more than 5 years of working
experience in construction project management. He joined the
Group as general manager of Zhuhai Henggin Coal Exchange
Centre in 2012. Prior to joining the Group in 2012, Mr. BAI
worked as a manager of engineering management department
in a company listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. BAI
did not hold other directorship in any listed companies during
the last three years.

Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (ZfXI£), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 March 2023. Mr. ZHAI is also a member
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Board. Mr. ZHAI joined the Group in 2008 and is currently the
vice president of the Group and the chairman of the sales and
logistics department of the Group, responsible for overseeing
the logistics and sales of coal. Mr. ZHAI is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. ZHAI has over 14
years of experience in coal marketing and coal import-export
business. Mr. ZHAI did not hold any directorship in any other
listed companies in the past three years.
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Mr. TAN Yingzhong (FEBLE), aged 60, was appointed as
an executive Director from April 2021 to 1 March 2023. Mr.
TAN was also the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
a member of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee and he resigned from all positions of the Group with
effect from 1 March 2023. Mr. TAN joined the Group on 5 June
2018, during the period who has served as the Group’s Chief
Accountant. Mr. TAN graduated from the Central University of
Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics
and management in 1998, and obtained a master’'s degree
from Nankai University upon completion of the postgraduate
programme in business administration in 2007. Mr. TAN has
over 30 years of experience in senior financial management
positions at the headquarters of enormous energy enterprise
conglomerates and their affiliated companies. Throughout
1986 to 2018, Mr. TAN had worked for Shenhua Group, who
held several key financial positions such as the deputy general
manager of the financial department of Shenhua Group, as well
as concurrent positions such as the deputy general manager,
chief financial officer and chief accountant of affiliated
companies thereof. During that period, he obtained 9 nationa
invention patents and 18 copyrights. He led the project for
establishment of the ERP/BCSBW information system which
won the 2014 CSUA Golden Dragon Award. Mr. TAN was
mainly responsible for the Group’s financial duties. Mr. TAN
did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies in
the past three years
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2185)%), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of science in Business
Administration from Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as well as a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. LAU has been
serving as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since April 2003. Prior to
joining Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was the
financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board, for over three years and
had worked with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong
for five years. Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(“Dragon Crown”) on 30 November 2010. Dragon Crown was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 June
2011. From 26 September 2014 to 22 June 2020. Mr. LAU was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Directors of SDM
Group Holdings Limited (“SDM Group”), SDM Group was listed
on GEM Board of the Stock Exchange on 13 October 2014.
From 7 May 2018 to 19 July 2021, Mr. LAU was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of CTEH Inc. (stock
code:1620). Save as disclosed above, Mr. LAU did not hold
any directorship in other listed companies during the last three
years.
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Professor SHA Zhenquan (' #&#), aged 63, has been
an independent non-executive Director of our Company
since September 2018. Prof. SHA is also the Chairman of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Board and a member of audit committee. He has
been a professor of the School of Business Administration
of South China University of Technology (EfE T KE)
since April 2003. Professor Sha is a member of the 12th
National Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FRIARBURMIE @& 2 BZE 8 ®). Professor
Sha was engaged as a counselor of Guangdong Province
by Guangdong Provincial Government since March 2019.
Professor Sha has been an independent non-executive
director of Canvest Environmental Protection Group Company
Limited (BEZ2R{RE NBR A F]) (stock code: 1381) since
2014 and Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co., Ltd. (&3l
ZEEW KRB AR A F]) (stock code: 000069) since April 2020,
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He was
an independent director of Shenzhen Noposion Pesticide Co.,
Ltd CFRIIFEEERIERHBR2AA]) (stock code: 002215) from
December 2009 to December 2015, an independent director
of Sincap Group Limited (stock code: 5UN), a company listed
on Singapore Exchange from May 2012 to September 2014,
an independent director of Dongling International Investment
Co., Ltd. (EME ZBIERRERMDBRAF]) (formerly known
as Dongling Grain and Oil Co., Ltd. (BN ZEAKH AR
A A]))(stock code: 000893) from June 2012 to January 2020,
Letong Chemical Co., Ltd. (k824381 TR DB R A F]) (stock
code: 002319) from August 2013 to August 2019, which are
companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Professor
Sha obtained a bachelor of science degree in mathematics
from East China Normal University (=5 EM&AE2) in 1982, a
master’s degree in engineering from South China University of
Technology (ZEfIE T KXE) in 1991 and a doctor’s degree in
philosophy from City University of Hong Kong in 2001. Save
as disclosed above, Prof. SHA did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies during the last three years.
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Mr. JING Dacheng (B K ), aged 74, was appointed on 3
April 2019 as an independent non-executive Director, member
of the remuneration committee, nomination committee and
audit committee of the Board. Mr. JING is a member of the
Communists’ Party of the PRC and has years of experience
in public service. He was recruited by the military in 1968
and served the positions of soldier, squad leader in the army,
cultural section chief of the political department of guard force
division no.4 of Hebe provincial military region, secretarial
section chief and chief of coordination section of Qinhuangdao
military division. From May 1986 to June 2007, Mr. JING served
as a member of district committee and standing committee
and political committee of the armed forces division of Haigang
District, Qinhuangdao, Hebe Province, CPC Haigang District
designated secretary and executive deputy district chief of
the people’s government of Haigang District and chairman of
the standing committee of the National People’s Congress in
Haigang District. He officially retired from his duties in August
2008. Mr. JING did not hold any directorship in other listed
companies during the last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. BAI Lei (A &), aged 56, is the vice president of the Group,
and is principally responsible for the financial matters of the
Group. Mr. BAI graduated from JTPERZ (Jiangxi University)
in 1989 with a bachelor degree of enterprise management
and subsequently obtained the qualification of accountant.
Mr. BAI held the positions on financial and finance aspects
in various institutions and had accumulated more than 20
years of working experience in relation thereto. Mr. BAI joined
the Group in 2016 when he was appointed as the financial
controller in China. He was appointed as the vice president of
the Group in 2017.

Mr. QI Jinyuan (E#8R), aged 54, is the chairman of the
Group’s Coal Mine Division, and is principally responsible for
the management and operation works on coal mine business.
Mr. QI graduated from Renmin University of China in 1990
with a bachelor’'s degree in national economic planning and
management, and obtained a master degree in business
administration from it & Z E K (Hebei Provincial Party
School) in 2003. Mr. QI has more than 20 years of experience
in the field of investment management and financial planning
with specialty in taxation planning works on financial aspect.
Mr. Ql was appointed as the vice chairman of Shanxi
Huameiao Energy Group Company Limited, a member of the
Group in September 2015 and as the vice president of the
Group in February 2016.
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Mr. CHEN Ke (FR#}), aged 40, is the general manager of the
coal mining division of the Group and is responsible for the
management and operation of the coal mining business of the
Group. Mr. CHEN graduated from China University of Mining
and Technology in 2007 with a bachelor’s degree in mining
engineering. Mr. CHEN also obtained a master’'s degree
in mining engineering from China University of Mining and
Technology in 2010. Mr. CHEN held key positions as engineer-
in-charge and chief engineer in a subsidiary of Xuzhou Coal
Mining Group, a large state-owned coal enterprise. Since
joining the Group in 2017, Mr. CHEN has held the positions of
engineer-in-charge and mine manager of Chongsheng Coal
Mine of the Group. Mr. Chen was promoted to the deputy
general manager of the coal mining division in 2022 and was
promoted to the general manager in 2023 to head the coal
mining business of the Group. Mr. CHEN has over 12 years
of working experience in the coal mining related industry
and possesses professional qualifications as a senior mining
engineer in the PRC.

Mr. JIA Youliang (EfE R), aged 59, is the deputy general
manager of the coal mining division and is responsible for the
management and operation of the coal mining business of the
Group. Mr. JIA graduated from Shandong University of Science
and Technology in 2013 with a master’s degree in engineering
in the field of mining engineering. Mr. JIA joined the Group
in 2018 as the deputy general manager of the coal mining
division. Mr. JIA has over 10 years of experience in the field of
mining engineering and possesses professional qualifications
as a senior mining engineer in the PRC.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LIU Zhaoyi (£]J82%), aged 55, is the mine manager
of Xingtao Coal Mine and is mainly responsible for the
management of Xingtao Coal Mine, a coal mine of the Group.
Mr. LIU joined the Group on 1 March 2018 and was the
deputy general manager of the coal mining business. Mr. LIU
graduated from China University of Mining and Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in mining engineering in 2005 and
obtained a master’s degree in mining engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology in 2013. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. LIU held the positions of deputy engineer-in-
charge and chairman of the board of directors of a subsidiary
of Xuzhou Coal Mining Group, a large state-owned coal
enterprise. Mr. Liu joined the Group in 2018 as the assistant
general manager of the coal mining division and was promoted
to the chief of the Chongsheng Coal Mine in the same year
and was re-designated to the chief of the Xingtao Coal Mine in
2022. Mr. LIU has over 30 years of experience in production
management and mining technology in the coal industry and
possesses the professional qualifications as a senior engineer
in the PRC.

Mr. WANG Hong (£ &), aged 58, is the engineer-in-charge
of the Group and is responsible for the management of the
mining engineering of the Group. Mr. WANG graduated from
Shanxi Institute of Mining in 1990 with a bachelor’s degree
in mining engineering. Prior to joining the Group in 2013, Mr.
WANG worked as a deputy chief mining engineer in the coal
mines under state-owned coal enterprises such as Beijing
Jingmai Group. Mr. WANG has over 30 years of working
experience in the coal mining related industry and possesses
the professional qualifications as a senior mining engineer in
the PRC.

Mr. OR Chun Wai Dennis (f1{&£3), aged 35, is the company
secretary of the Company. He joined the Company in 2017
as the financial manager. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accounting and Finance) with The University of New South
Wales. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. OR
has extensive experience in audit of listed companies and
private companies in different business sectors gained from
international audit firms in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring
high standards of corporate governance practices. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
on accountability and transparency and are adopted in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to
fulfil its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its corporate
governance code of practices since the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the Board, the Company
had complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate
governance duties include:

- to develop and review the policies and practices of
the Company on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

- to review and monitor the training and professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

- to monitor and review the policies and practices of
the Company in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, monitor and review the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to the Directors and
employees; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility
to oversee all major matters of the Company, including the
formulation and approval of the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, monitoring its operating and financial performance,
performing the corporate governance duties and evaluating
the performance of the senior management. The Directors,
individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the
Group and the company secretary. Management information
is provided to enable them to participate at the meetings or
as and when requested. The company secretary provides
secretarial support to the Board and ensures adherence to
Board procedures and the relevant rules and regulations which
are applicable to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated
a schedule of responsibilities to these officers for the
implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to
entering into any significant transactions, the aforesaid officers
have to obtain Board approval.
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Board composition

The Board currently consists of six Directors, three of whom
are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors:

Mr. XU Da (Chairman)
Mr. BAI Tao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect from 1 March 2023)
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (Chief Financial Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 March 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Prof. SHA Zhenguan
Mr. JING Dacheng

All executive Directors are responsible for implementing the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group
in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations,
including, but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) have
been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group.
The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance.

The number of independent non-executive Directors has met
the requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik
Yuen has appropriate accounting professional qualifications.
The independent non-executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company. Biographical
details of the independent non-executive Directors are set
out on pages 63 to 65 of this annual report. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.
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Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
held an annual general meeting and an extraordinary general
meeting, and the Board held eight Board meetings, all of
which were convened in accordance with the Articles, and the
individual attendance of each Director is set out below:
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Number of attendance/Number of
meetings entitled to attend

HERE EREFERE
General Board
Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors BEENE BRAE EEgEE
Mr. XU Da RESE 1/2 5/8
Mr. BAI Tao AEELE 2/2 8/8
Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect BREXEBZZ-_=F 0/0 0/0
from 1 March 2023) ZA—HBREZMD
Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned with EMAEE(E T =F 2/2 7/8
effect from 1 March 2023) —A—BiEET)
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen IRz E 2/2 6/8
Prof. SHA Zhenquan D IRBER I 2/2 8/8
Mr. JING Dacheng B L& 2/2 8/8
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHREAR

Mr. XU Da is the chairman of the Board and an executive
Director, responsible for providing advice for the overall
management and strategic development and overseeing the
operation of the Board. Mr. BAI Tao, an executive Director,
is the Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for the
Group’s overall management, corporate development,
strategic planning and the supervision of day-to-day operation.
The segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive officer ensures a balance of
power and authority.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenquan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the
Board are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the
Directors and senior management of the Group, as well as
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his/her close associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during 2022 to
assess performance of executive Directors and certain senior
management and review their remuneration. The duties of the
remuneration committee include determining, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management. All the members attended the meetings.
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HERE,

Name of Directors BEENA BREERE
Mr. BAI Tao HE5EE 1/1
Prof. SHA Zhenquan IR 1/1
Mr. JING Dacheng BRRK A& 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The nomination
committee consists of an executive Director, Mr. BAI Tao and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. SHA
Zhenqguan and Mr. JING Dacheng. Prof. SHA Zhenquan is the
chairperson of the nomination committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board
include determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing of the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
The nomination committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The nomination committee held one meeting during 2022
to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to meet the requirements of the
business of the Company. The nomination committee also
evaluated the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. All the
members attended the meetings.
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Name of Directors EEHA BRHERE
Mr. BAl Tao St 1/1
Prof. SHA Zhenquan D IRBEH IR 1/1
Mr. JING Dacheng BRI A& 1/1
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered
into renewed appointment letters with the Company for a term
of three years. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company formulated the nomination policy, which
set out the key selection criteria and procedures for the
Nomination Committee of the Company to nominate and make
recommendation to the board of directors of the Company on
the appointment of directors and re-election for directors.

1) Nomination criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number
of selection criteria when assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
following:

(a) personal ethics, reputation and integrity;

(b) professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s
businesses and corporate development and
strategy;

(c) willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge the duties as a director and to make
required commitments;

(d) compliance with the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules for the appointment of independent non-
executive Directors;
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the “Board Diversity Policy” adopted by the
Company for achieving diversity on the Board
with reference to the Company’s business model
and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

applicable legal and regulatory requirements;
and

any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.

Nomination Procedures

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an
additional director to the Board, the Nomination
Committee may select and evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee should evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified.

For the re-election of Director at General
Meeting, the Nomination Committee should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

On making recommendation, the Nomination
Committee may submit the candidate’s personal
profile to the Board for consideration.

The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of a
candidate to stand for election at a general
meeting.
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(f) Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of director at the general meeting.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Board established an Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee on 6 December 2021 with specific
written terms of reference. The Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee consists of three executive Directors,
namely Mr. XU Da, Mr. BAI Tao, Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed
with effect form 1 March 2023) and Mr. TAN Yingzhong
(resigned with effect from 1 March 2023). Mr. XU Da is the
chairperson of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee of the Board are to assist the Board in
guiding and monitoring the formulation and implementation of
the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) policy and
work of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), and to
regularly review the results to ensure compliance with relevant
laws, regulations, standards and regulatory requirements.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
held one meeting during 2022 to formulate and review the
environmental, social and governance responsibilities, visions,
strategies, framework, principles and policies of the Group
and make recommendations to the Board of Directors. All the
members attended the meeting.

REZBER RES
EEERS

f  tHEEE
SRNERAE LR
AR SR L HE R R

EFEER T —F+-ANBNIERE HE
REREZES  YHFTAREMBERLE - R
B oHERELRZEEH-RNTESRER

£ R#EEL  BREBRAEB T =F=H—
HEREZT) KL H%EE?E%(E_V__E A—
HER AN - RIE - HERERZBEENER
RIRERSE -

R HERERZESTIERAWMPESTS R

BREBARAMEMBAR(ANEE]DHER
++f§i$& 5 HERERBRERRTIE  LERRSE
}i% BRTEEBERE  ER  FEREER

RBIR HERERREEN T __FRETT
—RE&% LA%‘JE&*&JKEIE’W&%E ek
EREME  BR  REE - ER - RBIKRBUR

EREF R - AR A
% -

Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EEHA BRHEERE

Mr. XU Da mESE 1/1

Mr. BAIl Tao ShEbites 1/1

Mr. ZHAI Yifeng (appointed with effect BRESAE(BEZS=F=F—HBEZMT) 0/0
from 1 March 2023)

Mr. TAN Yingzhong (resigned with effect BERBRAEE(BE T =F= A —HEHMT) 1/1

from 1 March 2023)
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company formulated the board diversity policy, which set
out the requirements for diversity in Board members and the
principles for the selection of Directors.

1) Policy summary

To achieve sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increased diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In planning the Board’s composition, board diversity
needs to be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

(2) Quantifiable measurers and the progress of the
Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates of the Company will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee
reviewed the composition of the Board and concluded
that the Company had met the diversification requirements
with regard to age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. When making
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the future,
the nomination committee will nominate new Directors pursuant
to the requirements of the board diversity policy to achieve the
objective of diversity in Board members.
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Measureable objectives include (i) at least one third of the
Board shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at
least one Director is female and (iii) at least one Director shall
have obtained accounting or other professional qualifications.
During the reporting period, items (i) and (iii) have been
fulfilled. Whereas item (ii) has not been fulfilled during the
reporting period, the Nomination Committee has set a target of
appointing at least one female Director by 31 December 2024.

Gender ratio of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2022 by functions is:

/

AIFEmMEERE : () BEL=Zp 22— WNEESK
BABYIINTES : (V2L —REZ AR
RiNEL—ZEEEEE S EMmBEEER -
RBEHR - B()RGNEDEHRE  MRRS
B FB(NENREIWE }E%KE\@E‘“*

—EER R-_E_MFE+-_A=t+—HB&RD
RE—RRMES -

RZFB-__F+-A=1t—0 FAEEREZHE
BERVMERILL RN

Number of Number of

male employees female employees

Functions BRe EMEEHA ZHEEHA
Senior management EREEE 13 S
Middle management PREERE 47 1
Administration TRAE 209 115
Operation EEAE 2,533 149
Total &&t 2,802 265

Although female Director is not appointed in the current Board,
the Company had a long history of gender diversity on board
and senior management. For example, Ms. Wang Jianfei, a
female, who were executive Director of the Company from
2009 to 2021 and also former Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from 2009 to 2015. Male has significant portion
in middle management and operation possibly due to the
industry characteristic that male is traditionally more interested
to attend tertiary education in coal mining engineering than
female. Moreover, the coal mining industry is more attractive to
male employee possibly because there are certain limitations
for female in the underground coal mine such as physically
demanding works. Moreover, the Group strived to maintain
gender diversity in administration function to the possible
extent. It is noted that the administration function has 35.5% of
female employees.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, the Board has the discretion to
declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, subject to the articles of association of the Company
and all applicable laws and regulations.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

- operating and financial results;

- cash flow position;

- working capital requirements and expenditure plan;
- interests of shareholders;

- business conditions and strategies;

- taxation considerations;

- restriction on distribution of dividends under the relevant
laws, rules and regulations; and

- any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, any dividend
unclaimed for one year after having been declared may
be invested or otherwise made use of by the Board for
the benefit of the Company until claimed. Any dividend or
bonuses unclaimed after a period of six years from the date of
declaration shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company.
The payment by the Board of any unclaimed dividend or other
sums payable on or in respect of a share in a separate account
shall not constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof.

The Company will review the Dividend Policy periodically.
There can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or at all.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors
are reminded of their obligations under the Model Code on
a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009
with specific written terms of reference. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Prof. SHA Zhenquan and Mr. JING
Dacheng. Mr. LAU Sik Yuen is the chairperson of the audit
committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
approve the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
control system. The audit committee had reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 and had also discussed auditing, internal
control and financial reporting matters including accounting
practices and principles adopted by the Group.

The audit committee has also monitored the integrity of the
financial statements, annual report and accounts and interim
report and reviewed significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein.
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During the year, the audit committee held three meetings and
all the members attended the meetings.

EEERRE
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Number of

attendance/

Number of

meetings entitled

to attend

HERE,

Name of Directors EENA BREHERY
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 285 IR 5 A& 3/3
Prof. SHA Zhenquan D IRBE IR 3/3
Mr. JING Dacheng BR S E 3/3

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2022 to the
Board for approval. The audit committee also reviewed the
accounting issues raised by the independent auditor of the
Company in respect of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the relevant issues
as described in the paragraphs under “Risk Management and
Internal control” below.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides to all the Directors a comprehensive
induction package which includes introduction on the
business operations, internal procedures and general policy
of the Company and a summary of statutory and regulatory
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant laws and regulations. During the year, the Directors
are provided with regular updates on the Group’s business,
operations, risk management and corporate governance
matters to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Directors are also encouraged
to attend both in-house training and training provided by
independent service providers. According to the training
records provided by the Directors to the Company, each
Director has confirmed that he/she has obtained reading
and training materials during the year under review and has
attended the trainings in relation to various aspects, including
but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on the Listing Rules
amendments and corporate governance practices. In addition,
the Group regularly offers online training to each Director.
During the year, the Group organised 2 hours training to each
Director.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, maintaining
sound systems of risk management and internal controls and
reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests of the
Group as a whole. These systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Under code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Group
should have an internal audit function. The Company has no
internal audit function because the Company has maintained
an internal control system and its implementation has been
considered effective by the Audit Committee and the Board.
In addition, the Audit Committee has communicated with an
external risk advisory expert to understand if there is any
material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company will
review the need for one on an annual basis. The Group has
also adopted internal control policies to manage and minimise
financial and other risks, ensuring timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and
monitoring compliance with laws by the senior management of
the Group in the performance of their duties.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control system and ensuring that
the Group established and maintained appropriate and
effective systems. Management also assists the Board in
the implementation of the Group’s policies, procedures and
controls by identifying and assessing the risks faced, and
in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal
controls to mitigate and control these risks.
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The Group has established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance
with laws by the Group’s senior management and in its daily
operations, and of carrying out investigations for suspected
breaches of law. The Company convened meetings with the
audit committee periodically to discuss financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Moreover, the Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementing
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk management
process and risk management report including key risks and
mitigation measure, in which it oversaw the development and
implementation of the Group’s risk management system. The
risk management and internal control systems are reviewed
every year and the review covered the period of the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of systems and
considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group were reasonably effective and adequate, and no
material deficiencies has been identified.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Directors have also selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgements and estimates, and have prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The Directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 130 to 140 of this report.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB4,155,839,000. As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings
and accrued interest amounting to an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB1,330,634,000 and approximately
RMB219,718,000 respectively had been due for immediate
payment. In addition, as at 31 December 2022, there were
several unsettled litigations against the Group mainly
requesting the Group to repay certain payables with interest
immediately.

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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In order to improve the Group’s financial position, immediate
liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as
a going concern, the directors of the Company have adopted
several measures together with other measures in progress
as set forth in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
The directors consider that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any other material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors consider the Group will be able to continue to
operate as a going concern.

The independent auditors opinion is not modified in respect of
these matters and the statement of the independent auditors
of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA Limited, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages
130 to 140.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration to

the Group’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group is set forth below:

EEERRE

WMINFEA B RRITT2ME - RUEAEEZ
FMBAR - ISR ABEERIRER - K
LEASEBENGEREELLZE  ARrE
EERMETHERMEMERTLIEET -EF
RE - ARFEH R EERERM - BE
KR WEYTABEL G| BHAEERFE
RERNETENERNSMHABRERBNEMR
HEBANEEYE - At - EFRE - AREHS

BRENFFEKE -

B ZEMER W ARRZERTEEL B © kA
RABUZEMAESEESTMELARA
AEREHAEENERENBRETHERTD
AR ZEEN R E £ 13081408 ©

B BL BT BN

BE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—BHILEE  x&£H
ZINEE R AT R AR IR 2 WAL M IR AR
ZEEEHNT ¢

RMB’000

ARETIT

Audit services ZE RS 2,324
Non-audit services* IERZ B BRTS * 1,722
Total A&t 4,046

Non-audit services related to agreed-upon procedures for assisting the
Company review its condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 30 June 2020.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concerned parties in an active and timely manner. Also,
the Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have
equal access to information.

The Group encourages effective communication with both
private and institutional investors and responds to their
enquiries in an informative and timely manner. The Group
has established various forms of communication channels
to improve its transparency, including regular updates
on its corporate information on the Company’s website
(www.ginfagroup.com) in both English and Chinese. An annual
general meeting is called each year and the Directors are
available at the annual general meeting to answer questions on
the Group’s business. Shareholders and stakeholders are also
encouraged to email their views to ir@ginfagroup.com.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholder communication policy and
considers that the Company has established an effective
channel of communication with its shareholders.

The management believes that effective communication with
the investment community is essential. The executive Directors
and the chief financial officer of the Company hold regular
briefings and results presentation, attend investor forums and
respond to investors’ call-in enquiries, participate in interviews
with institutional investors and financial analysts in the PRC,
Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast
of the Company’s business and development as well as
operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information
to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and
collects the feedback from them, in the interests of developing
an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the
Company’s investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company can make a written requisition to the
Board or the Company secretary to convene an extraordinary
general meeting pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s
articles of association. The written requisition must state the
objects of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) and deposited at the registered office of the
Company, which is presently situated at Room 5706, 57th
Floor, Central Plaza, No. 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The same procedure also applies to any proposal to be
tabled at shareholder meetings.

The Company welcomes enquires from shareholders. The
Board will review shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis.
Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can
be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 24 June 2022, the shareholders of the Company passed
the special resolution approving the proposed amendments
to the then existing articles of association of the Company
(the “then Existing Articles”) and the proposed adoption of the
amended and restated articles of association of the Company
incorporating the amendments (the “Amended and Restated
Articles of Association”) for the purpose of, among others,
(i) enabling the Company to have general meetings to be
held in physical form, hybrid form or electronic form; and (ii)
conforming with the Core Shareholders Protection Standards
as set out in the amended Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules
effective from 1 January 2022. The Amended and Restated
Articles of Association is available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website.
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

The Board of Directors of the Group (“the Board”) strive
to advance sustainable development as the greatest
business model to serve the interest of our investors and the
surrounding communities. In addition to preserve the interests
of our stakeholders, we also consider for the sustainable
development of the Group.

While the global economy affected by the COVID-19 situation
during year 2022, we were ceaselessly promoting responsible
production and consumption, including optimizing supply
chain management, upholding a compatible workplace and
business atmosphere, etc.

In the context of business strategy, the Board oversees the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) opportunities.
The ESG Committee was commissioned this year to identify
and manage material ESG and climate-related risks and
opportunities. Moreover, in response to the identified risks
and opportunities, the Committee develops various effective
measures. ESG performance, measures, and targets are
reviewed by the Board annually in order to enhance the
management of environmental and social opportunities.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, business
partners and customers for their support to our Group over
the years, and convey my sincere appreciation to all our
employees for their contributions and efforts. To establish a
bright future, we will continue to build a comfortable and high-
quality living standard for the general public in a green and
sustainable manner and work with various stakeholders on the
road of sustainable development.

Mr. Xu Da

Chairman of the Group
Chairman of the ESG Committee
29 March 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Being one of the key non-state-owned thermal coal suppliers in
China, the Group dedicates to provide high-quality coal supply
and related services to its customers. Coal mining, purchase
and sales, filtering, storage and blending of coal in China are
covered in the integrated coal supply chain operation of the
Group.

The Group is pleased to publish our ESG report (the “Report”)
of financial year 2022 which discloses our ESG policies,
measures and performance, which aimed to reinforce the
confidence of stakeholders and to further increase their
understanding of our direction and progress on material
sustainability issues.

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report discloses the Group’s environmental, social and
governance (ESG) performance and material topics of the
Group during the period from 1 January to 31 December 2022
(the “Reporting Period” or “FY2022").

Unless otherwise noted, the information contained in this report
includes the operations at Guangzhou office, Xingtao Coal
Mine and Fengxi Coal Mine that represent major environmental,
social and governance issues of the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide,
which set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEx ESG Reporting Guide”), were followed in the
preparation and presentation of this report. The preparation of
the report is based on the following reporting principles:

1. Materiality: The threshold at which the relevant ESG
issues becomes sulfficiently important to investors and
other related parties that they should be reported.
The Group determines materiality through internal
assessment and its communication with different
stakeholders.

2. Quantitative: Key performance indicators (“KPIs”), if
any, are measurable, and give effective comparative
data where appropriate. Furthermore, the purpose and
impacts shall be explained. Internationally or nationally
recognized methodologies have been adopted in the
calculations and estimations.

Sk Balance: The report should provide an unbiased
picture of the Group’s performance in the ESG issues,
and should avoid selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the report reader.

4. Consistency: The report should use consistent

methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons and
disclose any changes to these methodologies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

FEEDBACK CHANNELS

We highly recognize your valuable opinions on this report.
Your feedback is important to help us realize our vision for a
sustainable future. We invite you to share your comments using
any of the following means:

Address: Room 2201-2208, 22/F,

South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1, Pazhou Avenue East,

Haizhu District,

Guangzhou City

Telephone: 8620-89898239

Email: ir@ginfagroup.com

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The feedback from stakeholders not only enables a
comprehensive and appropriate evaluation of the Group’s
ESG performance, but it also aids the Group in improving its
performance. Therefore, the Group communicates frankly,
honestly and proactively with stakeholders. To engage with
stakeholders efficiently and to develop a shared understanding
of our vision and expectation in sustainability, we provide a
variety of communication channels that are illustrated in the
table below.

The Group’s business affects various stakeholders, including
investors, shareholders, employees, suppliers and customers,
who may hold different expectations of the Group. To improve
its ESG approaches, the Group will continue to communicate
with stakeholders and gather their input through various
channels. The Group will simultaneously enhance the
disclosures to define the ESG Report’'s content in order to
satisfy stakeholder expectations.
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Stakeholder groups

Communication channels

B#HEAR BRERE
Investors and shareholders o Company website
REEERE NCIEEI
° Company announcements
NGNS
° Annual general meeting
REBFREG
° Annual and interim reports
FHRP RS
Customers ° Company website
®P NCIEEI
° Customer direct communication
HEFPHEEBR
° Customer feedback and complaints
BEPER KK
Employees ° Training and orientation
= =Sk
. Emails and opinion box
BEHMERME
o Regular meetings
EHEE
o Employee performance evaluation
B ERIRFIE
o Employee activities
BIES
Suppliers and business partners ° Selection assessment
HEBMEBAERH BB
° Procurement process
REBRE
° Performance assessment
KB
° Regular communication with business partners (e.g. emails,
meetings, on-site visits etc.)
HEBRSERHTRERWERER  FBRREMERSE)

Documented information submission
R ER

° Compliance inspections and checks
EHKERRE

Government authorities and regulators

U & B

Communities °

o

Company website
NGIF A
o Community activities

RS
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MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

A three-steps approach is adopted to formulate ESG strategies
and management policies. First, we determine ESG issues that
are material to the Group. The Group has also commissioned
an impartial consultancy firm to develop an online survey
for materiality assessment. Considering the importance and
the relevance of the identified twenty-two ESG topics to the
Group’s operations and their impacts on the stakeholders
themselves, our key stakeholder groups (e.g. board of
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directors, employees, customers, and suppliers) were invited % °
to rate those topics. The assessment result is the main input for
the developing and updating sustainability strategy.
Identification Engagement Analysis & Evaluation
a5 Al BB 2 H R FEAE
e |dentify and map a list of e Conduct stakeholder e Prioritise ESG topics by
ESG topics engagement exercise materiality assessment

BBl N FFIESGHEEB B

e |dentify key stakeholder
groups

Exgilllzks EeaviE=gEh]l

The ESG topics are prioritised and identified in the materiality
matrix below. Topics in the upper right corner of the matrix are
obviously more related to our business operations and more
important to our stakeholders. Those topics were categorised
as material topics. Every year, the Board of Directors regularly
reviews and evaluates the relevant progress of the Company
and the importance of relevant topics.

EITRNESEES

BEREREFAELREE
ESGEER TR F

e Review its result for ESG
report disclosure and
performance improvement
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Strengthening Climate Adaptability
& Resilience
hnog ERE R g H) KR @)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR

MATERIALITY MATRIX EEMEME
A
Crucial
2 Q 15
a . 9.
20 -
1 iz
10 BRI
@ 18 |‘ &
2 ',
Q © :
Relatively not relevant Crucial
HEAEE 52
Environment Employment Operation
i B &E
1. Management of Air Pollutants 9. Employment and Labour System 14. Environment and Social
and Greenhouse Gas Emission EREREREIHE Risks of the Supply Chain
ERSAYRREREHNER HIEERIRIE R ERBR
10. Anti-discrimination, Equal and
Wastewater Management Diversified Employment Environment ~ 15. Quality Control of
IKERR RER - FERZTEHEFERERE Production Material
FEM B mE
Waste Management 11. Occupational Safety and Health
EEEMER BEL D HRE 16. Customers’ Health and
Safety
Energy Conservation 12. Employee Development and EPMNRERETS
B #REIR Training
EEERE RS 17. Product-recall Mechanism
Water Conservation EmE B
RSN 13. Labour Practices
BIER 18. Customer Complaint
Efficiency in the Use of Other ] Handling Mechanism
Resources \ %:ogmunlty B B R ML
H B IRE R 8GE =
21. Needs and Interests of the 19. Protection the Interests of
Impact of Management Operation on Community Customers and Business
the Environment and Natural = A ERMFES Partners
Resources o ) REEP REBEIERHNTIR
EREEBHRERANRERENNTE 22, Community Investment
HEIRE 20. Prevention of Bribery,

Extortion, Fraud and
Money Laundering
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The materiality matrix shown above illustrates the substantial
implications of our Group. It is noteworthy that all issues
are considered as material issues to the Group, the above
graph indicates the upper right corner. Energy conservation,
water conservation and quality control of production material
are identified as top three significant issues to the Group
development. After analysis, as both energy conservation and
water conservation are the most material issues to the Group,
more efforts should be focused on that. Top five material
issues that our stakeholders mostly concern are listed below:

1. Energy Conservation

2. Water Conservation

St Quality Control of Production Material

4. Customers’ Health and Safety

58 Prevention of Bribery, Extortion, Fraud and Money
Laundering

SUSTAINABILITY VISIONS

The Group is dedicated to integrating sustainable development
into its business operation and considers creating a positive
and sustainable corporate culture as our key goal. Integrity,
creativity, superior product quality, as well as ethical business
practices are our key belief. By improving our management of
long-term ESG risks and opportunities, we aspire to become
an influential energy conglomerate.
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This year, to govern the operation within the Group, we
continue to adopt our sustainability policy. Operational
Footprint, Product Quality, Responsible Employment and
Corporate Governance are four major principles of our

AEE  RPIRESAAISEERBERURER
SEMEE - RAOTHEZREBOOATIRR
AIVEERY EmZE  BEETERARERE

N
V=

sustainability strategy.

Limit carbon footprint and environmental
impacts within our operations
PR B R E A VTR R IR SRR

Operational
Footprint
EERY

Uphold high Corporate Product
standard of business Governance Quality
ethics and integrity I EREE
REBKTAZER ’
Rz

N

Responsible
Employment

BEEER

Create a safe and respectful
workplace to improve employee
satisfaction and retention
By e A TIERE -
HEREMBENEBEX

Provide high-quality coal
products and services
Rt E S ERE R RRE

The sustainability policy acts as our operational principle and
ensures that our operations comply with relevant laws and
requirements. The Group is committed to green production
and minimising its carbon footprint, which includes enhancing
the efficiency of resource usage and reducing environmental
pollution. To increase our climate resilience, we regularly
identify and assess climate-related risks and opportunities.
In addition to reduce the environmental impacts, we also
put efforts in creating social value by fostering a safe and
respectful workplace, managing our supply chain, as well as
offering a high-quality coal goods and services.
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

With a robust governance structure across all departments in
place, the Group adopts an interactive strategy to proactively
enhance our sustainability governance. To provide long-
term value to our stakeholders, we incorporate sustainability
management into our cooperate management structure and
strategic planning. The Board retains ultimate responsibility
for managing the Group’s sustainability strategy and policy
and has assigned responsibility for driving practical execution
of our sustainability plans and initiatives to the sustainability
committee.

The Sustainability Committee has the most power and is
responsible for overseeing and advising on the Group’s
sustainability strategy, work plans, and performance objectives
in order to promote the Company’s ESG leadership. In
addition to endorsing the Group’s sustainable governance, it
supervises the Group’s sustainability activities in responding
to an ever-changing environment and exploring new potential
for getting out of organisation silos and developing new
methods for collaborations. The Committee, which is led by
board members, is comprised of three executive Directors and
reports to the Board on an annual basis. The Committee’s main
duties are as follows:

RiIR - HERERRE

AHEERESR

AEERAEHRBBEMAATFERRER -
POESOREFT A BFTE ISR EARE - WIEH

FEZREERACEEERBLBEEE &
KRFHETRREBE EFSERERALE

BRI RSEERREMBRENKREE AR
REERZEGRAKDERAKERRAE
KRBRENEE -

ARFEERZEGAARREN  LAEEER
%lTﬁfﬁﬁﬁ% TtraT &8I R B RAL
BEREERLES  BIEPHARFESGESE
N dbsh - BREBAKRENARERRERL A
FEZRZBQEEAKBREETH ENR
EMERDABERREE  UARKRMASD#
BIEEIFRERE2FE - ZEShEZTENE
wE UA=BRTEFEANX BFRAEFSE
Ho-ZEGNTERENT ¢

Formulate the ESG visions,
objectives, strategies, frameworks,
principles and policies of the Group
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Integrate ESG risks into our
risk management and
internal control systems

TSESGR BRI AR EIE K&

Communicate our ESG policy and
requirements with internal and
external stakeholders

Al R B S BB 10 2 (B2
HIMBESGHR R E K

Lead the ESG working group
to coordinate the implementation
of our sustainability policy

BEESG L1/ MARFEI
EEAFEERBCR

Set and evaluate ESG targets

and the progress
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SUSTAINABILITY RECOGNITION CIESS 323733
No. Awards/Recognition Issuing Organisation Receiving Date
wmyR  fR1EBRER TRE B B®RAH
1 China Energy Enterprise 500 2022~ China Energy News and China Energy December 2022
Ranked No. 359 Economic Research Institute
co-publish
20227 B 8% R {b 5 50054 %5 8 55 359117 PR RmA P EERGCERRRAR —T__F+=-A
i
2 China’s Preferred Employer of the Year Zhaopin.com and Institute of Social January 2023
2022 Science Survey, Peking University
co-publish
2022l FEBEEE BRI RAEH GRAEHEF O —E_=F—H
R A

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYMENT
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The occupational health and safety (“OHS”) dangers in the
coal mining business are substantial, thus the Group prioritizes
the health and safety of all its employees, especially those
who work on mine sites. Occupational safety is managed by
thorough procedures and rules, with safety as our top priority
and preventing work-related injuries as our primary objective.
We’ve implemented a risk assessment and occupational health
management system that includes several procedures for risk
identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring, and
review.
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In addition to establish, review and monitor occupational
health and safety objectives and policy, we regularly carry
out hazard identification. Our safety policy and guidelines
stipulate working procedures and measures, and we expect
our staff to comply with them. Workers are equipped with
protective equipment, and machines that poses safety risks
have been installed with safety protection measures in order
to address the possible safety concerns. Clear procedures
and regulations have been developed for operations with
identified hazards, and safety inspections and maintenance
on daily operations and machines are carried out on a regular
basis. Rectification will be taken promptly if there is any non-
compliance.

Accidents and incidents may still occur in the workplace
despite adequate safety precautions being in place. Plans
for emergency preparedness are designed to direct our
employees in reporting, responding, and conducting
investigations in various emergency circumstances. Apart
from preventing accidents, the Group guarantees that our
employees receive adequate medical care and compensation
under social insurance following an accident. To ensure
effective rescue efforts from coal mines, we have developed a
medical service agreement with nearby hospitals.

This year, the pandemic posed a significant risk to public
health, and we have developed appropriate preventative and
control measures. We also thoroughly clean the property and
provide forth tools on a regular basis to employees to help
avoiding epidemics.

The Group complied with laws and regulations that related
to OHS throughout the reporting period, including the Safety
Law and the PRC Law on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases. The Group also strictly complies with
a number of regulations that are specific to our industry, such
as the PRC’s Regulation on Safety Supervision of Coal Mines,
the Coal Mine Safety Rules, the Regulation on Safety Testing
and Inspection of Air Compressors, and the Primary Ventilation
System and Primary Drainage System. With our commitment
to workplace safety and employee well-being, there have
been no work-related fatalities in each of the past three years
(including the reporting period), and there were no lost days as
a result of workplace injuries.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group believes that people are the most precious assets
of a company since they play a key role in improving the
Group’s product and service quality and laying the foundation
for the Group’s development. The Group is dedicated to
upholding the cordial connection between the Group and the
employees and carefully upholds a workplace that prioritizes
safety, health, fairness, and impartiality without discrimination.
For the Group’s long-term success, the Group also consistently
expands and collaborates with its talent pool.

Equal Opportunity Policy

The Group strongly believes that equal opportunity increases
employee satisfaction, which sequentially helps retain
and motivate our talents to support the Group’s business
development. Per se, with an aim to protect job applicants and
employees from discrimination, the Group has established
related recruitment and human resources procedures to
ensure that recruitment and promotion decisions are made
based on the qualification, experience and performance of
applicants and employees, regardless of such factors as
gender, age, race, family status, religious belief and disability.

Compensation System

The Company provides a fair and competitive remuneration
plan to recruit and retain talented individuals. The package
includes a base wage, social security insurance, and other
fringe benefits, and it is assessed on a regular basis to
guarantee its competitiveness in the labour market and
alignment with the Group’s performance.

Furthermore, the Group has a thorough human resources
management strategy in place to oversee the human resources
function. The policy includes guidelines on remuneration
and benefits, working hours and holidays, recruitment and
selection, performance management, promotion, employment
termination, training and development.
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EEEE TER

AEERREERAFREENEE  BENE
ETNMEERNASBERERBEELZEER
AR ERASEZERNERL -AEBEHN#
BAKEERE 2R MAREK  FIHE
—fEAZ2REE AFRLE - —RECKLENT
1ERE - AEBE R TEREAS - BfMHARE
1F - UEBARERARNKY

FERERE

AEBREFEREVREFREMNEE - UK
BAT X MBS AEENEBRRLN - B
TEREBEMNMEERZER - AEBECHIEHERM
BREIANERER  BEBELRATBRERZE
REBELBENER - 8RNEKRE - MBERME
B iR B KEMR - FBED  BRE
S

Eod £

RESIABREBEAT - ARBRHEAFMEAL
FHNHMGFE  BEELAFE  HERBEE
M AR - 0 E B T #r N8 - RERESS
MZEARHF T EARNKENORELL -

o AEETRBE-—EZENANEREER
B AAEEANERBIEE - ZBRBEBRH
MkEN - THRERY  AERGE KRBT
B BT BRENKEIRERNES -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employee Benefits

The Group works to create a pleasant work environment, a
harmonious working relationship, and a healthy lifestyle for its
workers, all of which will increase employees’ engagement
at work. Therefore, the Company organizes regular medical
check-up for our employees, so that they will have a better
understanding of their personal health issues. In order
to enhance employees’ pension, medical insurance and
eventually their living quality, the Group also provides fringe
benefits like housing provident fund and supplementary
medical insurance.

Other aspects of employees’ life are also included to the
Group’s agenda, such as maternity leave and paternity leave.
In addition, the Group understands the importance of listening
carefully to our employees and allows them to express their
opinions to their superiors.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was in compliance with
relevant policies and guidance regarding equal employment
opportunities, child labour, forced labour and employment,
including the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour, Special Protection Regulations for Juvenile Employees,
the Labour Law of the PRC and the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC.
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FY 2022 FY 2021
—E-= —E-—F
BBFEE FRFE
Total Work Force EEEH 3,067 2,645
By Gender REH
Male B 2,802 2,411
Female g 265 234
By Employment Type REFER
Full-time S 3,067 2,645
By Age Group REwRAE B
16—24 years old 16—247% 252 42
25-40 years old 25-405%, 1,445 952
41-59 years old 41-595% 1,297 1,604
60 years old or above 60p% 3k A 73 47
By Geographical Region EihE
China H 2,249 2,429
Indonesia Elfe 818 216
Turnover Rate MKLE =
By Gender RIEB
Male B 7.24% 8.59%
Female 7 11.70% 8.55%
By Age BERAR
16—24 years old 16—2475% 7.54% 11.90%
25-40 years old 25-408% 6.99% 9.56%
41-59 years old 41-595% 8.02% 7.48%
60 years old or over 60p% 3k A 13.70% 23.4%
By Geographical Region B E
China B 7.43% 8.06%
Indonesia Elfe 8.19% 14.4%
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

We believe that professionally trained employees are
critical to our business growth and success. Therefore,
the Group encourages its employees to actively engage
in personal development and job-related training courses.
The Group has adopted an employee training policy that
defines management’s duties for recognizing needs of each
department.

In daily operation, the Group provides on-boarding training
to new employees, and assigns experienced employees as
mentors to guide new joiners. Together with encouraging
collaboration and teamwork, this mentoring arrangement can
enhance employees’ technical skills and managerial capability.
Furthermore, we continuously encourage our employees to
explore the chance of additional learning and development.
Based on operational needs, the Group has consistently
enhanced the training system. In the Reporting Period,
we provided vocational training weekly for relevant staff to
enhance their technical knowledge. To further strengthen our
corporate governance, related trainings were also provided to
directors and the finance team.

In the Reporting Period, we have offered 489,946 training
hours to our employees. The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category during the Reporting Period
is shown below:
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Training of Employee FY2022 Fy2021
—E=-= —E-—F

EEEI MREE BTRFR
By Gender, in regards of total number %1% 5 &%

of employees who took part in (REFIEELHAEME)

training

Male B 96% 98%

Female I 4% 2%
By Gender, in regards of total number %1% 5 &%

of employees of that gender (RZMREERAEMT)

Male B 82% 86%

Female ik 34% 18%
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Training of Employee FY2022 Fy2021
—E=-= —E-—F
BB MBEE I E

By Employee Category, in regards of Z{ESEFIE 5
total number of employees who took (FZHEELHEMS)
part in training

Management EIEE 2% 2%
Functional departments B Be B0 10% 8%
Frontline departments (including local AR EFI (B R E B X &

teams and groups) /NAR) 88% 90%

By Employee Category, in regards REEBERES
of total number of employees of that (FiZEEEFIESLEMS)
employee category

Management EEE 80% 79%
Functional departments BB 30T 73% 55%
Frontline departments (including local ATAREBFT (B 45 & B B I
teams and groups) /NAR) 88% 83%
Average Training Hour of Employee FY2022 Fy2021
EBEFIGZINREH —g_- —T-—F
BBFEE MERFE
By Gender BRI &5
Male B 174 199
Female 7 14 8
By Employee Category REEERES
Management TIRE 244 248
Functional departments B Be &0 115 104
Frontline departments (including local ATARERPT (B 45 & Hh B B
teams and groups) /N4E) 182 191
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group values human rights greatly and is committed to
safeguarding and promoting ethical employment in business
operation. The Group also strictly complies with all relevant
national laws and local regulations as well as relevant labour
laws and regulations in the place where it operates, including
Labour Law of the PRC and Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour. Moreover, the Group has developed
robust and systematic measures for recruitment and selection,
and thus prevents itself from hiring child labour and ensures
that the employment is following relevant laws and regulations
strictly.

The Group enforces a zero-tolerance policy on the child and
any forms of forced labour, including slavery, debt-induced
labour and coercion in the workplace. All candidates qualified
for employment must have reached the statutory required
age and have been in possession of valid identification
documents which are examined by the Human Resources
Department during recruitment and upon employment. Should
we unfortunately discover any child and forced labour in the
workplace during our selective identity check, the Group
will take prompt remedial actions including but not limited to
taking steps to stop the relevant works immediately and filing
a report to relevant authorities, and review our management
approaches to plug the loophole. In addition, all workers must
engage into labour contracts voluntarily and fairly, and they are
free to quit their jobs with proper notice. In order to encourage
the employees to report any suspicious cases of child labour
or forced labour truthfully, the Group has also established a
whistle-blowing procedure.

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations on labour standards, including
the Labour Law of the PRC.
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PRODUCT QUALITY
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We recognize that comprehensive supply chain management
can assure the quality and safety of our products;
accordingly, we have developed internal guidance on supplier
management. While evaluating the suppliers’ operations, the
Group continues to adhere to national safety regulations,
including AG1011-AG1013 Safety Inspecting-testing
Specifications for Coal Mine, Coal Mine Safety Rules, and Coal
Industry Law of the PRC.

We proactively identify and control the environmental and
social risks in all links of supply chain, and commit to building
a sustainable supply chain demonstrating the Company’s
responsibility for society and environment. We regularly
evaluate the performance of both our current and potential
suppliers based on a range of environmental and product
quality criteria, including overall capabilities, asset position,
business nature, industry reputation, product quality, goods
delivery, and compliance with law and regulations. We also
prioritise the procurement of environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, as long as
the other specifications meet the requirements. Therefore,
only suppliers that are following regulatory requirements
and our internal criteria can they be our qualified vendors.
We monitor our material suppliers and service providers
annually and disqualify unsatisfactory vendors. To ensure
timely implementation and monitoring and in case of any
major change or incident happening in the supply chain,
the procurement department will report timely to the Group’s
management for updating our internal policy and strategies.
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RiIR - HERERRE

Besides, we prioritise local suppliers to reduce environmental b9+ AR L HEFTERARIETE -

impacts attributed to the logistics arrangement. During the
Reporting Period, we have engaged a total 829 suppliers from it B 24 H8291E 5k B A Bl A ith 12 20418 2k B

Mainland China and 204 overseas suppliers under the above &SN FER A 1E ©

policy.

Selection of
suppliers

EEHER

Responsible
Procurement

BEIRE

Performance
Review

B

e Suppliers need to provide document proof for evaluation such as product quality inspection
certificates, national environmental product certificates and management system certificates
HEBARMERLEERREE  BEXRAEMEENREEBRIESFEZANMN - HERETIE

e \When considered necessary, site inspection will be conducted by the procurement team to
identify potential risks of the new suppliers
WAEKE  FKEEBFSETENEER - SR EREERR

Suppliers with less ‘en\vironmental impacts, higher quality and compliance status are prioritised
BEZEHRBENRIZENBESRELIER

Performance of suppliers is evaluated regularly to ensure their compliance with our
requirements, including product quality, environmental responsibilities and price

EHFHEHERRE  RAUERTARMEEREE  RRATRERSTHENEXR
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PRODUCT/SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY
Pursuit of Higher Product Quality

Our commitment is to offer coal products that are of the highest
quality and are safe, with product safety being one of our
material concerns as analysed above. We have established
strict policies and procedures for production and sales of coal
products. Our internal procedures are established based on
various national regulations, including but not limited to Grade
for Closed Process Water Circuit in Coal Preparation Plant (MT/
T 810—-1999), Coal Sizing Equipment-Performance Evaluation
(GB/T15716-1995), General Rules for Analytical and Testing
Methods of Coal (GB/T483-2007), Determination of Total
Moisture in Coal (GB/T211-2007), Methods for Determining
the Minerals in Coal (GB/T7560-2001) and Methods for
Determining the Calorific Value of Coal (GB/T479-2000).

All our coal products are stored in specific sites or went
through only indoor areas, so that no external causes will affect
the product quality. Besides, we possess national qualified
laboratories to conduct product inspection in a timely manner
so as to ensure our coal products are in full compliance with
industry standards and sustainability requirements. Smart
mining is the current trend of the industry and we have
adopted various mining technology to enhance our efficiency.
In addition, quality assurance policy has been established to
safeguard our product quality. During the Reporting Period,
we did not receive any complaints from customers about
our coal products and no coal products were subject to
recalls requirements. Quality standard is set in the contract
requirements, if there is any discrepancy on quality standard
agreed by the Group and the customers, the product would
normally not be recalled because of the transportation cost
involved, in such case, the Group will determine on the
compensation package after discussion and negotiation with
the affected customers.
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The features of coals produced by the Group are as follows: REBEHENHEREHET
Huameiao Shenda
Huameiao Huameiao Energy- Shenda Energy— Sumber Daya
Energy- Energy— Chongsheng Energy- Hongyuan Energi -
Xingtao Coal  Fengxi Coal Coal Xinglong Coal Coal SDE Coal
Sumber Daya
EXRER- EXRMR- EXRER-  BERR- O WERR- Energi-
Coal features BREH RRx b-Ti) £ SR i 308 RREE SDE/ %
Coal seam KE 489,10,11 49,11 49,11 25 256 BD
Moisture (%) KA (%) 7-10 8-12 8-12 85 85 8-11
Ash (%) (%) 20-28 20-28 20-28 21.45 30-72 22-25
Sulphur (%) SHE(%) 14-19 12-16 16-25 152 145 0.18-12
Calorific value (average, kealfkg, BRE(TYH TR/
net, ar) Fr FE - a) 4650-5200  4,600-5,150  4,600-5,150 4,838 4,187 5,300
Protection of Customer Data, Privacy and Intellectual REEFEL  REBERAZERE
Property Rights

We recognize the value of customer data and privacy. In
protection of customer data, all orders and data of customers
are processed and stored by dedicated personnel, and no
access is given to unauthorised employees. All employees
of the Group have entered into an agreement to guarantee
the confidentiality of the Company’s data upon joining
the Company. In case of any violation or divulgence of
information, the Company will take legal actions against the
relevant employee and terminate their employment contract
immediately if needed.

In safeguarding intellectual property rights, the Group sources
products only from legitimate manufacturers or suppliers. The

BA—MEREFPNEHLLE - REEREFE
HBHRE  AREMERFFIEREMORE
ABRERRT  BERAERENEEEN - A%
BB REREAR T HE  AWEMALRRRYE
ARBHERRE o M2 REARELBE M
o ARBEEATEBR T HAREBRIUL
BRITHANRLLEEREL -

ERENBEEIE  AEERSUAERERD
SAHEBRBER - AREEBETERNBE

Group strictly abide by the relevant laws and regulations on R #EMRREARER - AW LEILMHBERE
the protection of national intellectual property rights and do  HJJE®) - MIEE=H B EMHBEE 2R BRATE
not participate in activities that infringe intellectual property Lﬁmﬂé%ﬂgl%ﬁﬁ{%?-igm SR - —BEIR(T
rights. Due diligence is conducted prior to the purchase of  {a]A] & C 2 AETTRE o

the intellectual property rights from third parties to ensure the
legality. Prompt investigation will also be carried out if there is
any suspected case.
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In the Reporting Period, the Group complied with laws and
regulations relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress, including the Personal Information
Protection Law of PRC. Besides, we have neither product
sold subject to recalls for safety and health reasons nor
product related complaints in the Reporting Period. We have
established efficient communication channels so that we may
quickly address client concerns and feedback.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ANTI-CORRUPTION

We place a high priority on maintaining the integrity of our
employees and encouraging fair competition during our
business operations. We are aware that fraud, corruption, or
other illegal behaviour can tarnish the reputation of the Group
and diminish the confidence while collaborating with our
business partners. We have established a sound governance
structure that adheres to the highest ethical standards. Our
Employee Handbook stipulates our anti-corruption policies
and code of conduct. Clear guidance has been provided in
the provision and acceptance of interests, such as gifts and
souvenirs, and ways to address conflicts of interest. We have
zero tolerance against bribery, corruption, embezzlement,
insider trading and theft of corporate assets. We also monitor
the implementation of anti-corruption policies and offer anti-
corruption training to employees and directors regularly.

We have established whistle-blowing procedures to encourage
employees, management team and directors to report any
misconduct and dishonest behaviour in absolute confidentiality,
such as bribery, fraud and other offences. Where a case of
misconduct is found out to be true following investigation,
the Group will take appropriate corrective measures and
disciplinary action against the person(s) involved. In the event
of a criminal offence, the Group will report the case to the
competent authority. Additionally, the Group engages a third-
party organisation to audit its internal financial conditions each
year. Any possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters will be reported to Audit Committee
and the Board.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Provisions on Prohibiting Corruption and Bribery of the Criminal
Law of the PRC and any legal regulation and requirements
for listed companies in Hong Kong. There is no legal case
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

In addition, we offer online anti-corruption training to our
directors and employees regularly, where we share with them,
information from ICAC regarding ways to handle corrupt
related situations.

ORGANISATIONAL FOOTPRINT

Considering the environmental consequences, the Group
recognizes the necessity of environmental stewardship
and cleaner mining techniques. We unswervingly pursue
breakthroughs in setting itself on a green path to prevent
pollutions, utilise the resources in an environmentally
responsible manner and minimise the environmental impacts
throughout its operations. We have set up environmental policy
and internal guidelines for operation.

During the Reporting Period, we strictly complies with the
laws and regulations relating to atmospheric and greenhouse
gas ("GHG”) emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including
but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Cleaner Production
Promotion Law of the PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes,
the Energy Conservation Law of the PRC, and the Renewable
Energy Law of the PRC.
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EMISSIONS

The Group incorporates the management of emissions into
our daily operations and evaluates the progress of emission
reduction annually. The Group’s gaseous emissions mainly
come from air pollutants generated from the fossil fuel burning
in boilers, while secondarily from and the transportation of
products. These emissions consist of nitrogen oxides (NOXx),
sulphur oxides (SOx) and respirable particulate matter (PM).
We have achieved significant reduction of the air pollutants
which is attributed to the replacement of desulfurization
and denitrification boilers. In the Reporting Period, we have
achieved 8% NOx reduction. Besides, we emitted 1,251.48
tonnes of dust during the production process in the Reporting
Period.

The emissions reported in the table below were from the flue
gas from the fuel combustion in boilers only. These emissions
in the flue gas represent the primary source of emissions of the
Group. The emission from transportation is unavailable as it is
comparatively immaterial. We will enhance our data logging
process in the future.

The Group aims to reduce its air emission, as well as
greenhouse gas emission gradually without compromising our
production capacity. Therefore, we commit to enhance our
operational efficiency and minimise our environmental impacts.
For instance, in order to significantly reduce air emissions
in both Fengxi Coal Mine and the Xingtao Coal Mine, we
gradually replaced all of the desulfurization and denitrification
boilers with natural gas boilers. Looking forward, we will
explore opportunities to further curtail our emission during our
operation process.
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BR - MZERTFHBRY SRS B EBBEHRR
R BRREERNHRERLEH) - AEX
MBHE - HMARSIILTEEIRCIERERMR -

AEE-LDETEEERNBRT  BFRDE
RERERBIR - Bt - HAIAHEREDEEN
B HRBOTERERE - flA - BARS
75 BT N B B KR R 55 25 DA K 78 R 808 48 IR B A
FHIRIE - RIEREERER - RERE - RS

RRELEBEPE-DROPRH A RENE -

FY2022 FY2021

—E-= T %

Air Emission (kg) BRFER(TR) B VBFEE
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) RAELY(NOX) 1,100.00 1,193.47
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) WAL ¥(SOx) 0 0
Particulate matters (PM) AR (PM) 150.00 20.00
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The Group’s GHG emissions are caused both directly by
burning fossil fuels and indirectly by electricity purchased for
daily operations. Calculation is based on IPCC Guideline and
the grid emission factors published by the utilities operators.
Scope 1 Direct Emissions include fossil fuel burning (stationary
sources), fossil fuel burning (moving sources), and fugitive
emissions (underground mining and post-mining activities).
Scope 2 Indirect Emissions include purchase electricity. Scope
3 Other Indirect Emissions include discarded wastepaper.
Unexpectedly, due to the shortage of natural gas supply in
2022, some of the natural gas boilers were replaced by the
desulfurization and denitrification boilers, thus, the scope 1
direct emissions for this Reporting Period were increased
to a certain extent. As the GHG emissions from discarded
wastepaper among total emissions is immaterial for the Group,
the figure is not reported here in this year.

RiIR - HERERRE

AEERREREBHNERRENELAMNE
BEKESEFLEMBENES - HEDHER
IPCCHIIRARMEXLERTENERERA
¥ o BENERFREERE AR (EER) -
KRR (B BR) Rk P p (G TRR K ik
®ED)  BECHEHINEBRBEEE)N  #ES
HEZRNEREERER AR T _FX
ARHMERLTERLIREER - BRI A RIEIR
TEORARMBE - Bt - REHA - SLE
EERBRENE—ERE - BRERTFREH R
BREBRANEERBIMMFEN  RFET
SEARETEHRABHUE -

FY2022 FY2021
GHG Emission BERBHEN —g=-= —TB-—F
(Tonnes of CO, equivalent) (F—FtREE BBFEE VBFE
Scope 1 Direct Emission HENEEEMR 42,013.60 11,850.05
Scope 2 Energy Indirect Emission & [E 2ae IR B 37,464.45 62,465.64
Total GHG Emission BEREBEBEN 79,478.05 74,315.69
Intensity (Tonnes per employee) mEMWEEE) 25.91 28.10

Also, we reduce our carbon emissions through various
indirect carbon sources, such as transportation and business
travel. We prioritize local suppliers in addition to promoting
centralized management of vehicle use and the use of modern
communications tools.

I REBE T Z BREERPEROR (P 2052
BN E M) REHRE R - BAFIBR T HITRPERE
WER  UREARKCBRAIA  TEEER
A FER o
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Furthermore, the Group fully complies with the requirements
of environmental laws and regulations, including the
Environmental Protection Law of the PRC and the
Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the PRC to minimize
the impacts brought by the Group operation. The Group also
fully complies with the requirements stated in the Ambient Air
Quality Standards of the PRC (GB3095-1996), the Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standard of the PRC (GB8979-1996)
and the Code for Design of Outdoor Wastewater Engineering
(GBJ14-1997) for all inevitable emissions, including
greenhouse gases and wastewater emissions, effectively
reducing the impact of the Group on both air and water quality.

Looking forward, we will reduce our emission gradually by
implementing more emission reduction measures. We will keep
adopting desulfurization and denitrification technology for our
boilers in the future.

Waste Management

In accordance with the hierarchy of waste management, the
Group is dedicated to segregate and recycle waste wherever
it is practical, as well as properly handle and dispose of waste
produced by its business operations to minimize any negative
impacts on the environment. The major hazardous waste of
the Group includes waste mineral oil produced, general dust
and waste oil drums used while the main non-hazardous waste
includes waste of boiler and waste generated from cleaning
process. In conformity with the requirements of the regional
Environmental Protection Department, the Group’s mines have
recycled all discarded waste through professional recycling
and disposal companies.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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Due to the shortage of natural gas supply in 2022, some of
the natural gas boilers were replaced by the desulfurization
and denitrification boilers, thus, the total hazardous waste
of both mines for this Reporting Period were increased to a
certain extent. The major types of hazardous waste are waste
mineral oil and waste oil drum, which are recycled by qualified
organisation. Besides, the major types of the non-hazardous
waste are gangue produced in the washing process, the boiler
slag and domestic garbage. They are reused road repairing or
handled by the environmental officials for treatment.

RiIR - HERERRE

AR —FRARMENIREHR - B
WMERRKTHSRARBE - Bt - R EH

N MERENEESERMEEENE—EiE
B - BEREYEIBRAERYHAREHTE - HH
BERBEEY - I BEEEVIBRBR
BREPELNRD  WMESRRELE €
KIEMBEXBRRRERDABRRE -

FY2022 FY2021

—E-= —E-—%F

Waste Disposal (Tonnes) %2 4 (M) M FE FRFE
Total Hazardous Waste BEEEREVRE 1,251.48 593.30
Intensity (Tonnes per employee) mEM &) 0.41 0.22

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of laws and
regulations related to waste treatment, including the Pollution
Control Standard for Hazardous Wastes Incineration of the
PRC (GB18484-2001), Standard for Pollution Control on
Hazardous Wastes Storage of the PRC (GB18597-2001) and
Standard for Pollution Control on Landfill Sites for Hazardous
Waste of the PRC (GB18598-2001), to handle and process
the wastes, regardless of hazardous or non-hazardous, before
disposal to minimize environmental impacts. We will continue
to engage qualified organisation(s) to recycle waste. During
the Reporting Period, the total amount of non-hazardous waste
was insignificant.

AEERKETEEMEERBEZEENR
E o BE(FEEREDR GRS ZEHIZE)
(GB18484-2001) ~ R ElfE M EE W iT 175 45
ZAE) (GB18597-2001) & BBk B ¥ iE 18 )5
i fE#E) (GB18598—2001) » HR B 7 Al IR
EMIEEV(THRBESNES)  BEHIRBERK
MY EREFE - BHMBEBEEZESERKAZE
WY - NIREEN - BEEEEVRESMTHE
o
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In the future, we will gradually reduce our waste disposal by
enhancing resource efficiency and adopting 3R principles
(Reduce, Reuse and Recycle). We will also simplify our
operational process and choosing raw materials that induce
less waste in the future. For instance, we have reduced
a significant amount of waste through the phase out of
traditional boilers. Besides, we have optimised the warehouse
management system to improve the turnover of materials
and resource efficiency. We have closely monitored our
consumption and avoid over purchase.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group believes that changing our behaviour and taking
consistent actions over time can help us reduce our corporate
environmental footprint. As a result, we implement green
policies in our daily operations to minimise our use of energy
and resources and waste recycling. We also encourage our
staffs to adopt a sustainable lifestyle. We advocate 3Rs —
Reduce, Reuse and Recycle throughout our operation to boost
resource efficiency and reduce carbon emission. The Group
remains steadfast in the concept of resources conservation
to achieve green production. In pursuit of this vision, the
Group has implemented various measures to enhance energy
efficiency, as well as reducing consumption of paper and
water. Diligently monitoring and managing use of resources,
the Group strives to improve the efficient use of resources.
Given the business nature, use of packaging materials is
irrelevant to the business of the Group. Details on energy and
water consumption are provided below in this section.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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In the Reporting Period, the resources directly consumed by RBEHR - AEBEAREENEREERERD

the Group for operations are as follows: s

Resource Consumption Unit FY2022 Fy2021

—E-= —E-—4F

ERHF By Ft BU4F B MTRFER

Electricity MWh 64,482.70 71,055.05

£ JEEL B

Oil MWh 8,565.57 7,473.58

i JK EL R

Natural Gas Cubic metre (m®) 3,011,655 3,184,187
MWh 33,954.63 34,434.36
JEEL B

Total Energy Consumption MWh 107,002.90 112,962.00

BERMEERER JK EL R

Intensity MWh per employee 34.89 42.71

2E KEEE1RE

Water Consumption m3 69,323.00 90,532.00

FA7K ST R

Intensity m? per employee 22.60 34.23

=R NHEKR/EE

Note 1:  Water consumption data covers Xingtao Coal Mine and Fengxi Coal
Mine only as the water consumption of Guangzhou office is controlled
by the property management and there is no sub-metering available.

Note 2:  The conversion from activity data to energy value is based on the lower

calorific value of the energy source.

FRED PR (20 2 P AR 5 PO R - itk T e R B
MAZWRKAYEEILEIEG - WED KR -

M2 REPBBEERAERREDERERNBIEEREE

H
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We have continuously upgraded our mining equipment to
enhance energy efficiency. The original 400 kW front and
rear conveyor motors were replaced with an 855 kW inverter-
integrated motor. The power of the motor was increased by
455 kW, and the cumulative load was be increased by 3640
kW. In addition, the 90204b main and auxiliary transportation
channels was in the process of excavation. 9 sets of 150 kW
belt conveyors were deployed to cater for the long excavation
distance. Moreover, an additional excavation team was added
during the construction of one of the mining faces, and the
cumulative load increased by 500 kW.

Looking forward, we aim to reduce our energy consumption
gradually by enhancing energy efficiency of our equipment.
In addition to phasing out the existing lightings with more
energy-saving lightings, such as LEDs, we will give priority to
equipment with energy efficiency labels. Besides, we are keen
to nurture conservation awareness of energy and resources to
our employees, minimising unnecessary power consumption in
workplace.

The Group is aware that excessive resource use can lead
to serious environmental problems. As a result, the Group
constantly fosters its employees’ environmental consciousness.
The Group has pushed forward several environmental
management practices, including green office guidelines
with an aim to promote environmentally benign actions in our
operation. In addition, we will keep adopting and replacing
energy-efficient equipment to reduce our energy usage. Some
of our adopted measures for increasing resource efficiency are
listed below.

Water consumption

The Group is fully aware of the significance of water scarcity
to the environment and to the community. Water consumed
by the Group is derived from the water supply within the local
area and poses no difficulty in accessing to water sources. The
Group proactively focuses on promoting measures to conserve
water, including conspicuous signages to remind employees
of water conservation and maintain the momentum of water-
saving awareness. We intend to increase our water efficiency
in the near future by prompt maintenance of dripping faucets
and gradual replacement with water-saving equipment.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEHFRAR
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group is committed to taking immediate action to further
improve our environmental performance in the aspects of
lowering our total greenhouse gas emissions, resource and
energy consumption, and waste production by utilizing the
GB/T24001-2016/ISO 14001: 2015 certified Environmental
Management System (“EMS”) and GB/T23331-2012 Energy
Management System to identify, manage and mitigate the
environmental risks generated by our building and operational
processes.

An environmental team has been formed to oversee the
establishment, implementation, maintenance, and continuous
development of our EMS. The team is operated under the
direction of the CEO to examine the environmental key
performance indicators, such as violation of relevant laws
and regulations, safety rate of handling hazardous waste
and environmental training coverage. It is also responsible
for raising staff's environmental awareness and participation
in compliance of environmental laws, waste and pollution
reduction and safety and environmental operation. Risk
assessment and environmental impact assessment on the
production facilities are conducted regularly to identify the
Group’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats
of the emissions of air pollutants, greenhouse gases, water,
sewage, hazardous and non-hazardous waste, noise and sail
quality, and update the stewardship approach.

The Group recognizes that respect for nature and the
environment has become an essential component of our
social values. As a socially responsible enterprise, whilst
continuously seeking to decrease resource consumption
and environmental impacts, the Group will look for means
to improve profitability, and continue with our commitments
to sustainability development. In addition to continuing to
identify, assess, and manage potential adverse environmental
impacts, the Group will remain committed to strike a balance
between the business and the ecology, and pursue long-
term sustainability development. The Group will keep taking
environmental preservation and resource conservation into
consideration amid our review and planning of operation
strategies and development.

The Group will continue to take environmental protection and
conservation of natural resources into consideration amid our
review and planning of operation strategies and development.

RiIR - HERERRE
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CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change is one of the greatest challenges of our times
and it will bring significant impacts to our business if we not
to develop a plan to deal with the changing climate promptly.
Therefore, our board and the sustainability committee assess
and evaluate climate-related risks and opportunities regularly.

The major physical risks identified of the Group is the threat
of extreme weather events which bring heavy rainfalls that
may lead to severe flooding and landslide. The Group has
formulated protocols for the safety of employees and the
minimization of impact on the Group’s operation. The protocols
include strict compliance with the extreme weathering
guidelines announced by the government and adjustment of
mining activities. In addition, we have formulated emergency
guidelines and measures to minimise the impacts brought by
natural disasters. The Group will review its policies on a regular
basis to ensure their effectiveness.

Besides, we have identified opportunities to enhance our
procurement procedures to enhance resource efficiency.
During the Reporting Period, we have thoroughly carried out
a comprehensive clearance and warehouse management
system. The upgraded centralised system can optimise the
management of inventory. Stock can be tracked timely in the
system to avoid over procurement and reduce wastage.

Additionally, under the circumstances of climate change,
we could take the needs to enhance the efficiency of
transportation, production and distribution as our opportunity
for improvement. Throughout the Reporting Period, we have
smoothed the transportation process of coal production and
trade through the consolidation and delivery stations in Shanxi,
Hebei, Inner Mongolia and other places. We strive to optimize
and coordinate the supply chain of our coal products, from
production to sales to achieve a high degree of integration of
production, transportation and sales. With this strategy, we
have also reduced internal transportation costs and enhanced
market flexibility and efficiency.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group believes that gaining the trust of the communities
in which we operate and winning their recognition of the
Group’s contribution are crucial for the development of our
business in a sustainable way. We undertake the mission
to promote the harmonious development of community in a
greener environment as a socially responsible enterprise. We
encourage employees to participate in volunteer work and
support investment in community development. Our care for
the community, contribution to the society and development
in the industry are considered as core responsibilities that
contribute to the long-term growth of the Group.

The Group will continue with regular reviews of its objectives
for and direction of community investments, sponsorship and
donation activities. Moreover, the Group will examine whether
its social performance aligns with its community investment
policy and community objectives, while overseeing and
improving its team capacity to ensure the implementation of
community investment policies.

During the Reporting Period, RMB4,248,000 charitable
donations were made by the Group to enhance social
development in various aspects. In addition, the Group
contributed in area of education by participating in the
relocation of Magalau Primary School in Indonesia, we
supported underprivileged students through donations of
materials.

OUTLOOK

The Group considers that the existing environmental and social
responsibility measures are adequate for our compliance with
relevant laws and listing rules, but necessary reviews and
adjustments are required to meet the requirements of various
laws, listing rules and internal management. In order to pursue
ongoing improvement in our ESG performance in the future,
the Group will continue to review and develop corresponding
ESG policies and targets in addition to optimizing the ESG
reporting disclosure
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HKEX REPORTING GUIDE INDEX B &85l REl

HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls

BRESGHREESIN—REBRBRAKER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHEmH

Aspect A Environmental

[EHEARE
A1 Emission Information on: Organisational
AT - the policies; and Footprint — Emissions
- compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | && ¥ — HE)
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes.
EHEERRRERBEER  MKRTHOHES AEREEZE
EYHEEFH
- BE: R
- BTHZETABERZENHEBEZERALNEL -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Organisational

RS AR IR IRAT 1 BE TSR KRR TR B o

Footprint — Emissions
LERY - BEY

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse
RREWIEFAL2 gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.

per unit of production volume, per facility).
BEE(EE) R REZ (EE2)REREHKE AT E) &
(ER)ZREWMAEES BN - BIEREE)

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions

EERY - B

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
RASEAE IEIZA1 3 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEEAERENEE M) RERTE WHSES
B - SRR ) -

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions
BB T - B

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and where
FRERIEIFEA14 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FELREERNEE (UM E)ROER EE (NN SES
B - FERIGHE) °

The amount of
non-hazardous waste
was insignificant.
BREEZEVHEET
PN

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
RIS IBIZA1 5 achieve them.
Hil B R R B B R R FEUGERK B IR PR o

Organisational
Footprint — Emissions
BB T - e
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HKEx ESG Reporting Guide General Disclosures & KPls

BRFFESGHREESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHEMD

KPI A1.6
FASAEMIEIRA16

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

R EEREZEEMN T L
FERERBGEK B IRH TR

DA B H it B 3% FE RO R HE B

Organisational
Footprint —
LETT - B

Emissions

A2 Use of Resource

Policies on efficient use of resources including energy, water

Organisational

A2 ERER and other raw materials. Footprint — Use of
ERERER(BIERER - KEEMEMED)BUR - Resources
EER - BREMA
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. | Organisational

RABRAE RIBIZA2.1

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
RENESWEER SEEERNE - feom@EE LT
BFREE) REE(WABESEN - FERKMEAH) °

Footprint = Use of
Resources
LETY -BIRER

KPI A2.2
FAB AR IRA2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEKEREBREWAGESSEN - BIERBAH) o

Organisational
Footprint = Use of
Resources

EERY -BREM

KPI A2.3
RREBIEIRA2.3

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

e RERARE  UARERENBEBERERICEK B RS
,%%E o

Organisational
Footprint — Use of
Resources
EERY -EREMA

KPI A2.4
RABEAE IBIZEA2.4

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

et SR EXGE A KR £ R A E AR
EHEEREREGERK B R R

RIAKHE  URER

Organisational
Footprint — Use of
Resources
BETY -BRER

KPI A2.5
RAB A UIEIRA2.5

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes),
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

SR mATAEEM B NAE CANERT &) K (ER) B EEAE

EO

We do not consume
packaging materials
due to industry
nature.
HRTTEMEEAR
B EREBEM
£t o
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BRFFESGHREIESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e 2HED

A3 The Environment

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the

Organisational

and Natural environment and natural resources. Footprint — The
Resources BIRBITABRIERRARERENERLEBHEE Environment and
A3 RERRXAREIR Natural Resources
EERY -
RIERRAEIR
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the | Organisational

BAS A8 IR 1RA3.1

environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HEREHHRRRRAERNEATERERNEREGH
FEMITE) o

Footprint — The
Environment and
Natural Resources
EIER -
RIERRAER

A4 Climate Change

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-

Organisational

Ad RIRBE related issues which have impacted, and those which may | Footprint — Climate
impact, the issuer. Change
BRILEEHERRAIRGHETAELAXENEARKERSE | €ERD - RIRE(L
HEBGE -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have | Organisational

RS AE IR IRA4 1

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the

Footprint — Climate

actions taken to manage them. Change
BB KRG HETAELRENEARBRERSEE - &k | £ERY - RIFE(L
JEEITTE o

Aspect B Social

EEBHtE

B1 Employment Information on: Responsible

B1 {E{& —  the policies; and Employment —

—  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EBAFHEFE  BEREA  IENHS - B FEKe -

ZItt ~ RIERIA R E M8 KA

- HE R

- BTHETABERRENHBZIERRHNER -

Employment and
Labour Practices
aBETERE -
ERFERBTIER
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BRFFESGHREESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e SHEMD

KPI B1.1
FASAEMIEIRB1.1

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-
or part-time), age group and geographical region.

RMR - EEER (DI 2R - FRAER R RE D e E
B8 -

Responsible
Employment —
Employment and
Labour Practices

BEEERE-

BENSTIER
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical | Responsible
RSB WIEEBT.2 region. Employment —

RIER -~ FARN RS DMEERKLE -

Employment and
Labour Practices

BETERE-
EBRERLIER
B2 Health and Information on: Responsible
Safety -  the policies; and Employment —
B2 BEHZE - compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Occupational Health
significant impact on the issuer and Safety
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting | & & T{E# -
employees from occupational hazards. BERERERZ S
FRRMZE2TERERREBEEREBELLEN
- BER
- ETHBETAGEATENEBEZIROINER -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of | Responsible
FASR B B 1EB2.1 the past three years including the reporting year Employment —
BA=F(BRERFE)EFEITHABKILE - Occupational Health
and Safety
BEAERE-
BERERREZS
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Responsible
BB A E1RB2.2 EIGIEATIERS - Employment —
Occupational Health
and Safety
BETERE-
BERERZE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures | Responsible
RA R R IR 1EB2.3 adopted, how they are implemented and monitored. Employment -
W PTRMNBRERFEAL2EE - UWRHEBEHNTRERS | Occupational Health
VA o and Safety
BETERE-
BEERET S
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Explanation/
Reference Section

BRFTESGHRERESIN—RIEERBRERER R 2HED
B3 Development Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for | Responsible
and Training discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Employment —
B3 & &iEHI BT EERIT LIERE N MB L ERREMBUR « #HFFIE | Training and
g o Development
BETERE-
Bl R R
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee | Responsible
B8R 4R B 1T B3 A category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Employment -
ZHRRESRNESREERE HREBEER)ESHVXIIES | Training and
Bkt e Development
BEEERE-
= D& 9
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender | Responsible
BB A R 1EB3.2 and employee category Employment —
RIUERMEEBERIE D BREETHIIINFIIRE - Training and
Development
BETER-
Bl RER
B4 Labour Information on: Responsible
Standards - the policies; and Employment — Labour
B4 T %8| - compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Standards
significant impact on the issuer BETERE -
relating to preventing child and forced labour. 4 TR
BRAYILE T eiog 4 T -
- BE R
- ETHBETAGEARZENEBEERROINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to | Responsible
RA iR 1B B 1EB4 A avoid child and forced labour. Employment — Labour
S MR E OB e E T REHIS T - Standards
BEEERE -
8 TR
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when | Responsible
RASR AR B 1EB4.2 discovered. Employment — Labour

R ERIRER B HRB RIS AR TR -

Standards
BETRE -

T AR
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Explanation/
Reference Section

BRFTESGHREHESIN—RIEERBRERER R 2HED
B5 Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply | Product Quality
Management chain. — Supply Chain
B5 AEHEER B EEARRE RS RERBECR Management
EmEE -
HEEER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Product Quality
RABE A A 1RB5. 1 mwREDNHERHEAE - = Supply Chain
Management
EmEE -
HEEER
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number | Product Quality
RA4 1A B 1EB5.2 of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how | — Supply Chain
they are implemented and monitored. Management
HEFERERHERNEY mMERATEBENNHERS | EREE -
B ARMEBERITRERTE - HrEgEER
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental | Product Quality
RS AE WIE1EB5.3 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are | — Supply Chain
implemented and monitored. Management
HRBEIRHEESERSNBRREIEGRARNED UKk | EREE -
HEMITRERITA - HERER
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally | Product Quality
RA 4R 1A B 1EB5 .4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and | — Supply Chain
how they are implemented and monitored. Management
R EREREEREEZARREMRRBHOED - UKE | EREE -
BT REERE L - e ER
B6 Product Information on: Product Quality —
Responsibility — the policies; and Product/Service
B6 EmEE — compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Responsibility
significant impact on the issuer EmEE -
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy | Em,~IR¥&E T

matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

FHRFRHERNMRENEREZS  BES  REIMESEHE
AR R AR

- BE:R

- ETHBETAGEAZENEBEERROINER -
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BRFFESGHREIESIN—RWERBAREARIER

Explanation/
Reference Section

e 2HED

KPI B6.1
B4 M IR 1RB6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
PEIEEXERAHTRATREREHMAR KN A H

Product Quality —
Product/Service
Responsibility

g e EmEE -
Em/ REEE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received | Product Quality —
RSB WIE1EB6.2 and how they are dealt with. Product/Service
BEBANERMIRTFEIRFE B AR EH X - Responsibility
EmEE -
Em/ REEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting | Product Quality —

PR AE M1515B6.3

intellectual property rights.

Tl B e o N AR IR A E R B RV B B

Product/Service
Responsibility

EmEE -
Em/ RBEE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. | Product Quality —
3R 4R B 15.B6.4 HilEERTRERERBKER - Product/Service
Responsibility
EmEE -
Em/ REEE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, | Product Quality —
RASE A WIEIZB6 .5 how they are implemented and monitored. Product/Service
HAUEEEERMRERALBBER - URABRBAITRERTE Responsibility
EmEE -
B/ RIGEE
B7 Anti-corruption Information on: Corporate
B7 XES - the policies; and Governance — Anti-
— compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a | Corruption
significant impact on the issuer TEER-RES
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAM LHRER - 9R - BEFROEREN ¢
- BE R
- ETHBETAGEAZENEBEZEROINER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices | Corporate
R4 I 1EBT 1 brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting | Governance — Anti-
period and the outcomes of the cases. Corruption

REFHAHBETASEEBERI YD BRENESHKARMTN
B MAFAARER -

TEER-RES
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Explanation/
Reference Section

BRESGH EIEaIN—RIEERBRERIEE e 2HED
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing | Corporate
B4R 1A B IERT .2 procedures, how they are implemented and monitored. Governance — Anti-
B E S i S BRRIE - A RABBERIT RERTE - Corruption
TrEEL-RES
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and | Corporate
RS R B 1EBT.3 staff. Governance — Anti-
fHitmEE RS TIRENREITHE - Corruption
rEER-RES
B8 Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs | Community
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its | Investment
B8 it EIRE activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. fTERE
FRMME2ERTREEMEHRFTENRREER DS
E B RN s H R
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental | Community
BRI 1EB8.1 concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Investment
EITEREREHE  BRREFE  LHIFK - BF - b8 | HERE
B)-
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Community
RS R IR 1EB8.2 EEIBBEMBAERNSEKEER) - Investment
HERIRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R R

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 141 to
332 which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF

Moore Stephens CPA Limited % N
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, Eﬂi E
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, =
Kowloon, Hong Kong 7% B
FRr
T +852 2375 3180 5
F +85223753828 g
N =
www.moore.hk 5 =
BHEREEEFTRAE
IR 2B A AR
(REEHEFMA LHBR L E])
ER
EEEERIIRNEIMEIRETHAEZEEEE
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BIEFEZEAEEBAR FaaZsRNM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights that the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB4,155,839,000. As at 31
December 2022, the borrowings and accrued interest
amounting to an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB1,330,634,000 and approximately RMB219,718,000
respectively had been due for immediate payment. In addition,
as at 31 December 2022, there were several unsettled
litigations against the Group mainly requesting the Group to
repay certain payables with interest immediately.

18 3 BT R

RENER

EERBEELESTMAS(FESFTMAE])MR
E BB ENTEERTERDETERT
- BEEERSENTEAANEERNZEERE
NZBEN L B ZAR A M RR AR ENREE—&
E—FMI - REBEFBGFMHAEN(EX S
iR (PRI ER B HER S BB ERER
EMBRRNBEER  BEEFDNBEUN BE5H
YEERZFRENTARTHEMEREEZ - &
EREMECSHEZRERRIMEEML/ES
HEZE R ER -

FRFEACENERTHBRE

TERMRAKAVIEREM T2 - HaE2
Bl BEEENRDABEFHEOAARE
4,155,839,000C - R BB -_—F+-_fF=+—
B 2RI# ARA1,330,634,0007T &4 AR
219,718,000 K& B K JE 5T 7 S 2 2 HAZA AN s 52
Fodtdh  RZE=—_F+-_A=+—H ' BH
TRt BEEMNRRFARA ETEZEBRk H&
&7 BMER B D Rt BT AR o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BT

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN (CONTINUED)

These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2
to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt over
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF

ARFACENERTHBRRER®

A EBRERGE MR T2 E S
B RAGTEHREIIHY BERERFELERED
EXBARRNEATHARE - BSHEEFS
BB RILEESR] -

HAREZSEE

AREZFRIREESENEZHHEFTRAE
RGN BERRERETRAEENEH - FF
ERERGAVBRRIH A ERS RREEZ
EEH MIERXEFTRERERER - KA
BAREKENERTHBEZ—FAEHERI -
EENH T EREE /BN ZBENRE REZE
HEREZSA -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

[

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

BARFEZSEH®

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EENERNNEEZEE

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights and related property, plant and equipment

BRRBERAABYE - BERREZBETG

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had coal
mining rights and related property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB2,367,351,000 and
RMB3,404,125,000 respectively, as disclosed in notes
15 and 16 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements. No impairment losses in relation to coal
mining right and property, plant and equipment of the
coal business segment were recognised respectively
during the year.

BN E IR IS RI16DRIHKE - R
TZA=+—H > EBSENRKREEREEDE -
BEREED LB ARKE2,367,351,0000T & AR
3,404,125,0007T ° G P4 8 Bt AR IR 22 15 90 B0 10 KR IR BRI
AR - BB REZED RIERREEE -

Our procedures to evaluate the impairment assessment
of coal mining rights and related property, plant and
equipment made by the management of the Group
included:

ERHE EREEEEMETHRREBELEED

¥ BERRERENGER - BFRNTUATRERF
. We assessed management’s identification of

individual assets and CGUs to test the assets
for impairment based on the Group’s accounting
policies and our understanding of the Group’s
business;

EERE EEENSFBERIE EEEXK
BT AEERERANEEETRERSME
BHREEMRSEEBMETHRER

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the external
valuer;

FERHHINEREERM A RMKE - 88 - FHEIE
JSE VA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
BRBEZBIR

FAREFEZSEH®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEREZSE

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights and related property, plant and equipment (continued)

BRR KRR AR - BE K RE 2R EF )

For the purpose of management’'s impairment e

assessment, the recoverable amounts of the individual
assets or the cash generating units (“CGUs”), to which
the assets belonged were determined by management,
with assistance of an independent qualified external
valuer engaged by the Group, based on their values
in use using cash flow projections. In carrying out the
impairment assessments, significant management
judgements were used to determine the key assumptions,
including projected sales quantities, unit selling prices,
unit costs, gross margins, growth rates, production plan
taking into account the time required for the renewal of
coal mining rights, and discount rates, underlying the
value-in-use calculations. Accordingly, the impairment
assessment of these assets was considered to be one of
most significance in the audit and therefore determined
to be a key audit matter.

HERBETHRENEME  EEEEXEEMBDN
ReE+EU((ReEFENDNRAINOSERERE

EEEZRBHEY A ERINMEERMAHE) T ERAR

EREFAREEREEEE - HETRENGR - &
BEFLHBEAHBNEETIZRE  EREEERER
MHEANRHE  BUEE  BulAs - £H - ERE
HEFE Gt REBERBEMTORE) RAERE - At -
ZEEEMREMERESEZERTRAEENTIRL
— BINEEREREZEE -
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We assessed the value-in-use calculations and
methodology adopted by management and the
external valuer;
EEMHERE RN EEMETNEREES
BERFIFANE A

We assessed the reasonableness of key
assumptions (including projected sales quantities,
unit selling prices, unit costs, gross margins,
production plan, growth rates and discount rates)
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and
EERBEAFHEHZRBERITRORBHE  fFHEER
BR(BERRES  BEUEE  BUKAKN - E
Mo HERE  BRENBEBREX)ZLREIE R

We evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed
by the management and the external valuer in
respect of the growth rates and discount rates to
assess the extent of impact on the calculations of
the value in use.
EETEERE RN EERMMIERE KA E
ETHHREST - L EEERAEEFEN
2IRE -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
[E 7

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BERE

BARFEZSEH®

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNNEREZSE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivables

EHE SRR HEMEERRNERFES R 2BRBETE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade Our procedures to evaluate the assessment of loss
receivables and other receivables of approximately allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables
RMB178,867,000 and RMB280,234,000 respectively, and other receivables:

as disclosed in notes 22 and 23 respectively to the fEFHARKE FRF K EMEKRERNFEREESEZ
consolidated financial statements. Impairment losses of B8 B ET(HEF » BEERE T A TEF ¢

nil and RMB3,082,000 for trade receivables and other

receivables respectively were recognised in profit or loss e

during the year.

AR A SRR 2R 23D RIHE R - —F
+ZA=+—H8 ' EBE£BENEREZIEREIREmEKEER
HORIH A AR178,867,0007T & A R #280,234,000
JC° FAESMENRE SRR EHmERERNER S B
RBEBEARKEEZ TR AKRKS,082,0007T °

The assessment process of credit risk involved high
level of estimation uncertainty and required exercise of
significant management judgement. Accordingly, the
assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses
on trade receivables was considered to be a key audit
matter.

EERBNA GBI RSEAFT T RELTFTEERRE
EREXRAE - Bt - BRWESBRFNEREEFEZE
BRETEREAERERSER -

We obtained an understanding on the
management’s process for credit risk assessment
and assessment of loss allowance for expected
credit losses on trade receivables and other
receivables;

EEHERENEEERR M EEKE ZHERR
EEMERERNEREEBR 2 BEREENS
REG TR

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
aging of trade receivables and other receivables
balances based on invoice date and due date
as at the end of the reporting period to the
underlying invoices;
EEREEHAREREENREHRNIIEE
OB 54 8 W B 5 R AR % EL At B LA BR SRR A4S BA RO BR
B YEREME
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FAREFEZSEH®

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRBEZBR EENERNMEEZSE

Assessment of loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other receivables
(continued)

W E SRR R R RRNERFEEE R 2B RRENE (@

o We assessed the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing the accuracy of
the historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current economic conditions and
forward-looking information and examining
the actual losses recorded during the current
financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising
loss allowances; and
EETGEEEMELOEERELFRES
B HARECEREERERABKMANE
£ BRARBERNBIRNERE - STEBE
BEREXELERBAILBEMNRRRATEMLER T A
BEABRYBEAPRFEREFSNERERE - A
M EREATSRBTNEREEARREREBR
FERR &

o For the collectively assessed expected credit
losses, we assessed the reasonableness of
the Group’s expected credit losses models,
including the model inputs, model design, model
performance for significant portfolios.
RERBAGENEAEEEEMNS - 550 M &
SEMANEHGEEBREARSAE 8K
I ABE - ARG - EXASHEAKRR -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2022 of the
Group other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

18 3 BT R

REVBBREREAZBEAHREAINESR

EREAHEMENAESE HOBERBER
F BfEEIRNEE—_T_—_F+-_A=1+—H
IEFEFRPBREE T RER R EZEAIIRE LA
SN E R o

EEHEAMBRRHANERL NREEME
B TP eHEMENBERTANRANZES

A
g ©

EEZEAMBHERE  ESNAETEHER M
Bf ANZREMEHNESBEAMTERERNL
ELZEBRARTESNENFEERTKN @ %K
REMTEUFFEEAR#EREL - HEFRE
BETHNITERR/EMERFESE AHERERL -
AEEEREAREE - BUtME  BEFALEL
MERAZRE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF R ERGESVMBBRRERENSHE
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A% BT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HmEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FizE AR®T R ARETT
Revenue g 7 3,794,039 4,559,180
Cost of sales SHEMA (2,520,756) (2,618,061)
Gross profit EX 1,273,283 1,941,119
Other income, gains and losses HA -~ Wz R EE 8 85,533 377,506
Distribution expenses pakiclii b3 (2,100) (4,530)
Administrative expenses THREX (305,286) (250,721)
Reversal of impairment losses on coal mining & i% St 7 5l (B E5 1B B[]
rights 15 - 1,441,315
Reversal of impairment losses on property, plant ¥ « BE & & E 2 BB EEED
and equipment 16 - 852,991
Reversal of impairment losses on trade W E 5T 2 RAEE R FE
receivables, net - 12,305
(Impairment losses)/reversal of impairment HERERR Rt EUERZ 2 CREE
losses on prepayments and other receivables,  18) /R(EEBE R
net (3,082) 5,394
Other expenses Hif % (27,878) (44,522)
Operating profit gy 1020470 - 4,330,857
Finance income BRI A 16,197 7,038
Finance costs IHBAA (269,886) (367,799)
Net finance costs B RE 9 (253,689) (360,761)
Profit before taxation BB AR 10 766,781 3,970,096
Income tax expense FriEMAS 1 (276,745) (782,186)
Profit after taxation BB & RA ~ fo003 3,187,910
Other comprehensive income/(loss) B2 EKA/ (FE)
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  E#&m gt EH DAL IBRENIER ¢
profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation differences for TIINETSE L 7 NI E 2R
foreign operations 11,714 (2,374)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the  FREMI2EKA /(FE) » BB
year,netoftax. ] a4 (2374)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EMALLE 501,750 3,185,536
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REZHEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

2022 2021
ot St - T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bzt ARET R ARETT
Profit for the year attributable to: EEEREF :
Equity shareholders of the Company AREERREAA 456,543 2,793,546
Non-controlling interests Bl ey 33,493 394,364
Profit for the year ERBF 490,036 3,187,910
Total comprehensive income for the year EEEREBALLE :
attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company ARAERFEA 468,257 2,791,172
Non-controlling interests RS 33,493 394,364
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZERALE 501,750 3,185,536
Earnings per share attributable to the equity FRAARERFEAREEREF
shareholders of the Company during the
year 14

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

BREARH

SREFRA

RMB18.1 cents
AR¥18.12

RMB17.5 cents
AR¥17.59

RMB111.8 cents
ARE111.8%

RMB107.0 cents
ARE107.05
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
maE BRI R

31 December 2022 —E - —F+—-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ek ARBT T ARBTT
(Restated)
(E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Coal mining rights B IR BRI R 15 2,367,351 2,990,264
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE A& 16 3,432,903 2,978,330
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 17,325 30,562
Other deposit HEmize 23 27,858 25,503
Interest in an associate R—REEE AT 2 s 18 = =
5,845,437 6,024,659
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7B 21 439,373 217,533
Trade receivables FEWE 2 BR 5K 22 178,867 182,421
Prepayments and other receivables  FE{TBR K H i FE UL BR 3K 23 387,181 419,246
Financial asset at fair value through AR B ABFENESREE
profit and loss - 20,112
Pledged and restricted deposits B R R HF 24 143,676 2,103
Cash and cash equivalents He kB eEEY 25 855,997 1,030,439
2,005,094 1,871,854
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERE 5 8RR 26 (387,564) (320,464)
Other payables and contract liabilites EERMERANR AN BEE 27 (1,967,025) (2,305,855)
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 (8,794) (8,833)
Borrowings BE 28 (3,447,453) (1,475,850)
Tax payable FESFIIR (350,097) (469,921)
6,160,933 (4,580,923)
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (4,155,839) (2,709,069)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZAEBERGABAES 1,689,598 3,315,590
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIR1EZRER 29 (179,614) (144,090)
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 (1,534) (6,925)
Borrowings BE 28 (73,307) (2,216,782)
Deferred taxation EFERIE 19 (621,932) (631,278)
(876,387) (2,999,075)
Net asset EEFE 813,211 316,515
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& B AR R

31 December 2022 —E-—F+—-A=+—H

2022 2021
—E=E-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
tiEs3 ARBT ARBTTT
(Restated)
(& =E5)
Capital and reserves AR #E
Share capital N 32 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible sk AR &R AT A RS 5 55
securities 32 156,931 156,931
Deficit B4t (355,048) (818,253)
Total equity/(deficit) attributable to AR AR FE AELER
equity shareholders of the (B 4t) 48 58
Company 13,107 (450,098)
Non-controlling interests FEERER 800,104 766,613
Total equity FERBE 813,211 316,515
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directorsof RZFZ=F=A-t+NBEFEREEEAR
China Qinfa Group Limited on 29 March 2023. NRIESEIEREERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BREREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR%T T ARBTIT

Operating activities REEE
Profit before taxation B 15t A A 766,781 3,970,096
Adjustments for: BTN FIEELFHEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB RERETE

equipment 10 324,711 304,340
Amortisation of coal mining rights IR R B e 1 B 10 622,739 427,722
Depreciation of right-of-use asset FREEENE 10 15,589 5,664
Finance income B IS UA 9 (16,197) (7,038)
Finance costs B ISR AR 9 269,886 367,799
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HE¥E « FE L& E

plant and equipment BB (k) F58 8 210 (27,121)
Reversal of impairment losses on coal (&R iR HE 2 8 E 518 B O

mining rights 15 - (1,441,315)
Reversal of impairment losses on HFEZREEERE

inventories - (7,000)
Reversal of impairment losses on Y BEEREREZ

property, plant and equipment VERIEY ai=tEqEl 16 = (852,991)
Reversal of impairment on trade FEWE 5 R R E R B F 58

receivables, net - (12,305)
Impairment losses/(reversal of TE T AR R B A FE R BR TR 2

impairment losses) on prepayments  JE{EEE, G {EEE#EE)

and other receivables, net FER 3,082 (5,394)
Gain on substantial modification upon REREABIEHEXIEE 2

loan restructuring Wz 8 (11,321) (238,673)
Net gain on non-substantial B8z IFEREBR TR

modification of borrowings 8 (31,203) -
Fair value gain on financial assetat ~ ZAAEABZNESRHEE

fair value through profit or loss 2 A ERE 8 (438) =

1,943,839 2,483,784

Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Change in inventories FEEH) (224,825) (157,795)
Change in trade receivables JEURE 5 RR N E 2,288 260,027
Change in prepayments and other TERTER N R H Ath R AR SR & )

receivables 86,800 (106,382)
Change in trade payables R E SRR E 74,620 (349,866)
Change in other payables and HEMENERREHNEEZD

contract liabilities (336,465) 60,859
Cash generated from operations RESTHERE 1,546,257 2,190,627
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E T - —F+—_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-= T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBT T ARBTIT

Interest paid EARFE (155,910) (127,747)
PRC Corporate Income tax paid BT Bl RATSH (405,915) (175,013)
Net cash generated from operating EEEBREREFH
Cactiviles 94432 1857867
Investing activities REZH
Interest received B U F 8 16,197 7,038
Net cash inflow from asset acquisition 2R B SDE(E # R ff#£31)

of SDE (as defined in note 31) BEEBENRESRAFH - 1,862
Deposits paid for other proposed L A R o Wi i A TR

acquisition of coal mine projects XHmERE - (25,503)
Proceeds from disposal of property,  HEWX - BE L&iE

plant and equipment FRr {8 318 300 156,356
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZRAR BT ABZHNDS R

asset at fair value through profitand ~ BEFFS A

loss 20,550 -
Payments for financial asset at fair BMIRA R EFFAEED

value through profit and loss BREE 2 5K - (20,112)
Payments for property, plant and ME - BB KR E R

equipment (731,108) (136,707)
Placement of pledged and restricted 17/ 2 # 4 & 2[R #77 5%

deposits (141,573) (1,700)
Netcash used in investing activities RREBAARSFE (835634) (18,766)
Financing activities A& SEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEEME fﬁ(lﬁ 25 641,871 653,800
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 25 (939,478) (1,629,721)
Repayments of lease liabilities i i%ﬁﬁ% B (10,207) (13,804)
Netcash used in financing activities BREBfARSFE (307.814) | (989,725)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and TE% RBESZEEY

cash equivalents W),/ 18 R (159,016) 879,376
Cash and cash equivalents at R—BA—BZHEE

1 January RREZEEY 1,030,439 154,904
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHNTZE

changes (15,426) (3,841)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—-Hz2

31 December RERBESZEY 855,997 1,030,439
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

GENERAL

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (2007 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The directors of the Company consider
the immediate and ultimate holding companies of the
Group to be Fortune Pearl International Limited (“Fortune
Pearl”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the ultimate controlling shareholder to be
Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”), the sole shareholder of Fortune
Pearl. The Company’s shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 3 July 2009 (the
“Listing Date”). The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal
place of business of the Company is Unit Nos. 2201 to
2208, level 22, South Tower, Poly International Plaza,
No. 1 Pazhou Avenue East, Haizhu District, Guangzhou
City, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are coal mining,
purchases and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal
in the PRC and shipping transportation.

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD”). However, the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements is Renminbi
(“RMB”) in order to present the operating results and
financial position of the Group based on the economic
environment in which the operating subsidiaries of the
Group operate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB4,155,839,000
(2021: net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,709,069,000). As at 31 December 2022,
borrowings and accrued interest (including default
interest) amounting to approximately RMB1,330,634,000
(2021: RMB1,428,514,000) and approximately
RMB219,718,000 (2021: RMB274,265,000) respectively
had been due for immediate payment, in which short-
term bank borrowings of RMB590,990,000 (2021:
RMB638,000,000) are short-term bank facilities that
have been rolled over upon respective maturities in the
past several years, other borrowing of RMB492,444,000
(2021: RMB492,444,000) and related interest payable
of RMB199,402,000 (2021: RMB226,479,000) classified
as current liabilities in respect of Settlement Agreement
of Loan Ill (as defined and detailed in note 28) only
have total carrying amount of RMB50,602,000 (2021:
RMB51,575,000) payable within twelve months from
31 December 2022 (2021: twelve months from 31
December 2021) if only based on the revised scheduled
repayment terms set out in the Settlement Agreement of
Loan Il (as explained in note 28), and other borrowings
of RMB247,200,000 (2021: RMB298,070,000) are due
to an asset management company or other lenders with
the status as detailed in below note 2(ii).

In addition, pursuant to the settlement agreements (as
detailed in note 28) entered into during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2021, there are default clauses
that the asset management companies can require the
Group to pay the outstanding balance of the original
borrowings and interest payable immediately in the
event of default. As at 31 December 2022, in respect
of the settlement agreements, other borrowings, which
had no event of default occurred so far up to the end
of the reporting period, with carrying amounts of only
RMB2,607,894,000 (2021: RMB2,756,562,000) and
related interest payable of RMB199,402,000(2021:
RMB226,479,000) were recognised in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position. Please
see note 28 to the consolidated financial statements for
details.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Moreover, there are a number of litigations against the
Group of which the details are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, mainly requesting the
Group to settle long outstanding payables with interest.
And the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
RMB13,000 (2021: RMB2,103,000) were restricted for
use in relation to the litigation proceeding, as set out in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the assumptions that the Group will
continue to operate as a going concern notwithstanding
the conditions prevailing as at 31 December 2022
and subsequently thereto up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue. In order to improve the Group’s financial position,
immediate liquidity and cash flows, and otherwise to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the directors of
the Company have adopted several measures together
with other measures in progress at the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, which include but not limited to, the followings:

(i) For borrowings which will be maturing before
31 December 2023, the Group is actively
negotiating with banks/lenders before they fall
due to secure their renewals so as to ensure
that the necessary funds will be in place to
meet the Group’s working capital and financial
requirements in the future will continue to be
met. The directors of the Company are of the
view that based on past experience and the
current communication with banks/lenders, no
significant difficulties are expected in renewing
the lender’s borrowings and banks’ short-term
revolving borrowings upon their maturities;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

In relation to those borrowings that have
been past due or those borrowings that
became immediately repayable due to cross-
default clauses set out in the respective loan
agreements, which are classified as current
liabilities and detailed in note 28, the Group is
in the process of negotiating with the relevant
banks and other lenders to extend the repayment
dates and to obtain waivers from banks. The
directors of the Company are of the view that
based on past experience and the current
communication with banks/lenders, it is not
probable that the banks will exercise the cross-
default clauses to demand immediate payment;

the Group will actively obtain additional new
sources of financing as and when needed;

Given the stability of coal market and uprising
coal prices, the Group will accelerate the coal
production of those coal mines currently under
production and apply for the renewal of those
expired coal mining rights of coal mines not
yet commenced production, together with
applying cost control measures in cost of
sales, administrative expenses and capital
expenditures, to increase the Group’s internally
generated funds and operating cash inflows in
coming years continuously. The Group recorded
a net operating cash inflow of approximately
RMB984,432,000 (2021: RMB1,887,867,000)
during the year; and

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(v) The Group has appointed external lawyers
and/or assigned internal lawyers to handle the
outstanding litigations, and to mitigate the risk
exposure from any legal claims. In respect
of some of the litigations, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group has
valid grounds to defend against the claims.

On the basis of the successful implementation of the
measures described above in the foreseeable future
and after assessing the Group’s current and forecasted
cash positions, the directors of the Company are
optimistic that the Group will be able to meet in full the
Group’s financial obligations as they fall due for the
twelve months from 31 December 2022. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on the going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the carrying amounts of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments
have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

REVBBROEREE®

(v) AEESZEIEERHEIR
N EDRADER B AROREF AL - RRIE(E
MAREBERTRAER  BLED D &F
AT ARBEER/AEER
BHEEHREARNE

BRRE L s M RE N AT RS SRR B i+ 4
ANEBEH A RTBRIR S AR ETER
RRBEEEED @ REEGEENER
BOIAEBER=_ZE=__F+=-A=1+—H
Bt =@ A RNESPENMIEET - Bitt
AEEBZGAVBRRCERFECEESE
fmEl o

HARRERGEAERFEQLEEELER
% AREELRABRUSASEEE R
EEMOR 2 E AT [ 558 - R —
FREHERE  UKIERBDEEKIER
BEESNEF I BRARDEERRDA
B REHBZZELRNZFRAMH

HRARR -

—E 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

154

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to IFRSs issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time,

which are mandatorily effective for the annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment =
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2018-2020

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. FE FA 35T I £84% 5T Bl R B 75 3 45 22 B
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (TERRR B #3522 81 |) (&)

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective RAFERGEEMPVLETEBRTERSE
for the current year (continued) Al ()

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 16 FER ST EIRE S5 ERIE16%5 - Y% -
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before BRER R — 1E4EE FH 251 19 Fr 18 50 H B
Intended Use &

The Group has applied the amendments for the first AEEERAFEEREABE - Z5(E
time in the current year. The amendments specify FIIERR - WY BERRHBEERZE
that the costs of any item that were produced while 2R B E B AR T e iR B 1R AT
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the EMHEE - BIERBRERAEENT
location and condition necessary for it to be capable 118 B MR AN DA K HH & 52 5518 B K FT1S 3K
of operating in the manner intended by management HERBEAZENBRZPERRE °
and the proceeds from selling such items should ZEIEE KA RBER g ERIE 2R 17
be recognised and measured in the profit or loss in BIEtE

accordance with applicable standards. The costs
of the items are measured in accordance with IAS 2

Inventories.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, BIBEREGRY  NEBEBFHeBEE
the Group has applied the new accounting policy MERR-_Z-_—F—HA— B8y zi&
retrospectively to property, plant and equipment made AEERNYE - BERRE -  ERET
available for use on or after the beginning of 1 January BERE -

2021. Comparative figures have been restated.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial RZZEZ—_F—F—H  SYHHKIAHE
statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2022 NS ET IR & 5 2B 1658 M X 572
as a result of the adoption of the amendments to IAS Z2H)SEHIIAOT
16:
Increase/
(decrease)
#i, (RD)
RMB’000
ARBTIT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 31,923
Equity EE
Deficit Bt (31,923)
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3. FE A E T B &R 45 5T B BR Bt 7 3R 5 2 Al
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING (TERRR B TR 5 22 81 |) (&)

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet 2 M5B 18 R A R Y 3T RT R RIS 5T Bl BR B
effective 3R &5 2E Al

The Group has not early applied the following new and REBWHIREFEANATNER/MEMAKRE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not RE ] R A 3T B PR B 5 s o5 22 R -

yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June 2020  Insurance Contracts’ Bl BHREEAE RBREL
and December 2021 1TR(EFE=ZEZ
Amendments to IFRS 17) ZEAARZSZ
—F+= AREE
B
81517 %)
Amendments to IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets BEIRBRIERE REEHREBENRNAE
IAS 28 between an Investor and its LRFI0RRER CE/ZANEELERT
Associate or Joint 2RI 285, &2
Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BEERAERE ERHDMNAEEE
Leaseback® ERIZE16 %
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as miETER el BREAEARDIIERD?
Current or Non-current® F15%
Amendments to 1AS 1 Non-current Liabilities with mEIERe Rl WEZENERB AR
Covenants® F15
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting BETER el SFBRNKE"
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies' 15 R EE M BR
HEAEBDES?
i
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting BETERe LR SHEHANER"
Estimates' E8%%
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets TETRReEl HE-XFELAMEERA
and Liabilities arising from a £125% EEBEMELHE
Single Transaction'
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January L RZZEZ=F—A— B ZBHANFEEH
2023. R o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 2 REFTE B Hisk 2 BRI FE ML -
determined.
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January g R NF—A—Hk BRI FEH
2024. RIAER -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current”

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected
by management intentions or expectations
to settle the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the end
of the reporting period, even if the lender
does not test compliance until a later
date; and
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current” (continued)

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’'s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying IAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

IAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of
the related transactions, other events or conditions,
even if the amounts are immaterial. However, not
all accounting policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is itself material.
If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial accounting
policy information, such information must not obscure
material accounting policy information.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies” (continued)

IFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also
amended to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures
and to judge whether information about an accounting
policy is material to its financial statements. Guidance
and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but will affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based
on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in IAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable IFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRS, IAS and related Interpretations, promulgated by
the IASB and the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

BEAEHEE®

AN - B REN S - DA EFERE
RREFENBABBAIBRREERDA
fﬁﬁgﬁ’]ﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬂf’ﬂﬁ%éﬁfﬂﬁi <ok
RE—M - BMRE= > FBEOT

. —m@m%w;s,\ﬁ“ SERT
SHHEREEXRERARTS
Ziﬁ%(?ﬁ,@%ﬁ%) ;

. F_RBABBIREEKAGBE
BEYHRNABR G ABE(E
—RABRENBRERIN - K

. F=RBABEBILEEXRENT
AERaABE -

D/(—F%ZWIK = H+Eﬁ(%

REVBRREBARAALZEEHE
BREMBRBMNMBERE 1th§’&7?\?
BT - RIRSEBEHIE :

AR EHRITERED ¢

° //ﬁxéﬁ?fiﬁﬂ‘kﬁﬁ%f‘T rrrrrrr
HOER S F AR

. BRENEREEFNFEHEIR

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

4,

162

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non- controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF

BEASHEE®

HEEE®

i 2= B R AT R BN E X Pt 2 HIE =TR T
EPW AN L TRERES - BIAE
EEeEMTEEEREHRETNERE
il -

Ry NG SE ST E Syl )= PG Dk
HIER A A AR YRARBKRER
M B AR MIE R LGRS KR - &
BmE - FAMKBELLENEQRANK
ARRXTIEASERGEGZE Bt
AFAEEBAR  BEEAEETBIES
BREAMBRARZBRIE -

B EME2EKRASEE BBR AR A
B ANFEEERR S - B AR 2 EI
ABERRARRHEB ARFERES
A - BB B S S B R A A ot A AR S A
REER o

HERE  MEBARNPERRKIELH
B UEESFERRERNKENSEBR
_ﬁo

ERASERERFIZRARZHMESHE
NAREEENEE @ - WA - X
ARBRERENGARERZEHH -

(R=ENGIECEIS b FatipS ek )
FE5 EREEFZERABTHEA
AR B REZL PO (58RI B R BF
BE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a
single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude
cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business
and no further assessment is needed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

For business combinations in which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet
the definitions of an asset and a liability in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued
by International Accounting Standards Board in
March 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) except for
transactions and events within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21, in which the Group applies IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 “Income Taxes” and IAS
19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the
relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease
when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirers previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non- controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirers
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit, the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of the associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. Changes
in net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long- term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

BEAEHEE®

REBEQAT2BRE®

REBERRZREHREHRKABHER
AE HERAEREAR - WERBEQ
Al ZRER  RERABHAKED(5Z
BREHROABMBIEERABAABEFHE
MEABO NERSEE W ARED
AREE - BHAKESEABMIEERA
BRAEFENEMRERS - REH
EE BN RN IE R B AR Bt AR -

AEEFERCETEEBR NS E R
Al S AT REE R(E - M FE T FEE
= ?ﬁﬁﬁ’]%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ(@%ﬁ%)ﬂ%aﬁ
EER G ERIECHRIERE —BELTT
MEDRIF - TR EE ATk Ol & 58 (1
BERAARERDERNANREE) BERK
HEfE - WHER TR EBRIBKERE
BREER — 88 o ZBEE BRI #E
RIBER ST ERE365R R - HELARER
AN AR @R E S B AAR

—E 43 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

4,

170

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of IFRS 9/IAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment in an associate (continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Iltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use, the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs and changes in the measurement of
existing liabilities recognised for these costs resulting
from changes in the timing or outflow of resources
required to settle the obligation or from changes in the
discount rate. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as
part of that equipment.

When proved and probable coal reserves have been
determined, costs incurred to develop coal mines are
capitalised as part of the cost of the mining structures.
All other expenditures, including the costs of removing
waste materials, the cost of repairs and maintenance
and major overhaul, are expensed as they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Recognition and measurement (continued)

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different estimated useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.

Sale proceeds of items that are produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
(such as samples produced when testing whether
the asset is functioning properly), and the related
costs of producing those items are recognised in the
profit or loss. The cost of those items are measured in
accordance with the measurement requirements of IAS
2.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its
residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed and if a component has an
estimated useful life that is different from the remainder
of the asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of each component
of an item of property, plant and equipment, other than
mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years of significant items of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years

Electronic and other equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under
construction until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and available for intended use. Assets under
construction are transferred to the relevant categories
of property, plant and equipment upon the completion
of their respective construction.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted if appropriate, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights
acquired from the government or through a business
combination. Coal mining rights are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-
production method, utilising proved and probable coal
reserves in the depletion base.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets (including
right-of-use assets) with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include:

(a) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that
are subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition
of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather
than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
Such overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject
to third party contractual restrictions are included as
part of cash unless the restrictions result in a bank
balance no longer meeting the definition of cash.
Contractual restrictions affecting use of bank balances
are disclosed in note 28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as cost of sales in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write- down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised as cost of
sales in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period the write- down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write- down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as cost of sales in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of
spending estimates at both surface and underground
mines in accordance with the PRC rules and
regulations. The Group estimates its liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure based upon detailed
calculations of the amount and timing of the future
cash spending to perform the required work. Spending
estimates are escalated for inflation, then discounted at
a discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability such that the amount of provision reflects
the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The Group records as
additional costs of the mining structures in property,
plant and equipment associated with the liability for
final reclamation and mine closure. The obligation and
corresponding asset are recognised in the period in
which the liability is incurred. The asset is depreciated
on the units-of-production method over its expected life
and the liability is accreted to the projected spending
date. As changes in estimates occur (such as mine plan
revisions, changes in estimated costs, or changes in
timing of the performance of reclamation activities), the
revisions to the obligation and the corresponding asset
are recognised at the appropriate discount rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a
deduction from equity.

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities issued
by the Group gives the right to the holder to convert
these securities into a fixed number of the Company’s
shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per share.
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities with
no contractual obligation to repay its principal and
no contractual obligation to pay any distribution are
classified as equity. Respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives or
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred to
customers which are taken to be the point in time when
the customer has control on the goods and thus, the
performance obligation was satisfied. Revenue from
the sales of goods in the course of ordinary activities is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and value
added tax.

Charter hire income

Income from time charter, which is of operating lease in
nature, is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised over time
by reference to the progress of which the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
when the voyage charter service is provided by the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Subsidies that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as other income in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Subsidies that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the estimated useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non- monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies IAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition
exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs comprise borrowing costs, which are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF

BEAEHEE®

BEEE

EEXRABEEERAN - HEFREBK
B BEREESAARAREBE
ENEEEZAR  ETAER LB
ZEEN—#OKA - EEERARE
RS8N o

BRABREERAN—#SoNEERAE
BEELMAX  BERAFAEEREEER
ABE RS EMVANERTIEETT
HRMRERL - EREEREERAR
ERBRKBERVANBRE D ER/TIE
RETHTEXE  (EERAREEERFL
BAE -

BEEF
R ESEF

e FEREL  BHFREFEEREN
KA REEERABREZ2FEARR
it MIEENRREEETREATE
S EEREBILBEIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
MPF Scheme) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the
Group to reduce existing level of contributions for each
of the years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Binomial
Model and Binomial Lattice Model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of the options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to share capital and share premium
accounts) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings or accumulated losses).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of
the financial asset. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under IFRS 9 (including trade receivables and other
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on the past due analysis of the trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward- looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instruments
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtors ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due with reference to
the historical payment pattern of customers of
the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 1 year past due with reference to
the historical payment pattern of customers of
the Group, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event; the lender(s) of the
borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF

EX

SEBER @

SRIA®

TEEE(E)

BB E R B ()

(iv)

(v)

HEH R

B B PR U O AT Be B () a0 8 5 75 4%
BRICEARERFE - IGLE
WESEAME @ ZFHEBLB
BRFE  REBHEERE) A&
BAMHEREE - BREBEER
REMHAE)  BMENEREE
AR A KB DAL FFHETT R
HIITIEE o MEHEABUR R

I8 o (A ERKREEIR S P RER -

BHEEB BN ERER

BHEEERNTERENNE |
EHERANZOBERA/)) Mg
MO b O YRR B - BOBER I
EHBBENFEDERE L BEBR
RIEEMEEFHERE - HHEEEE
A ERSEINESR - AT
BRLEONERSEEET -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of:

° nature of financial instrument;

o past-due status;

o nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

4,

200

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceed received. Any interest in such transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEAEHEE®

SRI AW

THEEERER(E)

BETIENEE
FE B R R 4 2 Y
BETARDK
RHER, o

=]

E IR AR 2 MR &

eRMBRERENEZERR  EMEMEK
RRMEE) BRI BRI R ORI # HAA

i
WA EHBHBRE, B

EREENRERAEENE TERE
HUHSKEmEs - ARBESBURER - B
BER TR ENERERS N REM
REZENZEN B PR -

201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

4,

202

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

(continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. When the contractual terms
of financial liability are modified such that the revised
terms would result in a substantial modification from
the original terms, after taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors,
such modification is accounted for as derecognition of
the original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of financial liability derecognised and the
fair value of consideration paid or payable, including
any liabilities assumed and derivative components
recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.

If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the
Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid
net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, and any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

(continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at
the present value of the modified contractual cash flows
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks and financial institutions
on behalf of subsidiaries to secure interest-bearing
bank borrowings and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value on the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Company’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

4,

204

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Where guarantees in relation to interest-bearing bank
borrowings of subsidiaries or associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Lessee accounting

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEAEHEE®
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued) HE®

Lessee accounting (continued) AN BB E 5% (E)
Right-of-use assets EHREE

The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FRAEEERANBEE

the amount of the initial measurement of the HEBBVBRTESR

lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the . RF%E BBk 2 BI{EL 2 ERAEE
commencement date, less any lease incentives R mEEAE WA EHE
received,;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; . AREEEAZERVBEEKAR
and K&

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group . NEBY RIFH R EVHBEE
in dismantling and removing the underlying R1EHE 78 & B PR 7E th Bh Sk IR 1B AR 78
assets, restoring the site on which it is located BEERMAERRRGEHER 2R
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition IR - BRIEZFERARTIE &
required by the terms and conditions of the EFEMESE -

lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any AR & E LA AR A A REHTE RO
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and EEEiE URHEEaEMNTMER
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. EELAE -

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably REBEERENHERTAERIESHE
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased BEEEERAE ERAEEE - (MK
assets at the end of the lease term is depreciated BEERFERAFHTEETTENE - Rite
from commencement date to the end of the useful HOh - AR EREMGE R AFRAE
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on EFHREE  LERATERE -

a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Lessee accounting (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Lessee accounting (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets unless the adjustment to the right of use assets
results in the carrying amount of the right of assets
becoming zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, in which case, any
remaining amount of the remeasurement is recognised
in profit or loss) whenever:

o there is a change in the lease term or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the date of reassessment.

o there is a change in future lease payments
resulting from changes in an index or rate used
to determine those payments, including for
example a change to reflect changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or
there is a change in the amounts expected to
be payable under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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208

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
As a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

g — —

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZT — —

(CONTINUED)
Segment reporting (continued)

Related parties (continued)

Fr-A=T—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4,

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

BEAEHEE®

DERE @)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity): and

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the directors of the Company to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are described as follows:

(i) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision rates
are based on nature of goods provided to the
customers as groupings of various receivables
that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default
rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

5.

212

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(M)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other receivables (continued)

The Group makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information.

In addition, trade receivables and other
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables and other receivables
are disclosed in note 35. As at 31 December
2022, the carrying amount of trade receivables
and other receivables are approximately
RMB178,867,000 and RMB280,234,000 (2021:
RMB182,421,000 and RMB208,201,000)
respectively, net of impairment loss allowance
and impairment loss allowance of approximately
RMB36,302,000 and RMB342,105,000 (2021:
RMB36,302,000 and RMB338,670,000)
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5. BEASHHE R MA@
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

When there is indication that coal mining rights
and property, plant and equipment may be
impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets or the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit in which the relevant assets are
attached to, which is the higher of the value
in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units projected with
reference to the projected sales quantities, unit
selling prices, unit costs, gross margins, growth
rates and discounted at a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The
estimated uncertainty mainly includes production
plan taking into account the time required for
the renewal of coal mining rights, gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash, a material
impairment loss or a further impairment loss may
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E T - —F+—_A=+—HILFE

5.

214

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iif)

Impairment assessment of coal mining rights
and property, plant and equipment (continued)

As disclosed in the notes 15 and 16, reversal
of impairment loss of coal mining rights
amounting to nil (2021: impairment loss of
RMB1,441,315,000) and reversal of impairment
loss of related property, plant and equipment
amounting to nil (2021: reversal of impairment
loss of RMB852,991,000) were recognised as at
31 December 2022, and the carrying amounts
of coal mining rights and property, plant and
equipment of coal mining cash-generating units
are RMB2,367,351,000 and RMBG3,404,125,000
respectively (2021: RMB2,990,264,000 and
RMB2,943,747,000 respectively).

Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 15.

Depreciation

Other than mining structures and assets under
construction, property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The management
periodically reviews changes in technology
and industry conditions, asset retirement
activity and residual values to determine
adjustments to estimated remaining useful lives
and depreciation rates. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic
reviews could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expenses in
future periods. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures and
assets under construction, was approximately
RMB1,184,079,000 (2021: RMB1,101,105,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5. BEASHHE R MA@
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(iv) Coal reserves (iv) HExf#E

Engineering estimates of the Group’s coal
reserves are inherently imprecise and represent
only approximate amounts because of the
subjective judgements involved in developing
such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that
have to be met before estimated coal reserves
can be designated as proved and probable
reserves. Proved and probable coal reserve
estimates are updated on a regular basis and
have taken into account recent production
and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change
from year to year, the estimate of proved and
probable coal reserves also change as adverse
changes in prices and cost levels would affect
the cost-effectiveness of mining the coal
and hence may cause reclassifications from
reserves to resources categories. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis
in related depreciation and amortisation rates.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these
engineering estimates, these estimates are used
in determining depreciation and amortisation
expenses and impairment loss. Depreciation
and amortisation rates are determined based
on estimated proved and probable coal reserve
quantity (the denominator) and capitalised
costs of mining structures and coal mining
rights (the numerator). The capitalised cost of
mining structures is depreciated and coal mining
rights are amortised based on the units of coal
produced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

5.

216

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(iv)

(v)

Coal reserves (continued)

At 31 December 2022, the net carrying amounts
of the Group’s coal mining rights and the Group’s
mining structures recognised in property,
plant and equipment were approximately
RMB2,367,351,000 (2021: RMB2,990,264,000)
and approximately RMB501,829,000 (2021:
RMB660,794,000) respectively. Further details
are disclosed in notes 15 and 16 respectively.

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure involves the
estimates of the amount and timing for the future
cash spending as well as the discount rate used
for reflecting current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The Group considers various factors,
including production volume and development
plan, the geological structure of the mining
regions, to determine the scope, amount and
timing of reclamation and mine closure works
to be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from the
Group and the estimated liabilities may turn
out to be different from the actual expenditure
incurred. The discount rate used by the Group
may also be altered to reflect the changes in
the market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability, such
as changes of the borrowing rate and inflation
rate in the market. As changes in estimates
occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes
in estimated costs, or changes in timing of the
performance of reclamation activities), revisions
to the obligations will be recognised. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
accrued reclamation obligations approximately
RMB179,614,000 (2021: RMB144,090,000).
Further details are disclosed in note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 5. BEASHHE R MA@
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(vi) Discount rate for lease liability (viy HESEMERX

In determining the discount rate for lease
liabilities, the Group is required to estimate
and determine the discount rate (being the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rates) taking
into account the nature of the underlying assets
and the terms and conditions of the leases at
the commencement date or at the date of initial
application of IFRS 16, as appropriate.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax
asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
RMB424,458,000 (2021: RMB374,475,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available
in future. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of future taxable profits estimation,
a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may raise, which would be
recognised in consolidated income statement
for the period in which such a reversal or further
recognition takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E T - —F+—_A=+—HILFE

(a)

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has two operating and reportable
segments which are the Group’s strategic
business units, as follows:

o Coal business: Coal mining, purchases
and sales, filtering, storage and blending
of coal in the PRC.

o Shipping transportation: Time charter and
voyage charter of vessels.

These strategic business units offer different
products and services, and are managed
separately because they require different
technology and marketing strategies. For each of
the strategic business units, the Chief Executive
Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews internal management
reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the CEO monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following basis:

o The measure used for reporting segment
profit is adjusted profit before net finance
costs and income tax expense. Iltems
not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as unallocated head
office and corporate expenses are further
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

. Segment assets include all tangible
assets, coal mining rights, right of
use assets, interest in an associate
and current assets with the exception
of other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade payables, other
payables attributable to activities of the
individual segments, accrued reclamation
obligations and borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

° Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference
to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those
segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

(a) IHVHEE EEREGE®

. DHEERREMAERBTLE
B RRiRiEE - ERAEE
= R RBEQRER R
MBEE  HEMAREE
BN DB EREENE
ARG ENE BRR
HMEMER  FRIRERE
RAEDHEZREENEER

. Yes & F s Th 8 2 E %5
MEEZHERIFAX DR
TR REDES -

(5 A
<F7]

P B SR B 0 A i 0 B RS I
AN
7]

LD BABF -

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

219



220

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

(a)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEEE@
Segment results, assets and liabilities (a) HFEE BEREE®
(continued)
Coal business Shipping transportation Total
BRER MEEH Ehy
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E--f —Z--% CZE--f& -ET--F CZB--F -ZT--%
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETn
Revenue from external NEEPYE
customers 3,794,039 4,498,980 - 60,200 3,794,039 4,559,180
Inter-segment revenue A - - - - - -
Reportable segment THREIBRE
revenue 3,794,039 4,498,980 - 60,200 3,794,039 4,559,180
Reportable segment profitl T % 72 b Bx¥i Al
(loss) before taxation BA/ (B8) 1,021,808 4,323,732 (990) 19,875 1,020,818 4,343,607
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation (962,249)  (733.131) - (4505)  (962,249)  (737,72)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal ~ HE&ENE - BER
of property, plant and HENER)/
equipment W FeE (210) 404 = 26,717 (210) 27,121
Reversal of impairment % - BRERRHE
losses on property, plant 2 HEBEED
and equipment - 852,991 - - - 852,991
Reversal of impairment BRAEE 2R E
losses on coal mining right B2 E - 1441315 - - - 1441315
Reversal of impairment EWE FRR
losses on trade BERREFE
receivables, net - 12,305 - - - 12,305
(Impairment losses)/reversal  E- A MR 2 (3l
of impairment losses on BER)/RER
other receivables, net BRE 5 (3,082) 5,394 = = (3,082) 5,394
Additions to property, plant  REHE « BER
and equipment B 768,003 157,788 - 63 768,003 157,851
Reportable segment assets AL FHEE 8,348,550 8,665,205 710,966 75,422 9,059,516 8,740,627
Reportable segment TRELPEE
liabilities (6,490787)  (6876293)  (895750)  (391.289)  (7,386,537)  (7.267.582)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. oHHRE®
Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FHEDBWE - BRBAER -
revenue, profit before taxation, assets and EERABBENHE
liabilities
Revenue W zz
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTT
Total of reportable segments ARED WS BRE
revenue 3,794,039 4,559,180
Elimination of inter-segment D ESEMRE 7 H 5
revenue = =
Consolidated revenue iR e e 3,794,039 4,559,180
Profit before taxation BR B B s
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
Total of reportable segments AR5 9 BRRR B AR F 485
profit before taxation 1,020,818 4,343,607
Unallocated head office and ROEBRABI R AR
corporate expenses (348) (12,750)
Net finance costs P I 2] (253,689) (360,761)
Consolidated profit before AR AR
taxation 766,781 3,970,096
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

6.

222

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b)
revenue, profit before taxation, assets and

liabilities (continued)

6. IEE®mE®

A ERE SRR - BRBUADER
EEREEBENEHER®

Assets BE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREET T
Total of reportable segments AREDHEELTE
assets 9,059,516 8,740,627
Elimination of inter-segment 73 HB B FE W AR 3R 2 4 88
receivables (1,440,004) (917,326)
Unallocated assets ROMEE 231,019 73,212
Consolidated total assets REEERE 7,850,531 7,896,513
Liabilities i=F-
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Total of reportable segments AE N A B ERE
liabilities 7,386,537 7,267,582
Elimination of inter-segment 7 BB E R BR IR 2 ¥9 38
payables (1,425,564) (807,570)
Tax payable FEIHLIR 350,097 469,921
Deferred taxation IRIEFIE 621,932 631,278
Unallocated liabilities Ao aE 104,318 18,787
Consolidated total liabilities A BERR 7,037,320 7,579,998
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(c)

Geographic information

The Group’s total assets are primarily dominated
by assets handling its coal business. The coal
is sold primarily to the PRC domestic customers
and investments in all coal mines are physically
located in the PRC. Therefore, related assets
are almost all located in the PRC. As a result,
the directors of the Company consider that it will
not be meaningful to allocate the Group’s assets
and their related capital expenditure to specific
geographical areas. Accordingly, geographical
segment information is only presented for
revenue, which is based on the geographical
location of customers.

7 EBER ()
(c) EEER

AEENBEET B RREHRR
EBHWEE - KREBETHEE
NEP  MARBEREED LUK
TE - Hit - HENEELT2H
RIRARE - 8t ARRIEFER R
AR NAEEEENEM

B P 3T B s 2 71 B
SEER -

Revenue from external customers I EBE M 7
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFIT
PRC M 3,794,039 4,543 591
Other countries HAaBE=xR = 15,589
Total BET 3,794,039 4,559,180
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

6.

224

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(d) Information about major customers

During the year, revenue derived from the
following customers in coal business segment
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of
the Group’s revenue are as follows:

7 #B 3 F (8)
(d HFRAXTEEFZEH

RER - EXSEAEBWFSBA
10% 2 LA T B ok 275 5 BB B A9 UK

AT
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBETTT

Customer A BFEA
Customer B =FB
Customer C BFEC
Customer D ®FD

970,472 1,706,523
650,161 1,097,486
752,991 360,685*
625,983 401,229*

Revenue from relevant customer was less than 10%
of the Group’s total revenue for the respective year.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

REVENUE 7. Uk &5
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ZRBEEISHNEF &AM E S TN
customers by service lines is as follows: Nk
2022 2021
-2 —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBETTT
Sales of coal BRIHE 3,794,039 4,498,980
Charter hire income He WA = 60,200
3,794,039 4,559,180
Revenue from sales of goods are recognised at a point P ERERNEmER TEFPRER °
in time when the goods are transferred to customers. P R TR A B BN TERK o 1R EAAE AR
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the BN S H A B S AR o IRHEM
delivery of the goods. Revenue from rendering of time IR B Uz B 2 E AL B IR IR AR A9
charter services is recognised on a straight-line basis HERBERE R o 2R T B4
over the period of each charter. Revenue from rendering EERTEAK ©

of voyage charter services is recognised over time by
reference to the progress of the voyage charter services
provided by the Group. The performance obligation
is satisfied upon the completion of the voyage charter
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMlA - WEREE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETTT

Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net P& 5 s (B518) /55 20,656 (7,909)
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HENEHZ

plant and equipment (B18), W= F 58 (210) 27,121
Gain on substantial modification upon ~ REREARIEEEKIEFT 2

loan restructuring (Note 28) Wrzs (i 5E28) 11,321 238,673
Net gain on non-substantial modification &5 JEE A& AT UK 2S F 58

of borrowings (Note 28) (Ft3E28) 31,203 =
Government subsidies (note (i)) R EACET0)) 17,488 115,673
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair & AR ET ABRHESRMEE

value through profit and loss Z A EW AR 438 =
Others HAfth 4,637 3,948

85,533 377,506

Note: f5E -

() The government subsidies of RMB17,488,000 (2021: 0] B8 & A KK 17,488,000 (=F = —
RMB115,673,000) were granted and received/receivable as F : AR¥115,673,00070) EEHI KR/
financial subsidies on the Group’s business development for ERERAREBRE—F-_—FF+ A=+
the year ended 31 December 2022 with conditions that the —RILEEERBRROMBHY - 155 T8

BARRFEETRERLETEEME -
ARG EX ©

respective entities would maintain their principal places of
businesses at the designated area for the same year, which
were fulfilled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B IR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

NET FINANCE COSTS

9. FHIBRAFE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Interest income A B A (16,197) (7,038)
Interest on borrowings EEFE 123,197 154,550
Interest charge on unwinding of AEBR AL IR 2 F) 8 5 2 (T = (i)
discounts (note (ii)) 158,454 213,249
Total interest expense on financial WIHIR AR EFABEN TR
liabilities not at fair value through BECF BT BT
profit or loss 281,651 367,799
Less: Interest capitalised into property, Bl : % - BiERREHDE
plant and equipment (note (i)) AL F B (B EE () (11,765) -
Financecosts G 269886 367,799
Net finance costs BT RK AN 5 58 253,689 360,761
Notes: PEE -
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the finance costs (i) BE-_Z-_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE ¥
have been capitalised at a rate of 6.69% (2021: nil) per annum. BRABIETF6.69%MLEE(ZTE=—F :
m)EARL -
(if) This item represents the unwinding of discount for the following (ii) LIE B IR A ER T MR AT A E a8
liabilities using the effective interest rate: ]
2022 2021
—EBCCF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T AREFT
Borrowings (note 28) & & (Fftzt28) 147,083 202,225
Lease liabilities (note 25) HEEMIE25) 978 854
Accrued reclamation obligations (note 29) TEIRE & A ([7£29) 10,393 10,170
158,454 213,249
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. PFR®ADGRF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRIAIRFIE HIBRA T &8 -
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Cost of inventories (note (i) FER A (B EE(G)) 1,840,799 1,534,600
Short-term leases payment SEEVIEN=E: 0NN 2,261 1,780
Depreciation of property, plant and M - HWEMERETE
equipment 324,711 304,340
Amortisation of coal mining rights BRI S GT ASHE
(included in cost of sales) B AN) 622,739 427,722
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 15,589 5,664
Reversal of impairment losses on GFEZREBERRGIAEE
inventories (included in cost of sales) FXAS) - (7,000)
Auditors remuneration 2% B AN BN <
— audit services - EBAZRTE 2,324 2,235
— non-audit services - IEEZARTS 1,722 1,150
Employee benefit expenses BERNAXZ(TREEER
(excluding directors and chief BT AB#ME (FizE12)
executives remuneration (Note 12))
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in =~ — %% - 2BE R EWEF
kind 504,167 437,041
— Contributions to retirement benefit — RURAEFI T B R
schemes 36,093 18,777
540,260 450,818
Note: B 5
(i) Cost of inventories included approximately RMB1,416,740,000 (i) GFEXRABFERESRIRS - W% BE
(2021: RMB1,096,567,000) relating to employee benefit BAETTE A RE R REEEEEENDOA
expenses, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and R#1,416,740,000C(ZF = —F : AR¥
amortisation of coal mining rights which amounts are also 1,096,567,0007T) * B FEINE st AR B Z
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately SHTHERIN EXEBHENHEBASE -

above for each of these types of expenses.
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRH T
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. BHiExX

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of FaETHEBARARMEHAXIE
comprehensive income represents:

2022 2021
—=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Current tax expense BNEAR TE R 2
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — R EATIS 286,017 439,609
— Underprovision of PRC Corporate - BEFEPRECEMSH
,,,,,,, Income Taxin prior years  ##fe 74 3%
286,091 440,001
Deferred tax (note 19) RAEFRIE (BFEE19) (9,346) 342,185
Income tax expense TS > 276,745 782,186
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income as follows:

11. BHEX®

FANMEHAXBRESFE 2B AR
FIBRTR AR A B BRI T

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT

Profit before taxation B 35 A A 766,781 3,970,096
Notional tax expense on profit before A A R E RBRELAT

taxation, calculated at the applicable AR ETIER

tax rates 216,817 1,004,154
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ REAFIAEEZ

recognised B2 29,726 13,906
Tax effect of expenses non-deductible ~ TR 2 B2

for tax purpose 22,225 22,734
Tax effect of income non-taxable for tax FERFLMA 2 B2 &

purpose (19,600) (13,049)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERZ AP ERER

difference not recognised BB E 48,617 96,551
Utilisation of tax loss and deductible EABTFERER 2B

temporary difference not recognised EE RN SR ERE

in prior years (20,467) (342,446)
Underprovision of PRC Corporate BEFERBEDERSEH

Income tax in prior years B R 429 392
Effect of additional tax deduction IS ML RE R M BB SN TR &

enacted by tax authority a7 (1,002) (56)
Income tax expense TSR % M 2 276,745 782,186

Notes:

MEE

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(2021: nil).

Provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax was based on the
statutory rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) of the assessable profit
of subsidiaries which carried on business in Hong Kong.

Provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was based on the
statutory rate of 25% (2021: 25%) of the assessable profits of
subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the PRC.

Provision for the Indonesia Corporate Income Tax was based
on the statutory rate of 22% (2021: 22%) of the assessable
profits of subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the
Indonesia. No provision for Indonesia Corporate Income Tax
has been made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Group had no assessable profits in Indonesia for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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(iii)
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RERESFESREBRLEFSHRIER
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Al Z ERBUR AR AR E16.5%(ZF=—
& 1 16.5%)FHEEE -

REREMERIBEAPEEEEL 2
BARZERBRFIEEEHR EK25%(ZF=
—& : 25%)FHR A -

ENE RSB H DR B ENE 1 = 275 2 KT
BARZ ARSI EER 2% (ZF =
—4F : 22%)FTIREME c AR ARERBE=
TS —ER-E-—F+-A=+—HItF
ERENEI MR - BN ERE MK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERESTHAEMNS
REMUNERATION
Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows: BEEME ZFBWOT ¢

Salaries, Contributions

allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit Share-based
Directors’ fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
Be ER RUEH DR A
EZfe  REUEA FTEHHER Mt BEZAR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name of directors - £32 ARBTL  ARMTR AR%Tn ARETn ARETn ARMTR
For the year ended BE-B-CF
31 December 2022 TZB=t+-HLEE
Executive directors yEs
Mr. Xu Da RERE 835 1,655 100 2,590 = 2,590
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i) BELE ) 835 1,582 80 2,497 = 2,497
Mr. Tan Yingzhong (note (iv)) BB A4 (T (v)) 835 1,202 101 2,138 = 2,138
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lau Sk Yuen HHREE 343 = = 343 = 343
Prof. Sha Zhenquan DIREHR 240 = = 240 = 240
Mr. Jing Dacheng FAREE 240 = = 240 = 240
3,328 4,439 281 8,048 - 8,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERRSTHAEMES®
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement

and benefits benefit Share-based
Directors' fee in kind schemes Sub-total payments Total
TR RIKEER AR 5
B2e  REWEA HE5 PNt ERZAR @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name of directors EE3E ARETT ARETT AREBTr ARETT ARETR ARETR
For the year ended BE-R--F
31 December 2021 TZA=+-HLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Xu Da RELE 793 1614 122 2529 = 2529
Mr. Bai Tao (note (i)) SRR 793 1737 97 2,627 = 2,627
Ms. Wang Jianfei (note (i) FRIR AL (zE(i) 306 403 10 719 = 719
Mr. Fung Wai Shing (note (i) /(&A% 2& & (R &k (i) 174 342 4 520 = 520
Mr Tan Yingzhong (note (iv)) ~ sEBRALAE (I (V) 584 1296 121 2,001 = 2,001
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lau Sk Yuen 2R EAE 32 = = 324 = 324
Prof. Sha Zhenquan DIRESE 240 = = 240 = 240
Mr. Jing Dacheng BAMAE 240 - - 240 = 240
3454 5,392 354 9.200 - 9,200
Notes: f5E -
(i) Mr. Bai Tao, an executive director of the Company, is also the (i) ARARRITESFAHEEENARNRAZEIT
chief executive of the Company. BAE -
(ii) Ms. Wang Jianfei resigned as executive director of the (ii) FRMRZ LR =T =—F/\ATAFHER
Company on 16 August 2021. NEFITESE ©
(iii) Mr. Fung Wai Shing resigned as an executive director of the (iii) BEKEERZZEZ—F=ARABGFHEAR
Company on 5 March 2021. RIITES -
(iv) Mr. Tan Yingzhong appointed and resigned as an executive (iv) BEREAEEN T —FMNMA—BHEZEAR
director of the Company on 1 April 2021 and 1 March 2023 ARARITESTTN T _=F=A—H#&
respectively. £ -
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There were no amounts paid during the year (2021: Nil)
to the directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.

Director’s fee, salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind paid to or for the executive directors are
generally emoluments paid or receivable in respect
of those persons other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’” emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year include three (2021: three) directors of the
Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 12 above. Details of remuneration for the year paid
to the remaining two (2021: two) highest paid individual
of the Group is/are as follows:

12. EERESTBRAEME®@

FR - ARBWERE S R ERFSE
A ASE BRI AR 2 708 S (] 11 B8 42
R —F ) o

EXNHTHOTEFAATEFTNESTA
T FE o RUNEDEN-RERZE
ATEERRRBRAKENEHRBOHE
REM N FEREALHZEALER
RS -

BB FATEFNMES BEFELSN
NEEEAREREER

13. EERSREEAEHM

12 8 5 A

FA - AEELERSFHIALEER
RAIZ=R(ZF_—F: =ZR)EF - K
FZHMFBEEIIN EXMEE12 - MASE
BESME(CT_—F BB &K= H MM

AL 2 HFBOT ¢
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 8L R EWRT 3,899 2,462

Contributions to retirement benefit RORRE N ET B3R
schemes 147 135
4,046 2,597
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

13.

234

EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 13.
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the two (2021: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HKD BT

BEREREEBAETGM@®

EE 5 M

ME(CE_—F : MB)ESFMALZ
FES T

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AH A#

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,600,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000

1,000,001-1,500,000
1,600,001-2,000,000
2,000,001-2,500,000

There were no amounts paid during the year (2021: nil)
to the five highest paid employees in connection with
their retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join.

Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments of the nine (2021: eight) senior
managements of the Group who are not directors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
within the following bands:

FR - WERARRSTHES I HEM
R E g AN E BRI A B 2 ZOE S A 0
B T —F &) -

SREEASEHM
BE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

AEBNE(CZEZ—F: \B)SRER
AB[EARRES) ZFHM M T

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HKD BT AE AEX
Less than 500,000 500,000A - -
500,001-1,000,000 500,001-1,000,000 3 3
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,000,001-1,500,000 5 4
1,500,001-2,000,000 1,500,001-2,000,000 - 1

2,000,001-2,500,000

2,000,001-2,500,000

[

Of the senior management of the Group, six (2021:
eight, including two directors who resigned) were the
directors of the Company, whose emoluments are
included in Note 12.
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculations of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic earnings per share attributable
to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 respectively
are based on the following data:

14.

BRER
BREFEF

BERERBNDERFARNRR EBER
FB ARMEN N B 1T E @Ay I
BEGETHE -

BE-FT-—4R-F-—F+-A=+
— B EARABBERBEAD AE
(R A BRI YRR IA TRUREE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Earnings BF|
Profit for the year attributable to equity ~ ANAFEZEFH AEIEER
shareholders of the Company i ) 456,543 2,793,546
Less: Distribution relating to perpetual 8 : B D E AR 2 KAKX
subordinated convertible LR AT s Pl i
securities classified as equity (F$3E32(c))
(note 32(c)) (5,054) (4,860)
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary FARETEEREAREF) 2 KA
equity shareholders of the Company Rl EEaEARGEFEAN
used in calculating basic earnings per %7l
share 451,489 2,788,686
Number of shares
Shares idv) BRAEE

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

SHESRER BN AT ER
IFEF 8

2,493,413,985  2,493,413,985
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 14.
Diluted earnings per share
The calculations of diluted earnings per share
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the

Company for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 respectively are based on the following data:

BRERN @
SREBERF
BE-_Z-_—Fr-_ZF-_—F+=-A=+

—HALEFEARREBERTAAD FIE
EERESER R D ER A TR E ¢

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBET T

Earnings B

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary R EtE GREREF ~
equity shareholders of the Company RAARIEBEREEA

used in calculating basic earnings per  FE{E A5 |

share 451,489 2,788,686
Add: Distribution relating to perpetual il : BESE AR 2 KAR
subordinated convertible BTN B 5 2 Pk
securities classified as equity (Bt 3E32(c))
(note 32(c)) 5,054 4,860
Adjusted profit for the year attributable  FIR:TEERESER T 2
to equity shareholders of the Company AR AliEmiF A ARG FR
used in calculating diluted earnings 8 R A
per share 456,543 2,793,546
Number of shares
Shares &v idvipgE|

Weighted average number of ordinary 55 &% # &5 & | FT A T @A

shares for the purpose of diluted INHE 1928
earnings per share

2,493,413,985  2,493,413,985

Adjustments for calculation of diluted M ESREERIIED

earnings per share: FEE
Perpetual subordinated convertible KR AR AT % 38

securities 118,000,000 118,000,000
Adjusted weighted average number ATEEREERFFA

of shares classified as equity for the DI RERE RN &

purpose of diluted earnings per share  JI#EFIE

2,611,413,985 2,611,413,985

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B IR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

Diluted earnings per share (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the computation of diluted earnings per share has not
assumed the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options since the adjusted exercise prices of

14. SREN@®)

BREBEEN @

&142::¢&42:—¢+—ﬁ_+
—HIEFE  AREEEREZEH

ﬁﬁmﬁai:i——iﬁ_Y:—¢+
— A=+ —BLFEHTHBRDZFH

these options were higher than the average market mE  FESREERMNEITRRERR

prices of shares for the outstanding period during the

years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

R Z RITIERB R TE -

COAL MINING RIGHTS 15. BKRRERE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and RZE=Z—4F—H—H- :E:—
1 January 2022 F+_A=+-—BNK-_B-__F—
H—H 4,810,743
Additions NE -
Exchange differences P& W Z=5E (174)
At 31 December 2022 RZB__F+-_A=+—H 4,810,569
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses &t #i#5 & B EEE
At 1 January 2021 RZE—_—F—H—H (2,834,072)
Charge for the year F (427,722)
Reversal of Impairment loss for the year FERREEEEE 1,441,315
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZHA=+—H (1,820,479)
Charge for the year F B (622,739)
At 31 December 2022 KRB ZF+=HA=+—H (2,443,218)
Net carrying amounts SRMERE
At 31 December 2022 RZB__F+-_A=+—H 2,367,351
At 31 December 2021 RZB_—F+-A=+—H 2,990,264

ZZBZZHF# ANNUAL REPORT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E T - —F+—_A=+—HILFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

The balance represents the rights to conduct
mining activities in Shanxi Province, PRC and South
Kalimantan, Indonesia. The Group has no formal title
of ownership over the lands where the PRC mine sites
are located, hence none of the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets (see note 17) relates to these lands
located in the PRC. The Department of Land Resources
of Shanxi Province, PRC and Kalimantan Province,
Indonesia issued and renewed several mining rights
certificates to the Group. Details of the Group’s coal
mining rights are as follows:
Coal mining rights Expiry date
Shanxi Province, PRC
Xingtao Coal Mine
Fengxi Coal Mine
Chongsheng Coal Mine
Xinglong Coal Mine

14 September 2034
24 January 2034

14 December 2039
29 November 2019

Hongyuan Coal Mine 13 July 2030
Kalimantan, Indonesia
SDE Coal Mine 14 May 2034

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s coal mining rights
in the PRC with net carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,333,653,000 (2021: RMB2,956,393,000) were
pledged for the Group’s borrowings (Note 28).

In respect of the expiry of coal mining rights of Shanxi
Xinzhou Shenchi Xinglong Coal Company Limited
(“Xinglong Coal”), the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the renewal of mining rights certificates
by the relevant government authorities is highly
probable as long as the Group submits the relevant
regulation documents and fully settles the mineral
exploration and mining right expense, and the renewal
of the mining rights certificates can be completed at
minimal cost. In addition, with reference to the legal
opinion from an external lawyer engaged by the Group,
the Group will be able to continuously renew the mining
rights and the business licenses of the respective
mining subsidiaries at minimal charges.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, with the continuing significant
favourable coal market circumstances of the coal
business segment, the directors of the Company,
with the assistance from an independent professional
qualified valuer, namely BMI Appraisals Limited, to
assess the recoverable amounts of the Group’s coal
mines and related property, plant and equipment. Each
of the Group’s coal mines and the related property,
plant and equipment are considered as an individual
cash-generating unit. The recoverable amount of each
of the cash-generating unit was estimated based
on its value in use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on the most recent financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering
a five-year period, and discount rates ranging from
15.92% to 23.33% (2021: 15.87% to 23.25%), and the
available coal reserves of approximately 41.48 million
tonnes (2021: 48.45 million tonnes), which comprise of
approximately 12.41 million tonnes (2021: 14.25 million
tonnes) in Xingtao Coal Mine, approximately 2.81 million
tonnes (2021: 5.07 million tonnes) in Fengxi Coal Mine,
approximately 2.30 million tonnes (2021: 5.17 million
tonnes) in Chongsheng Coal Mine, approximately 13.50
million tonnes (2021: 13.50 million tonnes) in Xinglong
Coal Mine and approximately 10.46 million tonnes
(2021: 10.46 million tonnes) in Hongyuan Coal Mine,
together with other key inputs including the estimated
coal prices ranging from RMB610 to RMB708 per tonne
(2021: RMB543 to RMB669 per tonne) and production
costs etc.. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
have been extrapolated using an estimated 2% (2021:
1.80%) growth rate which do not exceed the average
growth rate for the relevant markets. The directors of
the Company concluded that the estimated recoverable
amount of each of the following cash-generating units
as at 31 December 2022 was higher than the respective
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit. As a result,
no impairment losses on the Group’s coal mining rights
and the related property, plant and equipment were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022.

15.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

15.

240

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED) 15. BHREREE R
As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amounts of RZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H " HlEEF
coal mining rights and property, plant and equipment in Bl R ERHERE A R W 2 - kB R ER B Ry ]

the PRC had been allocated as follows: WEISFEINT
As at 31 December 2022
R-B-—F+=-A=1+—H

Recoverable
Recoverable amount of
Pre-tax Recoverable amount of property,
discount rate amount of  coal mining plant and
of CGU CGU rights  equipment
FEERR FEEWE -
FeELEN HEELEN RIEEN BEREREN
WBRAIMREE WAKESE THREEHE IKEEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR%¥TR AR%Tx
(Note 16)
CGU BeEEBN (Mi=E16)
Xingtao Coal Mine L ) T 23.33% 2,408,058 1,742,516 665,542
Fengxi Coal Mine 5 PR 22.17% 848,904 264,772 584,132
Chongsheng Coal Mine SHHEE 15.92% 734,365 212,698 521,667
Xinglong Coal Mine 2 A 16.90% 1,506,190 742,520 763,670
Hongyuan Coal Mine REETE 16.06% 1,469,669 196,399 1,273,270

6,967,186 3,158,905 3,808,281

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

COAL MINING RIGHTS (CONTINUED) 15. R ERTERE @)
As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amounts of R -_—F+-_A=+—H HEBEEF
coal mining rights and property, plant and equipment in Bl IR BB RE A R 2 - kB R s Ay ]
the PRC had been allocated as follows: WEISFEINT
As at 31 December 2021
KRB —F+-_A=+—H
Recoverable
Recoverable amount
amount  allocated to
Pre-tax  Recoverable  allocated to property,
discount rate amount  coal mining plant and
of CGU of CGU rights equipment
PEEER DEEWE -
ReELEN REELEN PREREE) BRfE KR
MBAAIRE WAREeE AREeE AREOEeE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETE
(Note 16)
CGU ReELEN GEAD)
Xingtao Coal Mine R GTE 23.25% 2,942,697 2,144,119 798,578
Fengxi Coal Mine Vit R 22.10% 1,466,857 584,479 882,378
Chongsheng Coal Mine SH B 15.87% 1,261,417 647,566 613,851
Xinglong Coal Mine TR 16.90% 1,146,644 566,604 580,040
Hongyuan Coal Mine TRRETE 16.06% 1,154,387 159,832 994,555

7,972,002 4,102,600 3,869,402
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

16.

242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% BERRE
Electronic Assets
Plant and and other Motor Mining under
buildings ~ Machinery equipment  vehicles  Vessels structures construction Total
E1R
HERET BE  HHRE RE Eh REEREM  EREE gt
RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMB0OO  RMBIO0
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—E—F-8 115094 1304749 55036 250607 272720 2157677 1139412 6331155
Impact on nitial applicationon B NER TR & EE|
AS16 Bl 7 - - - = = = 31923 31923
At 1 January 2021 (restated) RZF--£-A-H
(A7) 1150954 1,304,749 55036 250607 272720 2157677 117133 6363078
Additions hE 78271 83318 2912 17,752 = 804 45238 157851
Disposals e (368074)  (464066)  (24610)  (88.890)  (267.323) (1,032388) - (2245351
Exchange differences EREE (25) (98) ! (105) (5,397) = (142) (5,774)
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+2R
=t+-A 790682 923903 3331 179364 - 1126003 1216431 4269804
Additions hE 6829 175881 4057 26970 = 700 539550 780307
Transfer 7 - - - = = 8784 (8.784) =
Disposals i - (10275 (3925) (9,938) = (87) - (42
Exchange differences EREE 88 (328) ) 296 = = (202) (150)
At 31 December 2022 i Sk 2 o
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, STOR ToTS eedet 3480 e - 116180 1746995 50257%
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE
At 1 January 2021 R-Z-—F—f—8 (633983  (901,119)  (53013)  (165760)  (141373) (1591,133)  (473,088) (3,959,469)
Charge for the year FRfTE (25952)  (60,109) (1786)  (15,248) (1722)  (199,529) - (304,340)
Reversal of impaiment losses/ ~ HEBBEE,/(6ES
(mpaiment loss) (note 15) 8) (3E15) 39482 47617 1534 (2470) - 203740 473088 852,991
Disposals e 37538 464052 24,602 88328 130973 1031623 - 2116116
Exchange differences ERER 20 5 1 80 3122 = = 3008
At31 December 2021 R=F--%+=f
=t+-A (252895)  (449548)  (28662)  (95,070) - (465,299) - (1291474)
Charge for the year ERfiE (29059)  (78,451) (3865)  (18,573) - (194763) - (34711)
Disposals e = 10,139 3925 9592 = 81 = 23737
Exchange differences EHEE (97) % 2 (315) = = = (385)
At31 December 2022 RZF-=%+2F
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, STOR (RSl (M8 (BROO) (o4 - (6008N) - (169289
Net carrying amounts REEE
At 31 December 2022 i g
=t-H 515548 571346 4859 92326 - B01829 1746995 3432903
At 31 December 2021 (restated)  BN=F-—%F+=A
=+-A(&E3) 537787 474355 4669 84,204 - 660794 1216431 2978330

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain
items of plant and buildings with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB486,698,000 as
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB512,677,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and
use the above mentioned properties and therefore the
aforesaid matter does not affect the ownership rights
of the Group over these assets and hence did not have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial position
as at 31 December 2022

As described in note 15, the directors of the Company
estimated the recoverable amounts of each of the cash-
generating units to which coal mining rights and related
property, plant and equipment have been allocated.
As a result, no impairment losses on the Group’s coal
mining rights and the related property, plant and
equipment in the PRC (2021: reversal of impairment
losses of RMB1,441,315,000 and RMB852,991,000
respectively) were recognised for the year ended 31
December 2022. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying
amounts of coal mining related property, plant and
equipment in the PRC amounted to RMB2,712,910,000
(2021: RMB2,864,588,000).

16.
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AEEYEFER_ZE-_—_F+_A=+
—HRERmFAELN AR 486,698,0007T
—T——F: AR¥512677,00070) &
THEREFHENEESREE - ARAE
RBEAEBHESEREREE RER
FutE o Bt PMEETAFENE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16.

BT HRaR M=

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s property, plant and equipment with net
carrying amount of approximately RMB255,348,000
(2021: RMB377,517,000) were pledged for the Group’s
borrowings (note 28), as follows:

16.

ME - BERSZE®

AEBEREFELH ARE255348,0007T
—E= -4 AR¥377,517,0007T) H9 4
¥ BMERREWIEFLVESAEREE

(H15E28) » AN PAR -

2022 2021

=== —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R AREFTT

Plant and buildings W E MIEF 125,311 150,473
Machinery He2S 23,469 35,193
Electronic and other equipment BF REMRE 212 186
Motor vehicles RE 3,527 4,649
Mining structures FIEZEY) 102,829 187,016
255,348 377,517

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EHRAREE
Leasehold Office
lands* Machinery  buildings Total
HE+ i Has WMAEF et

RMB'000O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT

At 31 December 2021 RZE=—4F
+=-—A=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE 4373 15,420 10,769 30,562
At 31 December 2022 N—ETE——
F=E=—E
Carrying amount BRmEE 4,234 4,715 8,376 17,325
For the year ended HE—_T——%F
31 December 2021 +=—A=+—8H
IEFE
Depreciation charge WEEHA (140) (892) (4,632) (5,664)
For the year ended BE_T-_F
31 December 2022 +=—RA=+—
IEFE
Depreciation charge TEER (140) (9,318) (6,131) (15,589)
2022 2021
—=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Expense relating to short-term leases Ha%E HAFE & R A HAR
and other leases with lease terms end 12 A A f@im #Y

within 12 months HHEFENFEX 788 1,780
Total cash outflow for leases MER e ML BT (11,973) (16,438)
Additions to right-of-use assets RNEEREEE 3,693 24,977
g Being land use rights located in the PRC for the Group’s own 2 B4 7 SR 8 PR A 2 7 P 0 40 55 O o

use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EREEE®
For both years, the Group leases various offices for its RREFEE  AEEHAEZERAZTAR
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed B o  HESHANUNEEHEBHIFERIFA]
terms of 1 year to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated 3o FEGERIIEE R AR LRy - B
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of BB EMER G - REEHBA RIS
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease A EHENRER ASEEAEY
terms and assessing the length of the non-cancellable WEEWEES LRI RHMITHHME -
periods, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. NAN—EHEAT kR
2022 2021
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTT
Unlisted investment: ELMIRE :
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LMD - BAKANE 49,000 49,000
Share of post-acquisition loss and Sl EEEEREMEE
other comprehensive loss &8 (2,433) (2,433)
Impairment loss WIEEE (46,567) (46,567)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 18. R—EBELTz2ER@®

The following list contains the particulars of the Group’s TRHEJIAEE -—FBHERATIR T
associate at the end of the reporting period of 2022 and FRZFZ—FHREHARNFIS -

2021:

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERERERLLH
Principal
Group’s Held Held activities
Place of effective by the bya and place of
Name of associate establishment interest Company  subsidiary operation
H—E
r&EE HALDT MEBLAR TEEH
BENTEE R 3Lt 26 ERER BE BE REEMHH
Tongmei Qinfa (Zhuhai) Holdings PRC 49% - 49%  Sales of coal
Co, Ltd. (“Tongmei Qinfa”) (2021: 49%) (2021: 49%) in the PRC
RERE G ERERAQA alEd 49% = 49% BRIEE
(TRIKRE]) (ZB=—%F: (ZB=—F: i
49%) 49%)
Tongmei Qinfa sells coal in the PRC and is a strategic FEERENFBRIEERRK - WRAEEE
partnership for the Group for its coal business. IREB AR S IER -
The Group had discontinued recognition of its share AEBEEBE-_T—~"F+_A=+—
of losses of Tongmei Qinfa since the year ended 31 HEFEERRIEBREDIEREREE
December 2016 because its cumulative share of losses B DHRARBE QAR 2 ZEEIGEE
in the associate had exceeded its investment cost BB EREN R RFREEE o i
less accumulated impairment losses. The amounts of A ERRIEEEEREEREE cAFERRS
unrecognised shares of the associate, extracted from SMEBE AR BHRERL LT :
the relevant management accounts of the associate,
both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Unrecognised share of profit of REE DG — M E QR

an associate for the year A KRR IS (4,756) (1,131)
Accumulated unrecognised share of Rt o — A R EEEN

loss of an associate RERI D 38,117 42,873
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. EEFIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated RREEMBARAKXEINENME - &
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax TRERBEEERBEDEERE - ATAR
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is MRS B i 5 IRERIBESRN D
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial T

reporting purposes:

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Deferred tax assets FEIEF A& E 1,159 457
Deferred tax liabilities REFTEAE (623,091) (631,735)
(621,932) (631,278)

248 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EER&EEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19. EEBE®)
The following are the major deferred tax assets/ NTAERAFERBTFERRNEEZR
(liabilities) recognised and the movements thereon ERIEEE, (BB REZ

during the current and prior years:

Depreciation

allowances

Impairment Revaluation in excess of

allowance Revaluation surplus  the related

of trade arising  arising from  depreciation

and other Sales from loan business and
receivables Cut-off restructuring combinations  amortisation Total

EARAM EBAH pperild

BRERAH HEAR EnEd EEN  WERES
HERE B  ELNEHR EftBs  HIERRK @t

RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RWBOOD  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOOO
ARBTE  ARRTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARRTR

At 1 January 2021 R=Z--F-F—-H 4,094 (35,051) (64,823) (132,382) (60,931) (289,093)
(Charged)/credit for the year ER&R)/Es (3,637) 35,051 60,554 (451,244) 17,001 (342,185)
At 31 December 2021 R-F=-F

+-A=t-H 457 = (4,269) (583,626) (43,840) (631,278)
Credit/(charged) for the year EREe/ (B 702 = (19,944) 148,523 (119,935) 9,346
At 31 December 2022 KRB

+-A=t-H 1,159 - (24,213) (435,103) (163,775) (621,932)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has RBEBRR  AEBHESKREATES
unused tax losses of RMB489,659,000 (2021: B AR®489,659,000 (=& ——4F :
RMB374,475,000) available for offset against future ANR#374,475,0007T) » A AR K
profits and has deductible temporary differences of KamF  RESUNHEREZEARKE
RMB194,466,000 (2021: RMB386,206,000). No deferred 194,466,000 (T -—F : AR¥
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax 386,206,0007T) © 1 A 3t 75 18 &5 18 K AT 40
losses and the deductible temporary differences due to HEREZEERELEHBEE  JTHRK
the unpredictability of future profit stream. The tax loss R m Fm B AT FEORINE - BRIEEE RN R
will expire within five years. FREIE -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RHBARIZERE
As at 31 December 2022, the Company has direct RZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ' ARaR

THIMEARRAEER kEEES - A
MBRBHRLARE - ZEXZEMBL
AIRFEBESIAT -

and indirect interests in the subsidiaries, all of which
are private companies. The particulars of the major
subsidiaries are set out below:

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERLLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A%H HEAT i) A 2RIR IEXBR
AAER ALY ERER 2] 52} MR /EREs EEHY
Qinfa Investment Limited British Virgin 100% 100% - USD4,801/  Investment holding
(“Qinfa Investment’) Islands (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) USD50,000 in the PRC
FURERRAR(RERE) ABRAES 100% 100% - 4801% 7/ RERR
(ZBZ-F:100%)  (ZF=—F 1 100%) 50000%7 i
Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading ~ Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD689,635,000/ Sales of coal and
(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) N/A investment holding
in the PRC
BARLEREHERAT B 100% - 100% 68963500087/ BRHERKARR
(ZBZ-£:100%) (ZBZ-F:100%) iR T
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa The PRC 100% - 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Co., Ltd. (i) (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMB68,000,000 in the PRC
REERERREEAARAA) hE 100% - 100%  AR%68,000,0007T/ RiriE
(ZEZ—F :100%) (CB=-F:100%)  ARH68,0000007 T
Zhuhai Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMB5,000,000 in the PRC
HEREBHERAA() HEl 100% - 100%  AR%50000007/ RiREE
(CB=—£: 100%) (ZB=-F:100%  ARM50000007 hE
Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. (ii) The PRC 100% 100% HKD315,000,000/ Sales of coal
(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) HKD315,000,000 in the PRC
WAREMRARAH() HE 100% 100%  315,00000057/ RxEe
(ZB=—£: 100%) (ZF=—&100%) 315,000,000/ ¢ hEl
Shuozhou Guangfa Energy Co., Ltd. (i) The PRC 100% 100% RMB10,000,000/  Investment holding
(“Shuozhou Guangfa’) (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMB10,000,000 in the PRC
BNTER R RREBRAA) hEl 100% 100%  ARE10,000,0007/ RERRK
(HHER) (ZF=—%:100%) (ZZZ-F:100%)  ARE100000007T hE

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. MMERARZRE®

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERGLA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation  effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
R/ A%H HALR HHEAR BEI IZERR
AAER R ERER 22} 22} BR/ERER EERY
Shanxi Huameiao Energy Group The PRC 100% - 100% RMB300,000,000/  Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (i) (*Huameiao Energy’) (2021:100%) (2021:100%) RMB300,000,000 in the PRC
LAEXREREERRAA) hEl 100% - 100% AR300,000,0007T,/ RARR
(E=3.5750) (ZBZ-£:100%) (ZBZ—%:100%)  ARM3000000007 il
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Xingtao Coal Co., Ltd. (i) (2021: 80%) (2021:100%) RMB129,590,000  operation in the PRC
(“Xingtao Coal")
LAANTEREXRERRS hE 80% - 100% ARH129,590,0007T/ RRFRREE
RRAR) (RREZ) (ZF=-F:80%) (ZB2—%:100%)  ARM129590,0007 il
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Fengxi Coal Co., Ltd. (i) (2021: 80%) (2021:100%) RMB32,000,000  operation in the PRC
("Fengxi Coal’)
LABNTEREXRERRE hE 80% - 100%  AR%32,000,0007/ RRFRREE
BRAR) (5EHZ) (ZB—%: 80%) (ZBZ—%:100%)  AEH320000007 il
Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu District The PRC 80% - 100% RMB107,290,000/ Coal mining and
Huameiao Chongsheng Coal (2021: 80%) (2021:100%) RMB107,290,000  operation in the PRC

Co., Ltd. (i) (“Chongsheng Coal")

LABHTEREXRSRE hE 80% - 100% ARE107,290,0007/ RRARREE
BRAA() (SHEZ) (ZBZ-F:80%) (ZBZ-F:100%)  AR%107,2900007 G

Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Xinglong The PRC 80% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
Coal Industry Co., Ltd. i) (2021: 80%) (2021:100%) RMB100,000,000  operation in the PRC
(Xinglong Coal")

WETM S RRERERAR() hEl 80% - 100% ARE100,000,0007T/ RRARREE
(EERE]) (ZB=-F:80%) (ZBZ-F:100%)  AR%1000000007 hEl

Shanxi Xinzhou Shenchi Hongyuan The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Coal mining and
Coal Industry Co., Ltd. i) (2021:100%) (2021:100%) RMB100,000,000  operation in the PRC
(*Hongyuan Coal")

WER M EREEARAA) ket 100% = 100%  ARE100,000,0007T/ RRARREE
(IEEREx) (ZBZ-F:100%) (ZBZ-F:100%)  AR%1000000007 hEl

—— —
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20.

252

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20.

KRB ARZERE @

Proportion of ownership interest

BRGNS
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
AL/ A5H BELT BELAR 2RR TZEER
AAER RuY ERER 22} 2:) HR/EmER EERY
Super Grace Enterprises Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD50,000/  Goods transport and
(“Super Grace”) Islands (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Super Grace Enterprises Limited RERAES 100% = 100% 50,000%7/ ERESRM
([Super Grace)) (ZBZ-F:100%) (ZBZ-%:100%) 50,000% T HRERRE
2%
Qriental Wise Group Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport and
(“Oriental Wise") Islands (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Oriental Wise Group Limited ABRLES 100% = 100% %71/ BRESRIT
(TOriental Wise)) (2225 1 100%) (ZBZ—F 1 100%) 5000057 HRERTEE
g
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited Islands ~ British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport and
(2021:100%) (2021:100%) USD50,000  logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
Qinfa Shipping Group Limited LBRLEE 100% = 100% %1/ ARERRIR
(ZBZ-F:100%) (ZBZ-F:100%) 500007 AREMES
g
Hong Kong Qinfa Shipping Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/  Goods transport and
(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) N/A logistics, and charter
hire in worldwide
BAREMERRAR o 100% - 100% 10,0007/ BnEERNR
(ZZZ-F:100%) (ZZZ-F:100%) 0 i REMES
%
Perpetual Goodluck Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD1,000/  Goods transport and
(2021:100%) (2021:100%) N/A~ logistics, and charter
hire in the PRC
Perpetual Goodluck Limited &k 100% = 100% 100087/ HmiEE Rt
(ZTZ-F:100%) (ZTZ-F:100%) 0 i IREMEE
k7
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. MMERARZRE®

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERGLA

Place of Issuedand  Principal activities

establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of

Name of company incorporation  effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation

R/ A%H HALR HHEAR 2Rk TZERR

AAER R ERER 22} 22} BR/ERER EEY

Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co., LtdL(i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/  Goods transport and

(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMB100,000,000  logistics, and charter

hire in the PRC

HEREMERRAR() hE 100% - 100%  ARM5,000,0001/ BREERR

(ZBZ-£:100%) (ZBZ-F:100%)  AR%1000000007 KREREE

i

Ordos City Lianhang Trading The PRC 100% - 100% RMB1,000,000/ Sales of coal

Co., Ltd.(i) (2021:100%) (2021: 100%) RMB1,000,000 in the PRC

IRSHTRTESERAA() i 100% = 100%  ARE1,0000001/ RIRHE

(ZBZ-F:100%) (ZBz-F:100%)  ARE10000007 i

Qingdao Qinfa Energy Lid.(i) The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000/ Sales of coal

(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMB100,000,000 in the PRC

EEREMRERAA() hEl 100% - 100%  ARE100,000,0007T,/ RIREE

(ZEZ—% :100%) (ZBZ-F:100%)  AR%1000000007 T

Qingdao Qinfa Material Supply Ltd.(i) The PRC 100% - 100% NA/ Sales of machine

(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMB50,000,000  materials in the PRC

EERUMAHRARLA) e 100% = 100% AER/ SHERHITH

(ZB=—£: 100%) (ZE2=-F:100%  AR500000007 hE

Qingdao Qinfa Changsheng The PRC 100% - 100% NA/ Machine Repairing

Equipment Maintenance Supply (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMBS5,000,000 in the PRC
Ltd (i)

EERUBHERRBEEARAA) i 100% - 100% AER/ RhisE

(CB=—£: 100%) (CBZ-F:100%  ARE50000007 hE

Qinfa Overseas Investment Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/  Investment holding

(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) N/A in Indonesia

RUBIMRERRAR o 100% - 100% 10,0007/ REZRK

(ZE=—& :100%) (ZE=—F:100%) @A 1l

PT. Qinfa Mining Industri Indonesia 100% - 100% NIA/ Coal mining and

(2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) UUSD1,000,000  operation in Indonesia

PT. Qinfa Mining Industri fr 100% - 100% R/ RrARREE

(ZB=—%: 100%) (ZFZ-% :100%) 1,000000% 7T ol
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

E-EB-_—F+-A=+—BILtEE

20.

KRB ARZERE @

Proportion of ownership interest

ERERELA
Place of Issuedand  Principal activities
establishment/ Group’s Held by Held by fully paid-up/ and place of
Name of company incorporation effective interest The Company subsidiaries registered capital operation
AL/ A5H BARAR BELAR BRIk ITEER
AAER R ERER 2] 2:) HR/EmER EEHY
Shanxi Qinfa. Changsheng Equipment The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of machines
Maintenance Co., Ltd. (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%) RMBS5,000,000 in the PRC
LAZEEERERBERAT hE 100% - 100%  ARM5,0000007/ BEE
(ZEZ-F:100%) (ZB=-F:100%  ARS50000007 hE
Shanghai Pusheng Trading The PRC 100% - 100% RMB50,000,000 Coal mining
Company Ltd. (2021: 100%) (2021:100%)
HERRBSERAA HE 100% = 100%  ARH50,0000007 RRRER
(ZTZ-F:100%) (ZBZ-F:100%) hE
Guangzhou Silk Road Energy The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000 Coal mining
Investment Co., Ltd. (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%)
BB RERAA hEl 100% = 100%  ARE100,0000007C RRRER
(Z3Z-F:100%) (ZTZ-F:100%) i
(Guangzhou Lisheng Supply Chain The PRC 100% - 100% RMB100,000,000 Coal mining
Management Co., Ltd. (2021: 100%) (2021: 100%)
BMMEHERERARAA hEl 100% a 100%  AKH100,000,0007C RrRX
(ZFZ-F:100%) (ZFZ-F:100%) hEl
(i) These entities were established in the PRC as domestic (i) ZEERBARNTBKIMNANEAR - Z5FE
companies. The type of these entities is limited liability AL RERETEAR °
company
(ii) These entities were established in the PRC as wholly foreign- (ii) ZEBEBARTF lﬁklmﬁ\\?ﬁﬁémi
owned enterprises. The type of these entities is limited liability SEENBAAEREEA

company

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s
borrowings are secured by the Group’s equity interest
in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal
and Shuozhou Guangfa(note 28). As at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa, an
associate of the Group, are secured by the Group’s
equity interest in Yangyuan Guotong Coal Trading and
Transportation Co., Ltd (Yangyuan Guotong, which is a
subsidiary within the Group). As at 31 December 2022,
the carrying amount of net assets of Yangyuan Guotong
before any inter-company elimination amounted to
approximately RMB36,007,000 (2021: RMB36,154,000).

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

The following tables list out the financial information
relating to Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng
Coal, subsidiaries of the Company which have material
non-controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

20.
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HERENEERAEENEAEENE AR
b5 R B A kB E R AR ([ R E])
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. PAHMEARZREM®
Xingtao Coal B Bl 4 2
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
As at 31 December R+=—HA=+—8H
NCI percentage FE4EE AR 2t 151 20% 20%
Non-current assets FEMBEE 3,031,851 3,301,230
Current assets MENBEE 3,246,610 3,071,885
Current liabilities mENBE (4,047,205) (3,965,255)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (455,705) (495,542)
Net asset BEFE 1,775,551 1,912,318
Carrying amount of NCI JEERR S BRI (E 355,111 382,464
During the year ended 31 December HZE+_-A=+—HLEE
Revenue g 587,101 870,941
Reversal of impairment loss on property, #1% - BE N & # 2 BE
plant and equipment E1a R El = 203,981
Reversal of impairment loss on coal BE R ERTERE 2 RUE & B
mining rights # ol = 792,027
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive FRN(ER),wHRER
income for the year WA LB 5E (136,767) 712,046
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive 7Bt &= JFIERRAE 5 1Y (E518)
income allocated to NCI A k2T ALRE (27,353) 142,409
Cash flows generated from operating KETHBESRE
activities 21,613 19,738
Cash flows used in investing activities ~ REEHTABE S RE (5,563) (17,332)

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. RHEATZHRE®
Fengxi Coal P
2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8
NCI percentage FEA%E AR 2t 151 20% 20%
Non-current assets EREEE 677,112 086,822
Current assets MENEE 1,098,874 943,763
Current liabilities mENBE (573,550) (744,814)
Non-current liabilities EmEaE (73,970) (121,336)
Net assets BEFE 1,128,466 1,064,435
Carrying amount of NCI SRR R (E 225,693 212,887
During the year ended 31 December HE+=-A=+—HLFE
Revenue e zs 718,126 1,181,462
Reversal of impairment loss on property, 1% - BE L& # 2 BE
plant and equipment Eia#El = 105,562
Reversal of impairment loss on coal IR R 2 R (B 1B B
mining rights - 169,474
Profit and total comprehensive income & R F| & 2 E U A 4258
for the year 64,031 645,234
Profit and total comprehensive income Bt 2= JEHE I AEZS A
allocated to NCI w AR 2 AR 12,806 129,047
Cash flows generated from operating KEEBFERESRE
activities 20,487 54,651
Cash flows used in investing activities & EHTABEESRE (18,883) (53,147)
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 20. PAHMEARZREM®
Chongsheng Coal SHEHE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
As at 31 December R+=—HA=+—8
NCI percentage FE4EE AR 2t 151 20% 20%
Non-current assets EREEE 693,830 846,526
Current assets MENEE 1,168,475 790,219
Current liabilities mENBE (551,189) (610,500)
Non-current liabilities JEmEAaE (166,391) (121,721)
Net assets BESE 1,144,725 904,524
Carrying amount of NCI FEEI R PR (E 228,945 180,905
During the year ended 31 December HE+-A=+—HLFE
Revenue & 940,282 883,149
Reversal of impairment loss on property, #1% - BE N & # 2 BE
plant and equipment E1a#El = 23,780
Reversal of impairment loss on coal IR BRI 2 R (B s 1B B
mining rights - 257,116
Reversal of impairment loss on ERTIR 2 REEERE
construction in progress - 2,660
Profit and total comprehensive income — F R %A K& 2 A B ZE
for the year 240,201 614,541
Profit and total comprehensive income it &= 31 ARHE R HY
allocated to NCI w8 A N 2 EU A 48R 48,040 122,908
Cash flows generated from operating KEEBFBIRERE
activities 213,911 16,346
Cash flows used in investing activities ~ REEHAB S RE (202,229) (16,339)

During the year, there were no dividend paid to the non-
controlling shareholders (2021: nil).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. ®FE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Finished goods SRR
Coal 87 205,944 140,752
Materials and supplies YR L FE & 233,429 76,781
439,373 217,533
22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, EWEZERI
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTIT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR R 215,169 218,723
Less: allowance for credit loss B EEEERE (36,302) (36,302)
178,867 182,421
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis

The Group’s exposure to credit risk related to trade and
other receivables are disclosed in note 35(b)(i).

An ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for credit losses) of the Group is as follows:

22.

W E 5 R @)
RRIR DA

ANEBTEREE S5 K EMMEWERE RS
= E R B FAKTEES5(b)()#H 55 °

NEBMUEWRE S ERGIREEEREE
BRI OMTT ¢

2022 2021

—=-= T

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEFTT

Within 2 months R 1E A A 119,550 123,104
Over 2 months but within 6 months MR A LA BB ER A SR A - -
Over 6 months but within 1 year NMEAK EETEB—F = =
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F LA AT HBIBMRE - -
Over 2 years (note) BB () 59,317 59,317
178,867 182,421

The ageing is counted from the date when trade
receivables are recognised.

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables aged over 2 years
amounting to approximately RMB59,317,000 (2021: RMB59,317,000)
were due from customers which the Group has trade and other payable
balances with amounts not less than the respective trade receivables
as at the end of the reporting period. Based on past experience and
repayment history of the trade debtors, the directors of the Company
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances.

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from 0 to 60 days (2021:
0 to 60 days) depending on customers relationship with the Group, their

creditworthiness and past settlement record.

Details of credit policy impairment assessment of trade receivable for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 35.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

FEAT BR X % H Ath FE W BR X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Included in non-current assets SAERBEE
Other deposit (note (v)) HAbiz e (HE(v) 27,858 25,503
Included in current assets SFARBEE
Other deposits and prepayments Hithz e RFEM R EEG))
(note (1)) 119,860 230,491
Amounts due from non-controlling JE U FEHE AR AR 3R SR IR
shareholders (note (ii)) (Bt & (i) 322,703 322,703
Other non-trade receivables (note (i)  E fh3EE 5 & U BR 2 (B 5 i) 289,404 207,660
731,967 760,854
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEEHFEIV)
(note (iv)) (344,786) (341,608)
387,181 419,246

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

Prepayments for purchase of coal and transportation
fee amounting to approximately RMB14,156,000
(2021: RMB104,957,000) and RMB12,655,000 (2021:
RMB30,810,000) respectively are included in other deposits
and prepayments. The remaining amount of RMB94,049,000
(2021: RMB94,724,000) are mainly prepayments for the
supplier services to support the Group’s ordinary business.

Amounts due from non-controlling shareholders of Huameiao
Energy are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of
repayment. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
approximately RMB322,703,000 (2021: RMB322,703,000) were
fully impaired in prior years.

Other non-trade receivable mainly represented the government
grant receivables of RMB5,141,000 (2021: RMB106,700,000)
and value added tax recoverable of RMB186,892,000 (2021:
RMB70,391,000).

MEE

(i)

(iii)

RS B R FE T BR A A R #514,156,0007T (=
T —4 : AR¥104,957,0007T) R B &
FERT R KA ARY12,655,000(ZF = —
#F : AR%30,810,0007T) Bt AEALIES K&
TEfFERFK o A T & %8 A R#94,049,0007T (=
T——4F : AR¥094,724,0007T) B AX
REE— M EBH BRI RS TANERR

JFEE Ui 2 55 BB B R JE 1R AR AR PR AN R AR K AR
CERERTEERY RZT=_=F+=A4
=+—H  REALHARE322,703,0007T
—T——4F: AR¥322,703,0007T) ER B
FEEERENME -

HtFEBEIRUERETEABBBEHE
BEARYS5,141,000L(ZE=—F : AR
#106,700,0007T) R Al W EEER AR
#186,892,000 (=T =—F : AR¥
70,391,0007T) °
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23.

262

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. RBNRRREMEVERRE
(CONTINUED)
Notes: (continued) BEE - ()
(iv) Allowance for losses of prepayments and other receivables are (iv) AR BER R E MR R EREENT
as follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBF T
Other deposits and prepayments Hihize RIEMER 2,697 2,954
Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders JE U FE PR AR AR B 5K TE 322,703 322,703
Other non-trade receivables Hh3EE 5 EUERK 19,386 15,951
344,786 341,608

Details of impairment assessment of prepayments and
other receivables for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 are set out in note 35. As at 31 December 2022,
other receivables (net of credit allowances) amounted to
RMB280,234,000 (2021: RMB208,201,000).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 13 May
2021, a series of agreements, including heads of agreement
(“HOA”) dated 12 May 2021 and addendum of HOA dated
31 December 2021 (collectively, the “Proposed Acquisition
Agreements”) were entered by the Group for proposed
acquisitions of 70% equity shareholding of PT Indonesia Multi
Energy (“IME”), PT Persada Berau Jaya Sakti (“PBJS”), PT
Tansri Madjid Energi (“TME”) and PT Vipronity Power Energy
(“VPE”") companies (collectively refunded to as the “Targets”)
duly established under the laws of Republic of Indonesia that
are engaged in coal mining and trading at coals in Indonesia,
from five independent third parties (the Five “Sellers”) at an
aggregate consideration of IDR1,925,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB859,000). Pursuant to the Proposed
Acquisition Agreements, the Five Sellers (as non-controlling
shareholders of the Targets after completion of the proposed
acquisition) would be entitled to 15% of the total saleable coal
production of the Targets as profit distributions and such Five
Sellers’ entitlements are secured by the deposits of aggregate
USD4,000,000 (equivalent to RMB27,858,000) paid by the
Group. The aforesaid deposits paid by the group are secured
by Five Sellers’ approximately 25% equity interest in SDE and
one of the Five Sellers’ 99% equity interest in PT Widyanusa
Mandiri until the completion of the proposed acquisitions.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of
approximately RMB143,676,000 (2021: RMB2,103,000)
were restricted for use in relation to the borrowing
guarantee as disclosed in note 28 and litigation
proceedings.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB840,629,000 and RMB1,000,303,000,
respectively. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group performed impairment assessment on
bank balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and
accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged and
restricted bank deposits for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 35.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details change in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

24,

25.

R Z R E 7K
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RERREEEY
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EWn Rl A ARE-840,629,0007T X AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 E ZE —

T _F+A=+—BILFE

=

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

25. BHERBEEEY®

REBMEETHNRENER®

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
BE HEas et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETR AR®TT
At 1 January 2021 R—ZE-_—F—HF—H 4,596,354 3,731 4,600,085
Changes from financing cash FEESHRE 2B :
flows:
Proceeds from borrowings EEERT 653,800 = 653,800
Repayments of borrowings/lease 1&i& {ﬁg/fﬁfﬁ
liabilities (1,629,721) (13,804) (1,643,525)
(975,921) (13,804) (989,725)
Non-cash changes: FRESEE
Extinguishment of other REREAREEEM
borrowings upon loan EptCiED)
restructuring (note i) (788,183) - (788,183)
Recognition of new other RE R EARERH
borrowings upon loan fto 1 & (B =%1)
restructuring (note i) 658,157 - 658,157
Interest charge on unwinding of KR ELIR 2 F| S F 2
discounts (Note 9) (Ft5E9) 202,225 854 203,079
New leases entered into HIVE Xk = 24,977 24,977
72,199 25,831 98,030
At 31 December 2021 R_—F_—%F
+=-—A=+—H 3,692,632 15,758 3,708,390

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED) 25. BHERBEEEY®

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing FREMEZTHNRENEER@®
activities (continued)

Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
& HEAE Ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARMT T ARBT T

Changes from financing cash BEBRELHREZEE :

flows:
Proceeds from borrowings EESE 641,871 = 641,871
Repayments of borrowings/lease BEEE THEaE
liabilities (939,478) (10,207) (949,685)
(297,607) (10,207) (307,814)
Non-cash changes: FHRESEE
Extinguishment of other REREAREE
borrowings upon loan H b 185 (B i)
restructuring (note ii) (2,345,100) - (2,345,100)
Recognition of new other RE R E AR R
borrowings upon loan HAb 85 (i i)
restructuring (note ii) 2,325,217 - 2,325,217
Interest charge on unwinding of BRI 2 F| B2
discounts (Note 9) (Ft3E9) 147,083 978 148,061
New leases entered into HIVEviEED - 3,693 3,693
Exchange differences PE 5 =R (1,465) 106 (1,359)
125,735 4,777 130,512
At 31 December 2022 N-ZE——F
+—A=+—H 3,520,760 10,328 3,531,088
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266

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

Notes:

V)

In respect of Settlement Agreement of Loan Il and
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined and detailed
in Note 28) entered by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings outstanding of RMB788,183,000 in total and the
relevant outstanding interests (including penalty interests)
of RMB370,292,000 in total. The Group recognised new
borrowings and interest payables measured at fair values
amounting to RMB658,157,000 in total and RMB261,645,000 in
total respectively as at the respective dates of extinguishment.
The differences between the aforesaid carrying amounts
of the borrowings and interest payables derecognised
and the aforesaid fair values of the new borrowings and
interest payables recognised amounting to approximately
RMB238,673,000 are recognised as other gains for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as set out in note 8.

In respect of Settlement Agreement of Loan Il, Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il and Settlement Agreement of Loan IV (as
defined and detailed in Note 28) entered by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group derecognised
the original borrowings outstanding of RMB2,354,100,000 in
total and the relevant outstanding interests (including penalty
interests) of RMB22,641,000 in total. The Group recognised
new borrowings measured at fair values amounting to
RMB2,325,217,000 in total with no interest payables as at the
respective dates of extinguishment. The differences between
the aforesaid carrying amounts of the borrowings and interest
payables derecognised and the aforesaid fair values of the
new borrowings and interest payables recognised amounting
to approximately RMB11,321,000 are recognised as gain
on substantial modification of borrowings and amounting to
approximately RMB31,203,000 are recognised as net gain on
non-substantial modification of borrowings for the year ended
31 December 2022, as set out in note 8.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B IR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

TRADE PAYABLES

26. ENEZERX

An ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group AEEENEZRFTIREZHHNERRS
based on invoice date is as follows: M -
2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Within 1 year —FR 187,906 126,026
Over 1 year but within 2 years — A EETBBARSE 79,814 96,357
Over 2 years ME A 119,844 98,081
387,564 320,464
OTHER PAYABLES 27. HEFERR
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Accrued expenses JEET X 491,066 463,276
Contract liabilities (note (i) CR=UAG () 22,871 42,248
Amount due to ultimate controlling B S AR AR I SR FRIE
shareholder 161 161
Amount due to ultimate holding JE S S AR PR R A R FRIA
company (note (iii)) CGEIUN) 21,816 15,216
Amount due to an associate (note (iii))  FEfT— BB & A B F0A
(CGEEUD)) 215,276 215,276
Amounts due to directors of the ERANRABESEHKIE
Company (note (iii)) GEAD)) 656 1,382
Amount due to a related party (note (iii)) FEf—Z #8875 FUA
GED)) 141 141
Amount due to a related company FET — R REE A R 5RIE
(note (iii)) (B2 iif)) - 100
Other payables (note (i) L Ath 1 51 BR SR (Bf 3 (i) 1,215,038 1,568,055
1,967,025 2,305,855
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZT — —

27. OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

U]

Fr-A=T—HIEFE

27. HEMNER®

fiit

U]

2022 2021
—EBC-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBETTT
Contract liabilities EHNaE
Sale of coal BIRHE 22,871 42,248

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as income within

one year from dates of receipts.

The Group typically received 100% payment from customers for sales
of coal before the customers obtain the control of coal products which
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue

recognised upon the pass of controls.

FiA & H B ERIR R B — F AR A

REEBENE P ISR IRE @RI% 6 A 2 s R R
ERBEF100%H0 5 - BMRNAORBBEESH
BE  BEERENEGIREE R ERR

Movements in contract liabilities are as follows: AREEZENAT -
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFIT
At 1 January Kn—A—H8 42,248 94,746
Revenue recognised that was included in the RENEFAGHNEEN
contract liabilities at the beginning of the year B RS (42,248) (94,746)
Forward sale deposits and instalments received FAKRIBERAEE RS N
during the year w2l N E-N 22,871 42,248
As at 31 December W+=—A=+—H 22,871 42,248
(if) Construction payables of approximately RMB595,792,000 (ii) HtENEREBREMNEERIHAR

(2021: RMB653,297,000) and payables related to
mineral exploration and mining rights of approximately
RMB255,057,000 (2021: RMB260,785,000) are included in

other payables.

(iii) The amounts due to ultimate holding company of the (iif)
Company, ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, an
associate, directors of the Company, a related company and
a related party are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed

term of repayment.

268 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED +EER&EEERAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

28. BORRBOWINGS 28. f&&
2022
—E-CF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E ARET ARBTT
Bank loans IRITER
- Secured - AR (i) 74,676 =
- Unsecured - |\ (ii) 590,990 638,000
665,666 638,000
Other borrowings HinfgE (iif)
- Secured Loan | (as defined - BEBEERI(EER
below) T30 2,008,380 2,145,073
— Secured Loan Il (as defined - BERERIEER
below) T30 107,070 119,045
- Secured Loan Ill (as defined -BERAERINEER
below) T30 492,444 492 444
- Unsecured — KR 247,200 298,070
2,855,094 3,054,632
Total borrowings ERGE 3,520,760 3,692,632
Notes: B3
(i) Secured bank loans bear interest at rates of 2.5% (2021: Nil) (i) A—ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 FEKHER]T

per annum as at 31 December 2022.

(i) Unsecured bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from
5.85% to 7.80% (2021: 5.7% to 8.80%) per annum as at 31

December 2022.

(iii) Other borrowings bear interest at rates ranging from 4.91% to
7.28% (2021: 5.66% to 7.28%) per annum as at 31 December

2022.

BHIREFR25%(ZE-—F : M)FT8 °

(ii) R-ZB-_—HF+-A=+—8  EEKFPR}T
EFIREFNEN F5.85%27.80% (=T = —

& : 57%%8.80%) 58 °

(iii) RZTE-——F+=-—A=+—8 HEE

BEMENT491%E7.28% (=T =—4F :

5.66%ZE7.28%) T2
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2022, borrowings of the Group were
repayable as follows:

BE @

RoEBE-—F+=-A=+—1 ~"&EHE
EMERBRMT

2022 2021

—Eg-= T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year or on demand —FARARIZERK 3,447,453 1,475,850
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F A HETBBWE 1,370 2,216,782
Over 2 years but within 5 years MEL BT BBRF 71,937 =
73,307 2,216,782

3,520,760 3,692,632

Due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence HRERERZHER KB EERNEH(R

of default events (including the breach of cross
default clauses), certain bank and other borrowings
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,330,634,000 (2021: RMB1,428,514,000), in
which the aggregate amount of RMB739,644,000
(2021: RMB790,514,000) was past due, and aggregate
amounts of RMB535,990,000 (2021: RMB577,000,000)
and RMB55,000,000 (2021: RMB61,000,000)
were repayable within one year and after one year
respectively from the end of reporting date based on the
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the respective
loan agreements, had been due for immediate payment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The interest payables of borrowings not yet past due
but due for immediate payment due to occurrence
of default events (including the breach of cross
default clauses) and of borrowings that have become
past due amounting to approximately RMB207,000
(2021: RMB176,000) and RMB219,511,000 (2021:
RMB274,089,000) respectively were included in the
other payables.

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured bank loans,
secured other borrowings and unsecured other
borrowings of approximately RMB590,990,000
(2021: RMB638,000,000), RMB492,444,000 (2021:
RMB492,444,000) and RMB247,200,000 (2021:
RMB298,070,000) respectively, had been due for
immediate payment (including those overdue or those
due to breach of loan covenants and/or occurrence of
default events (e.g. breach of cross default clauses)).
These borrowings carried interest at rates 4.91% to
7.80% (2021: 4.91% to 8.80%) per annum and also
carried additional penalty interest at rate 2.26% to
3.50% (2021: 2.26% to 3.50%) per annum after past
due. Those secured borrowings that had been due
for immediate payment are secured by coal mining
rights and property, plant and equipment with a
carrying amount of approximately RMB2,333,653,000
and RMB255,348,000 as at 31 December 2022
respectively (2021: coal mining rights and property,
plant and equipment with RMB2,956,393,000 and
RMB359,913,000 respectively).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | (as defined below)
and its supplemental agreements

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
entered into a legal binding settlement agreement (the
“Settlement Agreement of Loan |I” or “Loan I”) with an
asset management company in the PRC, to reduce the
outstanding principal amounts of bank loans assigned
by two banks and the relevant outstanding interests
(including penalty interests) amounting to approximately
RMB4,027,188,000 and RMB582,028,000 in total
respectively. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Settlement Agreement of Loan |
are substantially different as the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms discounted
using the original effective interest rate is different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability by more than
10 per cent, and the Settlement Agreement of Loan
| (with revised repayment schedules, revised loan
principal amounts, default clauses, change of lender,
etc.) superseded the respective original bank loan
agreements. Accordingly, such modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Therefore, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings and interest payables outstanding and
recognised new borrowings measured at fair value as
at the date of extinguishment. The difference between
the aggregate carrying amount of the borrowings and
interest payables of RMB4,609,216,000 derecognised
and the fair value of RMB2,704,363,000 of the new
borrowings recognised amounting to approximately
RMB1,904,853,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | (as defined below)
and its supplemental agreements (continued)

In March 2020, in respect of the above-mentioned
borrowings, the Group further entered into a legally
binding supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Settlement Agreement of Loan I”) with the asset
management company to revise and extend the
repayment schedule for year of 2020 and 2021.
The repayment schedule for year of 2022 remained
unchanged. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Supplemental Settlement
Agreement of Loan | are not substantially different from
the Settlement Agreement of Loan | as the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the revised terms
discounted using the original effective interest rate
is different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability by
less than 10 per cent. Accordingly, such modification
of terms was accounted for as non-substantial
modification, and the adjustment of approximately
RMB10,700,000 to the carrying amount of the financial
liability was recognised as other losses at the date of
modification during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | (as defined below)
and its supplemental agreements (continued)

In December 2020, the Group further entered into
a legally binding supplemental agreement (the
“Supplemental Settlement Agreement Il of Loan 1”) with
the asset management company to revise and extend
the repayment schedule for December 2020 and year of
2021. The repayment schedule for December 2020 has
been changed to 2023. The management of the Group
considers that the terms of the Supplemental Settlement
Agreement Il of Loan | are not substantially different
from the Supplemental Settlement Agreement of Loan
| as the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the revised terms discounted using the original
effective interest rate is different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability by less than 10 per cent. Accordingly,
such modification of terms was accounted for as
non-substantial modification, and the adjustment of
approximately RMB183,651,000 to the carrying amount
of the financial liability was recognised as other losses
at the date of modification during the year ended 31
December 2020.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | (as defined below)
and its supplemental agreements (continued)

In March 2022, the Group further entered into a legally
binding supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Settlement Agreement Ill of Loan |”) with the asset
management company to revise the repayment
schedule for year of 2022 and 2023. The management
of the Group considers that the terms of the
Supplemental Settlement Agreement Il of Loan | are not
substantially different from the Supplemental Settlement
Agreement Il of Loan | as the discounted present value
of the cash flows under the revised terms discounted
using the original effective interest rate is different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability by less than 10
per cent. Accordingly, such modification of terms was
accounted for as non-substantial modification, and the
adjustment of approximately RMB33,261,000 to the
carrying amount of the financial liability was recognised
as other gain as set out in note 8 at the date of
modification during the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of
the Group’s borrowings from the asset management
company was approximately RMB2,008,380,000 (31
December 2021: RMB2,145,073,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan | (as defined below)
and its supplemental agreements (continued)

The Settlement Agreement of Loan | contained a default
clause which the Group will be required to repay the
outstanding balance of the original borrowings and
interest payable of approximately RMB4,027,188,000
and RMB458,887,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB4,027,188,000 and RMB373,014,000) respectively
if the Group fails to repay the borrowings by instalments
in accordance with the respective revised repayment
schedule as stipulated in the Supplement Settlement
Agreement Il of Loan |I. There is no occurrence of
event of default under the Settlement Agreement of
Loan |, Supplemental Settlement Agreement of Loan I,
Supplemental Settlement Agreement Il of Loan | and
Supplemental Settlement Agreement Il of Loan | so
far up to the end of the reporting period (31 December
2021: no occurrence of event of default).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined below)

In May 2021, the Group entered into another legally
binding settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement of Loan II” or “Loan II”) with the asset
management company to reduce the outstanding
principal amounts of bank loans assigned by two
banks and the relevant outstanding interests (including
penalty interests) amounting to approximately
RMB295,739,000 and RMB108,647,000 in total
respectively. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Settlement Agreement of Loan Il
are substantially different as the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms discounted
using the original effective interest rate is different from
the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability by more than
10 per cent, and the Settlement Agreement of Loan
Il (with revised repayment schedules, revised loan
principal amounts, default clauses, change of lender,
etc.) superseded the respective original bank loan
agreements. Accordingly, such modification of terms
was accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability. Therefore, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings of RMB295,739,000 and interest payable
of RMB108,647,000 outstanding, and recognised
new borrowings measured at fair value amounting to
RMB165,713,000 as at the date of extinguishment.
The difference between the aforesaid carrying
amounts of the borrowings and interest payables
derecognised and the aforesaid fair value of the new
borrowings recognised amounting to approximately
RMB238,673,000 was recognised as other gain at
the date of modification during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E T - —F+—_A=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined below)

(continued)

In February 2022, in respect of the above-mentioned
borrowings, the Group further entered into a legally
binding supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il”) with the asset
management company to revise the repayment
schedule for year of 2022 and 2023. The management
of the Group considers that the terms of the
Supplemental Settlement Agreement of Loan Il are not
substantially different from the Settlement Agreement
of Loan Il as the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the revised terms discounted using the
original effective interest rate is different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial liability by less than 10 per cent.
Accordingly, such modification of terms was accounted
for as non-substantial modification, and the adjustment
of approximately RMB2,058,000 to the carrying amount
of the financial liability was recognised as other losses
as set out in note 8 at the date of modification during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount
of the Group’s borrowings from the asset
management company in respect of Loan Il was
approximately RMB107,070,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB119,045,000).

The Settlement Agreement of Loan Il contained a
default clause which the Group will be required to repay
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings and
interest payable of approximately RMB295,206,000 and
RMB108,432,000 (31 December 2021: RMB295,206,000
and RMB104,027,000) respectively if the Group fails
to repay the borrowings by instalments in accordance
with the respective revised repayment schedule as
stipulated in the Supplemental Settlement Agreement of
Loan Il. There is no occurrence of event of default under
the Settlement Agreement of Loan Il and Supplemental
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il so far up to the end of
the reporting period (31 December 2021: no occurrence
of event of default).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined below)

In December 2021, the Group entered into a legally
binding settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement of Loan III” or “Loan III”) with an asset
management company to reduce the outstanding
principal amounts of bank loans assigned by a bank
and the relevant outstanding interests (including
penalty interests in arrears) amounting to approximately
RMB492,444,000 and RMB261,645,000 in total
respectively. The management of the Group considers
that the terms of the Settlement Agreement of Loan Il
are substantially different as the Settlement Agreement
of Loan Il (with revised repayment schedules, default
clauses, change of lender, etc.) superseded the
respective original bank loan agreement. Accordingly,
such modification of terms was accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability.
Therefore, the Group derecognised the original
borrowings of RMB492,444,000 and interest payables
of RMB261,645,000 outstanding, and recognised
new borrowings and interest payables amounting to
RMB492,444,000 and RMB261,645,000 respectively
based on the terms of Loan IIl, as at the date of
extinguishment. Therefore, no gain or loss arising
from the loan restructuring was recognised at the
date of modification. As at 31 December 2022, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings from the
asset management company in respect of Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il and the related interest
payable were approximately RMB492,444,000 and
RMB226,479,000 respectively, which are included in
current liabilities. Therefore, no gain or loss arising from
the loan restructuring was recognised at the date of
modification during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s borrowings from the asset management
company in respect of Loan Il and the related interest
payable were approximately RMB492,444,000 and
RMB199,402,000 (31 December 2021: RMB492,444,000
and RMB226,479,000) respectively, which are included
in current liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. fBE®W
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined below) BERNGEEBR(ERR T ®
(continued)
The Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill contained a ERNEEBZEB S —HERMER - B
conditional clause which the Group, unless otherwise BGRIEEZEEEEARBANEREERE
notified by the asset management company to repay ENREEEBREMTE  skAREE R
the outstanding balance of the original borrowings BIECEIIERRRREN  GAAEE
and interest payable or the Group fails to repay in ERBHBLETERRERER D BHEERS
accordance with the revised repayment schedule, B mBOnERINEERHZMEIE - 28
should repay the borrowings by instalment in BERMBEERNREENREELH IIE
accordance with the respective revised repayment HRE - Bt RZEFEZ=ZF+=A=+
schedule and the total sum of the instalments is less — B BEERNEE HETHALER]
than the outstanding balance of the original borrowings FEIERERAE MR EEE R AR —B
and interest payable, as stipulated in the Settlement EREERBENRESLERRENTE
Agreement of Loan lIl. Therefore, as at 31 December IARARE B RER BT ERFBRENK
2022, the carrying amount of Loan Il and its related WEAFE - HEEENERINREER
interest due for repayment, based on the revised MEWREEBESLT :
scheduled repayment terms set out in the Settlement
Agreement of Loan IIl and without taking into account
the effect of any demand by the asset management
company to repay the outstanding balance of the
original borrowings and interest payable and the
Group’s failure to repay in accordance with the revised
repayment schedule, is as follows:
2022 2021
—ZE-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Within 1 year —FN 50,602 51,878
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FLA EETBBRF 219,918 50,602
Over 2 years but within 5 years MELA BN BBEAF = 219,918
270,520 322,095

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Settlement Agreement of Loan Il (as defined below)

(continued)

Due to the above-mentioned conditional clause and
the conditions have not been satisfied so far up to the
end of the reporting period, new borrowing and interest
payable with carrying amounts of RMB492,444,000 and
RMB199,402,000 (31 December 2021: RMB492,444,000
and RMB226,479,000) respectively in respect of
Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill were recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2022.

There is no occurrence of event of default under the
Settlement Agreement of Loan Il as at the end of the
reporting period (2021: no occurrence of event of
default).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Other

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
entered into a legal binding settlement agreement
(the “Settlement Agreement of Loan IV” or “Loan V")
with an asset management company in the PRC, to
reduce the outstanding principal amounts of bank
loans assigned by a bank and the relevant outstanding
interests (including penalty interests) amounting to
approximately RMB50,870,000 and RMB22,641,000
in total respectively. The management of the Group
considers that the terms of the Settlement Agreement
of Loan IV are substantially different as the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms
discounted using the original effective interest rate
is different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability by
more than 10 per cent, and the Settlement Agreement
of Loan IV (with revised repayment schedules, revised
loan principal amounts, default clauses, change of
lender, etc.) superseded the respective original bank
loan agreements. Accordingly, such modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new
financial liability. Therefore, the Group derecognised the
original borrowings and interest payables outstanding
and recognised new borrowings measured at fair
value as at the date of extinguishment. The difference
between the aggregate carrying amount of the
borrowings and interest payables of RMB50,870,000
and RMB22,641,000 derecognised and the fair value
of RMB62,190,000 of the new borrowings recognised
amounting to approximately RMB11,321,000 was
recognised as other gain as set out in note 8 at the date
of modification. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the outstanding principal amount and relevant
interest (including penalty interests) of Loan IV was fully
settled by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Other (continued)

Of the Group’s borrowings, aggregate principal
amounts of RMB247,200,000 as at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: RMB298,070,000) had
been defaulted with lawsuit filed by banks and asset
management companies against the Group to demand
immediate repayment. Pursuant to the final court
judgements in prior years, the Group was ordered to
make immediate repayment of the aforesaid balances.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
banks assigned their bank loans and interests (including
penalty interests) due from the Group with aggregate
amounts of RMB295,739,000 and RMB101,313,000
respectively, which had been past due and with lawsuit
for one of the loans, to an asset management company
in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a bank
assigned its bank loans and interests (including penalty
interests) due from the Group with aggregate amounts
of RMB247,200,000 and RMB27,873,000 respectively,
which had been past due and with lawsuit to an asset
management company in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the asset
management company assigned its loans and interests
(including penalty interests) due from the Group
with aggregate amounts of RMB247,200,000 and
RMB41,128,000 respectively, which had been past due
and with lawsuit to other lenders in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2022, the terms of the above
assigned loans remained unchanged. The Group is still
in the process of negotiating with the banks and asset
management companies/lenders to renew the terms
(including the repayment schedule) of the outstanding
loans and loans assigned.

28.
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28.

284

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Other (continued)

The Group’s secured borrowings (including those due
for immediate payment and those not due for immediate
payment) are secured by the following assets of the
Group:

28.

Hibg

AEENGEMER (BEC I HARNEE
BERAARDHANREEE) A TIIARE
BB EFEA

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt aE ARBT ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 15 255,348 359,913
Coal mining rights B R B AR 16 2,333,653 2,956,393

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s total
borrowings are also secured by other receivables of a
related company of which Mr. Xu is the shareholder,
a property held by Mr. Xu, Fortune Pearls equity
interest in the Company and the Group’s equity interest
in Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal,
Chongsheng Coal, Xinglong Coal, Hongyuan Coal and
Shuozhou Guangfa. As at 31 December 2022, total
borrowings of approximately RMB3,446,084,000 (2021:
RMB3,692,632,000) were guaranteed by the Company,
certain subsidiaries of the Company, related parties
and/or Mr. Xu (note 38(b)).

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF

R-E-——&Ep-—"FT—-——&F+—-f=+—
A AEEMNBEENA —BhRRLEE
FREMNEEZEQRRMEMBBERER - %
EEREN—EYE ZPEARAFN
MR A EEREXRER - EHiEEE -
IR  SAEE - SE/RE KR
HERPMNEZNREEERTE - R =F
T+ -A=+—H HEEHAR
#3,446,084,000C(ZE=—F : ARK
3,692,632,0007T) B AR R « AREHH
FHBAR - BER KR SR EEEER
(it 3£38(b)) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS 29. FHIREEREH
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFIT
At 1 January ®R—H—H 144,090 133,920
Addition NE 25,131 =
Interest charge on unwinding of FRIRBLER 2 FI SR
discounts (note 9(ii)) (B &E9(ii)) 10,393 10,170
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—8H 179,614 144,090
LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HEAE
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Within 1 year —F R 8,794 8,833
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F A EETBARSE 1,534 6,925
10,328 15,758
Less: Amount due for settlement within ~ J& : R EN & EIE N 5/RE
12 months shown under current 1218 A R B HIEE R
liabilities RIE (8,794) (8,833)
Amount due for settlement after 12 ERBEEE TR
months shown under non-current 1218 A& B Hi S E A
liabilities RIE 1,534 6,925
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31.

286

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 3 January 2020 and 7 August 2020, a series of
agreements, including heads of agreement (“HOA”)
dated 31 December 2019, addendum of HOA dated
11 March 2020 and conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 6 August 2020 (collectively, the
“Acquisition Agreements”) were entered by the
Group for acquisition of 70% equity shareholding of
PT Sumber Daya Energi (“SDE”), a company duly
established under the laws of Republic of Indonesia
that is engaged in coal mining and trading in Indonesia,
from two independent third parties (the “Sellers”) at
a consideration of IDR385,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB171,000). Meanwhile, pursuant to
the Acquisition Agreements, deposits of USD4,000,000
and USD1,000,000 were paid by the Group to one of
the Sellers, who held 99.82% of SDE before completion
of the acquisition, on 13 March 2020 and 13 August
2020 respectively. After completion of the acquisition
on 25 May 2021 (“Acquisition Date”), the Seller
became the non-controlling shareholder of SDE and
is entitled to 15% of the total saleable coal production
of SDE as profit distributions and such entitlement
are secured by the aforesaid deposits of aggregate
USD5,000,000 (equivalent to RMB33,133,000 and
RMB34,264,000 as at 25 May 2021 and 31 December
2020 respectively). The Group considered that the
aforesaid deposits of USD5,000,000 became non-
refundable upon Acquisition Date and will only be offset
with profit distributions to the Seller for its 15% of the
total saleable coal production of SDE until the aforesaid
deposits are fully offset, and therefore such deposits
of USD5,000,000 were also considered as part of the
purchase consideration of the acquisition. Accordingly,
the aggregate purchase consideration of the acquisition
amounted to IDR385,000,000 and USD5,000,000
(equivalent to RMB33,304,000 in total).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 31. WEBKEB2RR@
The primary reason for the acquisition was for the ETZREIZEERTERASE XKL
expansion of the Group’s business and to increase AR R IR o
returns to its shareholders.
The directors of the Company were of the opinion that ARAREERE ' RUWESDEMERSAIKR
inputs acquired from the acquisition of SDE did not AN NEIE— S H A EHESDER F K
include an organised workforce that has the necessary REEMTREE  MER&RSTER
skills, knowledge and experience to perform coal B AREMMERA - mkEESDEI
production of SDE and other necessary inputs, and XS AT BB B B i & 2RI 3 35 [ 7%
the acquisition of SDE did not constitute a business EHIFMERNERS M - Atz
combination as defined in IFRS 3 (Revised) “Business NEEWBAR - RIKERHFBENE
Combinations”, and therefore the acquisition was ENFTAENEENT :
accounted for as asset acquisition. Assets acquired
and liabilities assumed upon Acquisition Date are as
follows:
RMB’000

ARB T
Coal mining rights B R R 33,780
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE A& 5,631
Prepayment and other receivables AT AR 3 B E A B W AR 3R 3,274
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 2,033
Other payables Eo T BRFK (11,414)
Net assets BEFE 33,304

The net cash inflow arising on the acquisition for the
year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

BE-T-—F+-A=T-BLFER
WEE B R SR AFEMT ¢

RMB’000
ARBTR

Cash consideration paid
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired

ENEERE
B TR S MR EEY

(171)
2,033

Net cash inflow from the acquisition

KEWBERIRERAFER

1,862

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

287



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

32. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32. BX - R#HEREKRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HERBIEH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBEIH D ?é%ﬁﬁf\ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂ
closing balances of each component of the RAEBR 57 Em BB ©
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b)  Share capital (b) BE
Amount
&
No. of share RMB’000
R AR¥T T
Ordinary shares of EREE010E THWZER
HKDO0.10 each
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2021, R-ZZE_—%—H—8H-
31 December 2021 and :;?:—i‘i'iﬂ E—E
31 December 2022 P>
+ZA=+—H 20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, issued and ZER BRITRAR
fully paid
At 1 January 2021, R-_E_—F—HA—H-
31 December 2021 and —E-_—F+-_A=+—H
31 December 2022 S
+=ZRA=+—H 2,493,413,985 211,224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

32. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32. EX - -f#EERRE®
(CONTINUED)

(c) Perpetual subordinated convertible securities (c) KARBUBRKRES

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued
convertible securities to Fortune Pearl with a
principal value of HKD194,700,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB157,872,000). The direct
transaction costs attributable to the convertible
securities amounted to approximately
RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the
option of the holder of convertible securities
into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
after 31 December 2012 at the initial conversion
price of HKD1.65 per ordinary share of the
Company (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments).
While the convertible securities confer a right
to receive distributions at 3% per annum, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to
defer a distribution pursuant to the terms of the
convertible securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity
date and are redeemable at the option of the
Company at 100% or 50% of the principal
amount of the convertible securities each time,
on any distribution payment date at the face
value of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible securities to be redeemed plus 100%
or 50% (as the case may be) of distributions
accrued to such date.

FF3 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RZBE——F+-_A=+—H ' &
NEIEITALEEA194,700,000
BT EER L ARME157,872,000
TR RREBS TEE - AR
REFEENEEZERFIEAOAR
#941,0007T °

AR ESAN - E——F+=H8
=+ — B 2B IR R R 8
REHFFEARBEEZELIRAARQF
TR NP RBRERERARQF
T AAR1.658 T (MERIEL REE A
B) BEAMRBRESE TR
WEZF3%HDIREE » AR
Al REEZRBE T HRESFOER
EEER DR o

AT B AE W EEIEA - ATARAR
AR BTSRRI B AR
100%850% F LAEE - P {ER 5D
IRFE S B B T HE R &) Al AR %
FERTASHEAEES MNIERA
HREMNSIREH100%550% (13
TERME) °

289



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32.

290

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

(continued)

As the convertible securities have no contractual
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distributions, they do not meet the definition for
classification of a financial liabilities under IAS
32. As a result, the whole instrument is classified
as equity, and respective distributions if and
when declared are treated as equity dividends.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group elected to distribute payments of
approximately HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB5,054,000) in respect of
current year (year ended 31 December 2021:
elected to distribute payments of approximately
HKD5,841,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,860,000) in respect of the year). As at
31 December 2022, no accumulated deferred
distribution payments (31 December 2021: nil)
are included in the reserves of the Company
available for distribution.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

32. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32. EX - -f#EERRE®
(CONTINUED)

(d) Deficit (d) Eat

(i) Share premium (i) BB

The share premium account of the Group
includes: (i) the premium arising from
the issue of new shares in prior years; (ii)
the expense incurred in connection with
issuance of new shares in prior years;
(iii) dividends declared and paid in prior
years; and (iv) amount transferred from
share-based compensation reserve upon
exercise of share options.

On 6 January 2016, 215,000,000 shares
were allotted and issued to the Creditor by
capitalisation of part of the Payables. The
excess of the fair value of shares issued
totalling HKD33,325,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB27,822,000) over
the nominal value of the total number
of ordinary shares issued was credited
to the share premium account, after
deducting the issuing expenses.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate amount of paid-
in capital of the subsidiaries of the
Company and the amount of share capital
of the Company transferred and issued to
Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire
equity interests in all members of the
Group as part of a reorganisation on 12
June 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i BB R R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

32.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Deficit (continued)

(iii)

Reserves

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations applicable to wholly-foreign-
owned companies, certain entities
within the Group are required to allocate
certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Board of Directors,
of their profit after tax in accordance with
PRC GAAP to the statutory reserve fund
(the SRF) until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than
in the event of liquidation and, subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations, can be used to offset
accumulated losses or be capitalised as
issued capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

32. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32. EX - -f#EERRE®
(CONTINUED)

(d)  Deficit (continued) d) Eae
(iii)  Reserves (continued) (iii)  FEE
Statutory reserve fund (continued) EEREL ()
Specific reserve maintenance and HIEFEEEREEES

production funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, BEBEFEEERE  NEE
the Group is required to transfer an ARBHKRESE  §—EX
amount to specific reserve for the HEBEAZEREEREREER
maintenance and production funds and EEES AN RHEAME B
other related expenditures based on coal X o EIRREEEBNT ¢

production volume. The movement of
specific reserve is as follows:

RMB’000
AR¥F T
At 1 January 2021 R_Z_—F—A—H 239,036
Provision for the year FAEE 216,736
Utilisation for the year FREA (114,811)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R=—F=—%+=-A=+—H
rRAZZE-_—_F—HF—H 340,961
Provision for the year FRREE 167,508
Utilisation for the year FREA (139,215)
At 31 December 2022 R-FE-_—_F+=-A=+—~H 369,254
(iv)  Exchange reserve (iv) EZFE

The exchange reserve comprises all [ 5 e IR g N ER
foreign exchange differences arising from B B 755 R 2% 1T 22 AR ) 2 ER AN
the translation of the financial statements % o

of foreign operations.
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32.

294

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d)

Deficit (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve
represents the value of directors and
employee services in respect of share
options granted under a Pre-IPO share
option scheme and a share option
scheme as set out in note 32.

Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in share premium account and
contributed surplus are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company
did not have any distributable reserves
(2021: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from that of prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
net debt, which included net of cash and cash
equivalents, borrowings, as disclosed in notes
25 and 28 respectively, and equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, comprising
share capital, perpetual subordinated convertible
securities and deficit, as disclosed in note 30.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Dividends

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any dividends to its ordinary
shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Share option scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option
Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the
sole shareholders written resolutions passed on 12 June
2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then has been
granted and have yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not, in the absence of the
shareholders approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time. Unless approved
by the shareholders, no option may be granted to any
person which if exercised in full would result in the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to be
granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled,
and outstanding share option) in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such new grant
exceeding 1% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of such new grant.

An option under the Share Option Scheme may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33. RERFZEUBROAERZNT@®
(CONTINUED)

Share option scheme (continued)

(i)

R IR T & ()

The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) B ERREHEDT
follows:
Number of Contractual
Date of grant options Vesting conditions life of options
BB IR
RHEBH BREHE HBEGRHE BRHR
17 January 2012 20,751,196 40% on the grant date, 30% on both 10 years
of the first and second anniversary
of the grant date
—E——F 20,751,196 RMEEAHR40%  REHABEE — K 106
—A+tAR FZREHR30%
30 April 2015 157,500,000 40% on the grant date, 30% on both 10 years
of the first and second anniversary
of the grant date
TN 157,500,000 PR HEIR40% @ RIREBHRARE— K 106
MA=+AH FEIBEFHR30%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33.

(CONTINUED)

Share option scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options scheme are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

RESEEURDHER 2@

B8 (®)

(i)  REAERTEIMERE KT IHITE
BT :

BE—_F-__H+-A=t—-HL

FE
Outstanding number of options
HA{TERRES
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2022 the year 2022
R-E-Z&
kSt 3 TZAZt-AH
ERARH RiiAH iid k8 -A-BHER EREN &8
HKD 000 000 000
iy Th T Th
Key Management
yrEs
Mr. Fung Wai Shing 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 0485 = = =
29 Apri 2025
IBIER “Z-R4EA=tA  ZE-RFMA=TRZ
ZZ-REMACTAR
Independent non-executive director
BukunEs
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 1o 0485 500 - 500
29 April 2025
HHRLE “E-REMA=TE  —E-REMA=tHE
“Z_REMACTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, LU
Employees
E&
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 to 150 1482 (1,482) -
16 January 2022
ek “3-F-BttA  -F--F-AttRZ
“E-CE-AAA
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0485 44,000 - 44000
29 April 2025
ok — - “E-REMA=TEE
T =
ZE-TENA=TH “2-REMA-thA
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, o T L B
45,982 (1,482) 44,500

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

(CONTINUED)

Share option scheme (continued)

(ii)

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options scheme are as follows

(continued):

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRESEFEURODAER ZAR@®

fERR AT 8l (o)
(i)  BEEFEIMEE R FHTR®

EmT : (&)

HEe—_Z2-_—F+-_A=+—H1t
FE

Qutstanding number of options

HATTRERES
Balance at Lapsed Balance at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Type of grantee Date of grant Exercisable period price 2021 the year 2021
\ — z = ﬁ
) ) S  tzR=t-8H
AEAER RHRE T ke —A-Ad&e ERER i
HKD 000 000 000
A7 i il i)
Executive director
Hirge
Mr. Fung Wai Shing 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0.485 20,000 (20,000) -
29 April 2025
BRNLE “E-REMASTE  —E-REMAZtHE
ZR-REMAZTAR
Independent non-executive director
BUFHiES
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 30 April 2015 30 April 2015 to 0485 500 - 500
29 Apri 2025
HERLE “Z-REEAZ+A  -F-REMAZTRZ
ZERENACTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, dgy ey S0
Employees
&
In aggregate 17 January 2012 17 January 2012 o 1.50 482 - 482
16 January 2022
% Z5-ZE-BttR ZE-CF-AttRE
:Z “E-A1RA
In aggregate 30 April 2015 30 April 2015t 0.485 46,000 (2,000) 44,000
29 April 2025
a8 “E-REMAZTE  —E-REMAZtHE
“ECIEMACTAR
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, GRS
67,982 (22,000) 45,982
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33.

300

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)

Share option scheme (continued)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share options scheme are as follows

(continued):

At 31 December 2022, the number of the
exercisable shares under the Share Option
Scheme was approximately 44,500,000 (2021:

45,982,000) shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no
share option under the Share Option Scheme

were granted and exercised (2021: nil).

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2022 had a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5.2 years (31 December 2021:
5.2 years). The weighted average exercise
price for the outstanding share options as at 31
December 2022 was HKDO0.52 (2021: HKDO0.52)

per share.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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B8 (@

(ii)

B BB B R INEFHITE
BT : (B

R-oZTE-——#F#+=-A=+—01 - 8
RIEFTEITBE TRl 1T IR0 B &L B
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has executed
corporate guarantee to certain banks and other
borrowing creditors with respect to general banking
facilities and borrowings granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company of approximately RMB5,604,570,000
(2021: RMB5,776,820,000). In addition, as at
31 December 2022, the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company have executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks and one other borrowing
creditor with respect to borrowings granted to an
associate of approximately RMB259,000,000 (2021:
RMB265,000,000) as disclosed in note 38 (c).

The Group has not recognised any financial liability
(2021: nil) in respect of the guarantees granted for
general banking facilities of the associate as the
directors of the Company considered that the amounts
of financial guarantee liabilities are immaterial.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

34.

35.

BBEREL

R-B-—F+-A=+—8 AQ7H
EETFTARBWBE AT RN —RRITE
EREEHARYS,604,570,0007T (==
——%: AR¥5,776,820,0007T) A7 T
WITREMEBEBEEASZILAAER - It
G BRANFT FE38(C) AT E c M- T——
F+-A=+—8 ' XRFKREKRBETF
B QR —ME L QR ERNEELD A
E#259,000,000 T (ZE=—% : AR
265,000,0007T) [A1#5 FER1T R — & H Ath (&
BEEEARL D TER -

REBEW AKX E QBN —RRITEE
EEMERERTMNERAEECET =~
F 8 BWIARARREETARTREE
REENSRITEAX -

THEREERETMIAECARE

(a) =E®IEER

2022 2021
=== —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETIT
Financial assets TREE
At amortised cost R EHK AT = 1,458,774 1,417,377
Financial liabilities tRaE
At amortised cost RSN 2 6,032,092 6,285,283
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35.

302

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk
and currency risk arises in the normal course of
the Group’s businesses. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s
credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. In view of the history of business
dealings with the customers and the
sound collection history of the receivables
due from them, management believes that
there is no material credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from the customers and
other debtors. Management makes
periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade receivables and other
receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there is any dispute with the
debtors. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL on
trade receivables individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the
management considers that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The credit risks on bank balances are
limited because the counterparties are
banks/financial institutions with high credit
rating assigned by internal credit-rating
agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 100% (2021:
100%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2022.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk
by customers is 100% (2021: 41.9%)
as at 31 December 2022. In addition,
12.13% (2021: 18.59%) of the net other
receivables was due from the five largest
other debtors as at 31 December 2022.
These five largest other debtors include
state-owned enterprise in the PRC and
companies with good past credit records
with the Group. Other than these, the
Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

35.

TRERE

(b)

BREMTAZARE®S)

MR EE B FERBER®)

(i)

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022

1= B 7 B2 R 5 (B 771 (1)

ﬁEfT ERMEERKRER -
EHFHTRT &8

%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ

BHETEHNEETR -

AEEMEERRAEME
ETEEFRFE - HR=F
T+ RA=1+—R15E
WE ZRRBERN100% (=
T —4 : 100%) °

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+
—B  AEEEHFREF
MNEERKBAE100%(=ZZ
Z—%F :41.9%) ° LI -
R_E-_—_F+=-A=+
— B EiERERERFE
M2 183%(ZE-—4 :
18.59%) & fE UL A A E b &
BARERR - ZERAHM
EEABRTETEARELER
BEAAEENEELHER
SFHRA] o BritbZ o - ANE
liﬂﬁﬁﬁmiﬁ%$m
ZER

303



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M mRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

35.

304

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Financial asset with credit risk exposure
Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowance for
trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significant different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. SRIEREERESMIAZAAREBE®

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure

(continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk

BEEMEERERBE®

(i) 1= B /7 Bz 2 5 18 7P 12 (%)

HiglEEmR 2 M EE

(&)

FEURE 5 BR FR (1)

TREH®REBASEREKE
SRR E RS &R R TR

and ECLs for trade receivables as follow: HEEBENER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount Allowance
RABEE REAE BERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARBTR
As at 31 December 2022 R-BZZ#+=A=1+-8H
Type 1: Customers within the Group expected — BR1 : BHER T34
that they will pay on time: FEEZF -
Neither past due nor impaired REBHNAERE 0% 119,550 =
Past due for less than 60 days BEDRE0R = = -
Past due for more than 60 days BHI60KRIA LB DR180K
but less than 180 days - - -
Past due for more than 180 days BHIB0RN LBIR—F
but less than one year - - -
777777777777777777777777 119,550 -
Type 2: Credit impaired customer: HFh2: GEREER -
Past due more than one year BE—E F 100% 95,619 36,302
215,169 36,302
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. SREMEERESMIAEZARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERREEBEERBE®
policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1= B /7 iz 2 5 18 7P 12 (%)

(continued)

Financial asset with credit risk exposure el ERRAE [ EE
(continued) (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEWE 5 BR R ()
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount Allowance

BHBER EAE Bk
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

As at 31 December 2021 RZB=-£+ZA=1-8
Type 1: Customers within the Group expected 181 : AR ER T340
that they will pay on time: FTEEEF -
Neither past due nor impaired RARPRERE 0% 106,000 =
Past due for less than 60 days ki IS 0% 17,104 =
Past due for more than 60 days 60K LEH R 180K
but less than 180 days - - -
Past due for more than 180 days BH1BORA LESR—F
but less than one year 0% - -
B 123,104 -
Type 2: Credit impaired customer: B2 EEREEP -
Past due more than one year BH—FAE 100% 95,619 36,302
218,723 36,302
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

THARBREERERMIAZARE®

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERREEBERBE®

policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 15 B 3 B R 5 1B 7P A (450
(continued)
Financial asset with credit risk exposure EfeE BRI R 2 fEE
(continued) (&)
Trade receivables (continued) JEUNE 5 BR 7 (&)
The estimated loss rates are estimated HETEBEERDBEBELE R
based on historical observed default BHREL G WHEBEAE
rate and are adjusted for forward-looking RN BB A Sy A]
information that is available without undue SHRIHEMEERHEH 2 -
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly ERETHENB@E A
reviewed by management to ensure AT RA BT &S AR
relevant information about specific debtor BERIEE R -
is updated.
Movement in the loss allowance account R E RSk HE W E 5 BR A S
in respect of trade receivables during the BREERZESOT
year is as follows:
RMB’000
ARB T
As at 1 January 2021 RZE——F—H—H 55,657
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 10
Reversal during the year F N (12,315)
Write-off g (7,050)
Exchange realignment ME B -
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 RZE_—FR_FT__
+=-A=+—H 36,302

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Other receivables

The Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL of other receivables.
For those balances expected to have
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group apply lifetime
ECL based on aging for classes with
different credit risk characteristics and
exposures.

As at 31 December 2022, included
in other receivables of the Group are
amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of aggregate gross
carrying amounts of RMB322,703,000
(2021: RMB322,703,000). Loss
allowance of RMB322,703,000 (2021:
RMB322,703,000) was provided for these
amounts as at 31 December 2022 since
the management of the Group considers
the probability of default is significant
in view that these amounts have been
overdue for a long period of time.

308 CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZ=R£EBAERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. TREAKREERSBMIAECARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBEKBEERERBEK®

policies (continued)

(i) Credit risk and impairment assessment (i) 1= B /7 Bz 2 5 18 7P 12 (%)
(continued)
Other receivables (continued) H it JEY R
For the remaining other non-trade ERAEEARTEMIEES
receivables of the Group, the FEWER  AEBEEEE
management of the Group considers BRNEEHFINMBE
the probability of default by assessing ShEEZEENMA G
the counterparties financial background M WRZE_—F+=A
and creditability and accordingly, = +—HELBEERBOA
loss allowance of approximately R #19,581,000(=& =
RMB19,581,000 (2021: RMB15,951,000) —F : AR®15,951,000
was provided as at 31 December 2022. JL) °
Movement in the loss allowance account A EF P gt L i JE s BR SR Y IS
in respect of other receivables during the BRERZEHNT

year is as follows:

RMB’000

AR®T T

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H 344,768
Impairment loss recognised EERBEEBE =
Reversal during the year FREE (2,233)
Write off 58 (8,775)
Exchange realignment E W EE (90)
At 31 December 2021 R_B__F+_H=+—H 338,670
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 3,082
Reversal during the year FREE =
Write off 6z -
Exchange realignment EHEE 353
At 31 December 2022 R_B__F+_HA=+—H 342,105
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Financial guarantee contract

At the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company have performed
impairment assessment, and concluded
that there has been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition of the
financial guarantee contract. Accordingly,
any loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is
measured at an amount equal to 12m
ECL. No loss allowance was recognised
as at 31 December 2022 in accordance
with IFRS 9 as the amount is immaterial.
Details of the financial guarantee contract
are set out in note 34.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own
cash management, but the borrowings
are subject to approval by the parent
company’s management. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with
any lending covenants, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities which assume
that no occurrence of event of default
at the reporting date of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities and
lease liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay (with assumption
that there will be no breach of events
in respect of Settlement Agreement of
Loan | and its supplemental agreements
and Settlement Agreement of Loan Il as
detailed in note 28).

35.

THARBREERERMIAZARE®

(b) HHBEREEBEZERBEK®

(i) HEBELEE
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35.

312

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

35. sREREERERMIAZ

(b)

DNRE®)

BEEMREERERBKE®

(i) ‘mEELEE

As at 31 December 2022

R=B==F+=-A=t-H

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—E£Rg —5% ARRE
REX BRFR REAE HREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®TR AR®TR ARET T
Current BN
Trade payables R E ST 387,564 = 387,564 387,564
Other payables Ht (AR 1,944,154 = 1,944,154 1,944,154
Lease liabilities HEAR 9,199 - 9,199 8,794
Borrowings BE 3,706,254 = 3,706,254 3,447,453
6,047,171 - 6,047,171 5,787,965
Non-current FEBN
Lease liabilities HEAR = 1,619 1,619 1,534
Borrowings BE = 80,271 80,271 73,307
____________________________________________________ S U -
6,047,171 81,890 6,129,061 5,862,806
Maximum exposure of HBEREH
financial guarantee RARK
contracts (note 34) (Pi5E34) 259,000 = 259,000 259,000

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF



35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i B IR AR B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

35. SREREERESRMIEZARE®

(b)

BEEMEERERBE®

(i) TEELERE

As at 31 December 2021

RZE-_—#+-A=1+—H

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—FA% —Fiz KBRS
REX BRFA mELH FEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETFT ARETT
Current b
Trade payables BB SRR 321,596 = 321,596 321,596
Other payables HibERERR 2,263,607 = 2,263,607 2,263,607
Lease liabilities HERE 9,631 = 9,631 8,833
Borrowings BE 1,559,595 - 1,559,595 1,475,850
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 4194429 T . 41442 | 4069886
Non-current FEBNE
Lease liabilities HERE - 7,249 7,249 6,925
Borrowings BE - 2,501,027 2,501,027 2,216,782
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ... 2ns08276 2508276 2228707
4,154,429 2,508,276 6,662,705 6,293,593
Maximum exposure of HBERELD
financial guarantee BAER
contracts (note 34) (PiEE34) 265,000 = 265,000 265,000
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(ii)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required
to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount
is claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending
on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty
which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The table below summarises the maturity
analysis of borrowings and financial
guarantee with respect to borrowings
granted to an associate with a repayment
on cross demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out
in the loan agreements. The amounts
include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the on demand time band
in the maturity analysis contained in the
above table.
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35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company do not
consider that it is probable that the
bank and other borrowing creditors will
exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such borrowings
of the Group and an associate will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements (with assumption that there
will be no breach of events in respect of
Settlement Agreement of Loan | and its
supplemental agreements and Settlement
Agreement of Loan Il as detailed in
note 28, and with maximum exposure of
Settlement Agreement of Loan Ill).

35.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

35.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

policies (continued)

(i)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

THEAREERERTIAZARE®

(b) HERREEBEERBE®
(i) HEELEEE

Maturity analysis Borrowings and financial
guarantee with respect to borrowings granted to
an associate subject to a repayment on cross
default clause based on scheduled repayments
HBMAAMBRET HERZRRNENGIEERBNEER
RY-HBEARGENNBREREN

More than
one year
Within and Total
one year or less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand five years cash flow amount
—ERg —F# ARRE

REX BRER RELE REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T ARBTR ARETR
At 31 December 2022 RZZ__F

+=A=+-H

Borrowings BE 3,643,228 143,297 3,786,525 3,520,760

Maximum exposure of BBEREH
financial guarantee BARER

contracts 259,000 - 259,000 259,000

At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+-A=1+-H

Borrowings & 1,489,922 2,570,700 4,060,622 3,692,632

Maximum exposure of BBERELD
financial guarantee SONEN
contracts 265,000 - 265,000 265,000

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
net current liabilities of approximately
RMB4,155,839,000. The liquidity of the
Group is dependent on its ability to
implement the measures to improve the
Group’s immediate liquidity and cash
flows as described in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

35. LREERE

BEREMIAZAREBE®

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEEBEEAEREE®
policies (continued)
(iii)  Interest rate risk (i)  FIEE
The Group’s interest rate risk arises AEENMNERBEERE
primarily from pledged and restricted EERREREEFER  BHe
deposits, cash and cash equivalents and RIREZEEYMREE - 127
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable BREREEMNEEGANSE
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group EFEAEEDREARRER
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair ENERRBEALEBENER
value interest rate risk respectively. The b o BIRE IR AL E A
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored EFORENNT
by management is set out as below:
Interest rate profile FIEBLR
The following table details the interest rate TRANAEENEEFHE
profile of the Group’s net borrowings at R¥E BB RN
the reporting date:
2022 2021
—8--F &
Effective Effective
interest rate Carrying interest rate Carrying
per annum value per annum value
BERER = REE  BRERE REE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFTT
Fixed rate borrowings: BEENEEE
groungs B ISULTAO  QMGSTO0 SO-00% 36616
Variable rate net borrowings: TENREEFE
Borrowings BE 5.85% 55,000 5.7% 61,000
Pledged and restricted deposits BEARXBHER  0.00%-0.35% (143,676)  0.00%-0.35% (2,103)
Cash and cash equivalents RERAEEED 0.00%-0.35% (855,997)  0.00%-0.35% (1,030,439)
e D) G715
Total net borrowings AEEFH 2,521,087 2,660,090
Net fixed rate borrowings as a BEEREEEFRE
percentage of total net borrowings A EFENE DL 137.47% 136.52%
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. SREREERERIEZAREBE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERREEBEERBE®

318

policies (continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in the
interest rates of variable rate net
borrowings prevailing at the reporting
date, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB9,447,000
(2021: RMB9,714,000) for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the reporting date. The
impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2021.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. SREREERESRMIEZARE®
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEERKREEEERIK®
policies (continued)

(iv)  Foreign currency risk (iv) M B
RMB is not freely convertible into ARBTT B /HELRAEIN
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange ’f#% o FTE W R AR B HNE
transactions involving RMB must take R WBEFEBPEANRRIT
place through the Peoples Bank of China A MR T B B INE /Y
or other institutions authorised to buy and T - INER Z AT A
sell foreign exchange. The exchange miE RSP B ARRITATR
rate adopted for the foreign exchange RIPER  ZEERETEZRH
transactions are the rates of exchange SKEETE o AN [ A 1N = ez
quoted by the Peoples Bank of China that FERBABEMEERNA
are determined largely by supply and EILFHERIR BRI
demand. The Group is exposed to foreign BUTEHEREEEREE - A
currency risk primarily through purchases %Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ“%%%)\
giving rise to cash balances that are REETRS - [EXRE
denominated in USD and borrowing ’E“Lxﬁl\%”r@ﬁuu%ﬁﬁﬁkzﬁ
balance that are denominated in EUR, WARKEERE -

while all the other operations of the Group
are mainly transacted in RMB. Changes
in exchange rate affect the RMB value of
purchase costs of commodities that are
denominated in foreign currencies.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35. TREKEEREBMIAZAAREBE®R
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HEEREREBZFERBEK®

policies (continued)

(iv)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (iv)

SP M B (1)

320

The following table demonstrates the
Group’s exposure at the reporting date
to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

TRERAEENFEAR
EREEXRE  MENREA
AR ZERNIIEEEE AL
MEBE  BMELNE
R -

2022 2021

—ZE_— —E-—4F

Denominated Denominated

in USD in USD

HNETEHE AZETTEHAE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 2,103 2,484
2022 2021

—E-CF T

Denominated Denominated

in EUR in EUR

U®TatE LABTETHE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARBTTT

Bank borrowing RITEE 74,676 =

No sensitivity analysis has been
presented as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the foreign
exchange risk associated with the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities will
not be significant.
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36.

37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 35.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36.

At each reporting date, capital commitments
outstanding not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

THARBREERERMIAZARE®

(c) =®RIANARE

ANEBRBEKAAAENSRT A
REREE BEER T -_—FK—
E-_—F+_A=+—HHR2AE

DRITRK o
EREYE
REMER - WARRERE VB RE M B
EHRBITEARRENAT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment WE - BE k& 264,394 157,042
OPERATING LEASES 37. REHEE
Leases as lessor EAHBEANEESE

The future minimum lease payments receivable under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

PRI S E TR T 1R R & (K e e 7l
B REEWT

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Within 1 year —&R

- 125

The Group leases vessels under various agreements
which typically run for an initial period of 20 to 30 days
(2021: 20 to 30 days). The agreements do not include
an extension option.

AEBEREZEVIGHRAET B20E30
R(ZBZ—%F : 20830R) N HEHEEE
fit o ZEWE T RIGIEHRIZHE
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38.

322

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted certain transactions with
related parties of the Group, including (i) Mr. Xu, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and his close
family members; (ii) Mr. Xu Da, an executive director
and his close family members; (iii) Qinhuangdao Qinfa
Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), a company
controlled by Mr. Xu; (iv) Yuanfan Technology Co.,
Ltd. (*Yuanfan Technology”), a company controlled
by Mr. Xu Da and Qinfa Industry; (v) Tongmei Qinfa,
an associate; (vi) Bo Hai Investment Limited (Bo Hai
Investment), a company controlled by Mr. Xu; and (vii)
Fortune Pearl, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

Particulars of transactions between the Group and the
above related parties for the year are as follows:

(a)

Recurring transactions

38.

RELXRS

AEBEAEENBHEFETETRS
BREOARAZERBREGEENEERS
B (T ESHRELAEREERTE
(IR EEEFN AR 2SR EEEE
BERABI(RBEE]D  (VREXERER
BEERVINAFARNBRIEERAG ([&E
MEHRD ¢ (VB QR EERE (ViR
ERFINAREEREFRAR(HEE
& RVIVEARRIRELIERARIEE

AEBMFRNEFABETNRSFBEDR
T

(a) REMEXRS

Transaction amount for

the years ended
31 December

Payable outstanding
as at 31 December

BZ+=-A=+—HL Rt+t=-—BA=+—H
EENRZSHE i R AT S BR R
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F ZZE - T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETIT AR®TRT ARETIT
Purchase of coal from REH KB
- Tongmei Qinfa - RIE R 20,138 10,058 92,258 139,946
Advertising Es
- Qinfa Industry - REEHE 1,429 - - -
CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEEX&EEERQT



38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 38. BAELIRZ®@)
(b)  Guarantees provided by related parties (b) FEELIREMER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

The maximum amounts of guarantees provided

HEAETRHENESERSBELD

by related parties are as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Guarantees of borrowings provided R4 IRMEAEEER
by Mr. Xu 7,049,910 7,226,460
Guarantees of borrowings provided  %GEENE LR FHE
by Mr. Xu’s close family members REMNEBERR 4,423,830 4,342,380
Guarantees of borrowings provided — #RELERERNEEER
by Mr. Xu Da 4,482,910 4,655,160
Guarantees of borrowings provided — RELANEZHE
by Mr. Xu Da’s close family REMBEEER
members 1,080,000 1,150,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided — ZHEEZERHMEEER
by Qinfa Industry 2,746,500 2,756,250
Guarantees of borrowings provided RN EHIREMEEER
by Yuanfan Technology 152,000 152,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided — #/&IEEIRHMEEER
by Bo Hai Investment 2,035,000 2,035,000
Guarantees of borrowings provided — EiERHRE EER
by Fortune Pearl 2,800,000 2,800,000

Certain of the above maximum guarantee
amounts are made for the same borrowings.
Overall, the maximum amounts guaranteed by
any of the above related parties for the Group’s
borrowings (including the maximum guarantee
exposure for default of borrowings as detailed
in Note 28) is RMB7,049,910,000 (2021:

RMB7,226,460,000).
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 38. BAERLRZ (&)

(¢) Guarantees provided to a related party (c) REHTFT—BBEEINER
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
Guarantees given by the Group AEEFREREESH
for borrowings obtained by EERMHNER
Tongmei Qinfa 259,000 265,000
(d) Key management personnel remuneration d) BEEEEALT#HMS

Key management personnel are those persons
holding positions with authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including the directors of the Company. Key
management personnel remuneration are as

BHREREEBALEEENHEESE
ERE - BEEREFAEEES
MEDRBEETNAL(BERARR
BEF) AREEEALIHNBEM
T

follows:
2022 2021
—E-—F T %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEF T
Directors fee =ik 3,328 3,454
Salaries, allowances and benefits in &4 - 2B R EWEF
kind 14,501 13,031
Contributions to retirement benefit RORIE AT B R
schemes 764 687
Share-based payments VAR 1 A EfE 2 3R - -
18,593 17,172
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Outstanding litigations

(i)

Litigation claims relating to repayment
to non-controlling shareholders of
Huameiao Energy

On 1 September 2020, there was a
litigation initiated by the non-controlling
shareholders against the Group to claim
for 20% of coal production of Xingtao Coal
Mine, Fengxi Coal Mine and Chongsheng
Coal Mine held by subsidiaries of
Huameiao Energy from the year of 2013
to 2020 as the distributions entitled to
non-controlling shareholders of Huameiao
Energy for the aforesaid period, which
were equivalent to aggregate amount
of approximately RMB705,860,000.
The directors of the Company are of
the opinion that the Group has a valid
ground to defend against the claim,
and no provision for the litigation claims
has been provided in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022. Up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, the litigation claim is
still in progress.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

39.

326

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Litigation claims relating to repayment
to a former shareholder of an acquired
business of Huameiao Energy

In February 2021, the Group received
notice from the Shuozhou City
Intermediate People’s Court that a lawsuit
was filed by a former shareholder of an
acquired business of Huameiao Energy
against the Group to claim for unsettled
consideration payment amounting to
RMB30,469,000 for transfer of business
and related compensation amounting to
RMB3,000,000. Up to the date when the
consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, the litigation claim is
still in progress.

Litigation claims relating to the
performance of the contract execution
between Yu Lin Zhong Kuang Wan
Tong Construction Limited Company
(“Yu Lin Zhong Kuang”) and Hongyuan
Coal

During the year ended 31 December
2019, Yu Lin Zhong Kuang initiated a
litigation claim against the Group to
demand for economic losses in relation
to the suspension of construction project
of coal mining infrastructure, of which
amount are related to compensation
to the staff costs and equipment costs
incurred during the implementation of
the project. The court order for the claim
is approximately RMB10,121,000. Up to
the date when the consolidated financial
statements are authorised for issue, the
litigation claim is still in progress.
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

(iv)  Litigation claims relating to the
performance of the purchase contract
execution between Shanxi Yunxin
International Trade Co., Ltd (“Shanxi
Yunxin”) and Huameiao Energy and
Fengxi Coal

During the year ended 31 December
2019, there was a litigation claim initiated
by Shanxi Yunxin against the Group
to demand immediate repayment of
overdue payable in relation to purchases
of consumables and equipment by the
Group. The overall claim amount of
approximately RMB77,430,000, which
including the aforesaid payable to this
supplier of approximately RMB54,124,000
and late penalty interest of approximately
RMB23,306,000. Up to the date when
the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, the litigation claim is
still in progress.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
in respect of all the above litigation that the
Group has a valid ground to defend against the
claim or else made sufficient provision when
necessary in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022.
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39.

328

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Outstanding litigations (continued)

Other than the disclosure of above, as at 31
December 2022, the Group was not involved in
any other material litigation or arbitration. As far
as the directors of the Company were aware,
the Group had no other material litigation or
claim which was pending or threatened against
the Group. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
was the defendant of certain non-material
litigations, and also a party to certain litigations
arising from the ordinary course of business.
The likely outcome of these contingent liabilities,
litigations or other legal proceedings cannot be
ascertained at present, but the directors of the
Company believe that any possible legal liability
which may be incurred from the aforesaid cases
will not have any material impact on the financial
position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 39. HAREEBE@®

(b)  Financial guarantees issued (b) CEHIBER
As at the end of each reporting period, the Group REREHR  AEEERAEE
has issued the guarantees to certain banks B NRREREELMEERS
and one other borrowing creditor in respect TFRITR —BEMEEGERAZL
of borrowings made by Tongmei Qinfa, an BR - BREBEER  AEEELAER
associate of the Group. Under the guarantee, the — A HRARENEREREEZSE
Group that is a party to the guarantee are jointly RITRZBEMBERREAERY
and severally liable for any of the borrowings of —EEAE -

Tongmei Qinfa from those banks and the other
borrowing creditor.

The maximum liability of the Group at 31 AEER=ZZTE_=ZF+=—A=1+—
December 2022 under the guarantees issued HREZFLERETITNESEEAR
is a portion of the outstanding amount of AREFREREREESHEHARE
the borrowings of Tongmei Qinfa amounting 259,000,000 C(ZE=—%F : AR
to approximately RMB259,000,000 (2021: & 265,000,0007T) B — 3 5 ©

RMB265,000,000).

(c) Borrowing default clause (c) MEBEEHHKEN
The settlement agreements entered into between REBHEEEEAAGUNER
the Group and asset management companies BEBEENGK B ASER
contained default clauses which the Group will R AEERFRERYBHEEESH
be required to repay the outstanding balance of MEE  AEBRAEMNREESN
the original borrowings and interest payable if REEERRENFTE - ZFHEE
the Group fails to repay the new borrowings by TR B EE IS PO BT 28 4% 57 o

instalments in accordance with the respective
repayment schedule. Particulars of the settlement
agreements are disclosed in note 28.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & T - —F+ - A=+—HIF¥E

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  40.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the year is as follows:

ENNSILEE: 3 e

BRARRBRNFERNIBARR KON E R A
T

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Non-current assets FREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBR R Z&RE 328,930 301,673
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE I BT /8 R B 108 9,546 763
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 106 161
9,652 924

Current liabilities REEE
Other payables E M ET BRI (24,376) (18,005)
Netcurrent liabilites nBefFE 042y (17,081)
Net assets BEERE 314,206 284,592
Capital and reserves B #EE
Share capital &7 211,224 211,224
Perpetual subordinated convertible VNS &

securities 156,931 156,931
Deficit At (53,949) (83,563)
Total equity RSB 314,206 284,592

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors of China Qinfa Group Limited on 29 March
2023.

Xu Da
Director

EF
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &&= — T - —F+ - A=+—HItFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the

end of the year are set out below:

40.

X2 BB BB AR O 2R ()

AR A ERESEB RN R ROLD

BRI

Perpetual
subordinated Share-hased
Share Share  convertible  Contributed Exchange compensation  Accumulated Total
capital premium securities surplus’ reserve reserve losses equity
N
XARR REf#2 .
i ROEE  TRRES BABH Eife HekE RiEE Bn4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note30(s) Nole30(d))  Note30() Note 30(c)(v)
WE0b)  KE))  KESC) HE30(d)(v)
At 1 January 2021 W-E--£-F-B 21124 323000° 156,981 658,719° (50,281)° 007 (18204)  (12551)
Profit for the year Epiaf - - - - - - 308,426 308,426
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2ERA
Foreign currency translaion MR8 EE
differences - - - - (6423) - - (6423)
Total comprehensive income 2 EMALRE - - - - (6.429) - 308426 302,003
Transactions with equity HERREAZRS
shareholders, recorded REREEIIR
directly in equity
Distribution relating to perpetual BB ARR AT
subordinated convertible EHLAR
securities - (4,860) - - - - - (4,860)
Share options lapsed BANERE - - - - - (6352) 6,352 =
Total transactions with equity ~~ EERHEAZR S
shareholders g - (4.860) - - - (6,352) 6,352 (4.860)
At 31 December 2021 and RZT=-%
1 January 2022 tZA=t-BR
—Z--#-f-H 211,224 318,160 156,931 658,719* (56,704)* 3,725" (1,007 463)" 284592
Profitfor the year ERgH - - - = = = 522 522
Other comprehensive income ~ Ef2ERA
Foreign currency translaion MM EE
differences - - - - 34,144 - - 34,144
Total comprehensiveincome ~~ 2ERAEE - = = = 34,144 S 50 34,666
Transactions with equity HERREAZRA
shareholders, recorded WEREESIR
directly in equity
Distribution relating to perpetual  EEXARR TR
subordinated convertible BHLAR
securities - (5,062) - - - - - (5,062)
Share options lapsed EXANERE - - - - - (655) 655 =
Total ransactions with equity ~ EERHAAZRS
shareholders a8 - (5,052) - - - (655) 655 (5,052)
At 31 December 2022 3
TZA=1-A 211,224 313,108* 156,931 658,719* (22,560)" 3,070° (1,006,286)" 314,206

ZEZ"F 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 H 2 —Z—_—F+_A=+—HILtFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

These reserves accounts comprise the deficit of
RMB53,949,000 (2021: RMB83,563,000) in the statement of
financial position of the Company.

& Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the net asset value of Qinfa Investment Limited
acquired pursuant to the reorganisation and the nominal value
of the share issued by the Company in exchange.

CHINA QINFA GROUP LIMITED HEZZEEFRAF
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